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National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Bandra — Kurla Complex
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Mumbai 400051

Dear Sirf Madam,
Sub: Submission of a copy of Annual Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2624

alona with the notice of 24" Annual General Meeting ("AGM”} of the Company under SEBI
{Listing Ohligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In terms of Regulation 53(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements)
Regulations, 2015, we hereby submit a copy of the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 along with the notice of 24 AGM of the Company, held at a shorter notice today
i.e. Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 15:30 hrs IST, which has been sent to the shareholders of the Company
post approval of the same by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held joday at 11:15
hrs ST,

You are requested to Kindly take the same on record.
Yours faithfully,
For Max Life Insurance Company Limited

Anurag Chauhan
General Counsel and Company Secretary

Encl As mentioned above

SURANCE CC.LTD,
aor, DUF Zauare Jacacanda Marg DL Cay Pnaza: P00 irdia
ST zam AT I NS G S

SEOOPRZLGCPLCILERTE IRDS

by et (CING

Registerad office: 419, Bhai Moban Singh Nagar, Railmajra, Tehsil Batachaur, District Nawanshahr, Punjab - 144 533,

4, A Max Financial and

AXIS BANK IV
@



MAX LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office:

419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar, Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur Nawan shehar, Punjab — 144533
Tel. +91 124 4121500, Fax: +91 124 6659811, Website: www.maxlifeinsurance.com,
e-mail: service.helpdesk@maxlifeinsurance.com
CIN: U74899PB2000PLC045626

NOTICE OF 24" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Fourth (24" Annual General Meeting (*AGM"} of the members of
Max Life Insurance Company Limited ("Company") is scheduled to be held at a shorter notice on Tuesday,
7 day of May, 2024 at 15:30 hrs IST through video conferencing to transact the following business{es):

ORBDINARY BUSINESS(ES):

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and the consolidated Audited Financial Statements
comprising the Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2024, Revenue Account
{Policyholders’ Account) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, Profit and Loss Account
{Sharehalders’ Account) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, Receipts and Payments
Account (Cash Flow Statement) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Management Report
together with the report of the Board of Directors and the Auditor's thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prashant Kumar Tripathy [DIN: 08260516], who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sahil Vachani [DIN: 00761695], who retires by rotation at this
Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mohit Talwar [DIN: 02394694], who retires by rotation at this
Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification{s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant o the provisions of Sections 139, 140, 141, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the underlying rules viz. Companies (Audit
and Auditors} Rules, 2014 as may be applicable, the IRDAI {Corporate Governance for Insurers)
Regulations, 2024 and the Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2016, issued by IRDA] and on the
recommendation of Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 105102W), be and are hereby re-appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold office for one year from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, until the conclusion of the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company, on a remuneration
(including terms of payment) fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, plus all tax(es), as may be applicable and reimbursement
of all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS(ES):

8.

Appointment of Mr. Jai Arya (DIN: 08270093) as an Independent Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without modification(s}, as an
Ordinary Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with schedule IV of the Act and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Director) Rules, 2014, Articles of Association of the
Company, and applicable provisions of the Insurance Act, 1838, if any (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s) thersof for the time being in force), as approved and recommended



by the Board of Directors, Mr. Jai Arya (DIN: 08270093) who was appointed as an Additional Director
in the capacity of an Independent Director of the Company with effect from April 1, 2024 and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company and who has submitted a
declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in the Act and in respect of whose
appeointment, the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a
member preposing his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appoinied as an
Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from April
1, 2024 till March 31, 2029".

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Prashant Tripathy (DIN: 08260516), Managing Director & CEO
and Mr. Anurag Chauhan, General Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorized to file necessary forms and intimations with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, in compliance with requirements under the Act and Insurance Act, 1938 and to do all such
acts, things and deeds fo give effect to the above resolution.”

Appointment of Mr. Munish Sharda (DIN: 06796060) as a Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 160, 161 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with rules made thereunder and the
Articles of Association of the Company, and applicable provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938, if any
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), as
approved and recommended by the Board of Directors, Mr. Munish Sharda (DIN: 06786060} who
was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from April 28, 2024 and wha
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company and in respect of whose
appointment, the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from &
member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Prashant Tripathy (DiN: 08260518), Managing Director & CEQ
and Mr. Anurag Chauhan, General Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorized to file necessary forms and intimations with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, in compliance with requirements under the Act and Insurance Act, 1938 and to do all such
acts, things and deeds to give effect to the above resclution.”

Appeintment of Nir. Arjun Chowdhry (DiN: 02947622) as a Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Sections 152, 160, 161 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with rules made thereunder and
Articles of Association of the Company, and applicable provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938, if any
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), as
approved and recommended by the Board of Directors, Mr, Arjun Chowdhry (DIN: 02947622) who
was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from April 29, 2024 and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company and in respect of whose
appointment, the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a
member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Prashant Tripathy (DIN: 08280516), Managing Director & CEOQ
and Mr. Anurag Chauhan, General Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorized to file necessary forms and intimations with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, in compliance with requirements under the Act and Insurance Act, 1938 and to do all such
acts, things and deeds to give effect to the above resolution.”

Profit related commission to Independent Directors of the Company



To consider and if thought fit, {o pass the following resolution with or without medification(s}, as an
Ordinary Resclution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company in their 20" Annual General Meeting held on May 20, 2020, pursuant to Section 148(8),
197(7) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the underlying
rules viz. the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
{including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), in
terms of the IRDAI (Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors of Insurers) Guidelines, 2023, in terms
of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company, and as recommended by the Board of
Directors, the approval of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
payment of INR 20 [acs to each [ndependent Director of the Company as annual profit related
comimission from financial year 2023-24 onwards, in addition to the sitting fees and reimbursement
for out-of-pocket expenses incurred towards attending Meetings of the Board of Directors and/ or
any Committee thereof.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregate amount paid to all non-execuiive directors, including
the independent directors, shall not exceed 1% (One Percent) of the net profits of the Company
calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as
amended from time to time in any financial year.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Prashant Tripathy (DIN: 082680516), Managing Director & CEO
and Mr. Anurag Chauhan, General Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, things and deeds, as may be required, to give effect
to the above resolutions.”

10. Payment of sitting fees to Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiva, Non-executive Director of the Company,
from FY 2024-25 onwards

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without modification(s), as a
Special Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT in terms of the restated shareholders’ agreement dated August 9, 2023 and the
Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to Section 197 (5} of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rule 4 of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules, 2014, the payment of a sitting fee of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lac} to Mr. Rajesh Kumar
Dahiya (DIN: 07508488), an Independent Director of the Company for his participation as member
in each meeting of the Board of Directors or Committee(s) thereof, effective for meetings held from
April 1, 2024 onwards, as approved and recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company,
be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Prashant Tripathy {(DIN: 08260516), Managing Directer & CEQ,
Mr. Amrit Pal Singh, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Anurag Chauhan, General Counsel and
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and other things as may be required or considered necessary or incidental thereto for giving
effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Dated: May 7, 2024
Place: Gurugram
By order of the Board
For Max Life Insurance Company Limited

Py

+

-

Anurag Chauhan
General Counsel and Company Secretary
Membership No. F9899



Notes:

6.

The Members shall note that the Company is going to convene the 24 Annual General Meeting
("AGM” or "Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) in compliance with applicable laws read
with relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") in this regard. The deemed
venue of the Meeting shall he considered as the Registered Office of the Company sifuated at 419,
Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar, Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur Nawan Shehar, Punjab — 144533, The
framawork as prescribed by MCA in its circulars is given below for effective participation of
members in following manner:

¢ Company is convening the 24" AGM through VC and no physical presence of members,
directors, auditors and other efigible persons shall be required.

s  Members attending the AGM through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckening the
guorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”).

o Notice of the AGM is sent through email to all members as on May 7, 2024 i.e. date of 110"
Board meeting in which notice of the AGM is approved by the Board of Directors, on their
registered email ids available with the Company and no physical copy of the same would be
dispatched. If any member desires to update his/ her registered email id, he/ she may send the
request for the same at the following e-mail address of the company ie.
anurag.chauhan@maxlifeinsurance.com. or may contact at (+91) 9650922332,

¢ Company is providing two-way teleconferencing facility for the ease of paiticipation of the

members.
» Members and participants may pose questions, if any, before or concurrently during the
Meeting through e-mail on the following e-mail address i.e.

anurad.chavhan@maxlifeinsurance.com.

o« Members are suggested to cast their vote by show of hands at the Meeting.

e The result of voting shall be declared in the Meeting and the Meeting shall deeme to be
conclusive after the declaration of resuit.

The dial in details are as follows:

Join Zoom Meeting:
hitps:/fzoom.us/i/98688277 385 7 pwd=MVeaYWZpNVBNNGEIN 1okMKhSTENIUTO9

Meeting ID: 986 8827 7365
Passcode: 766797

The facility for joining the Meeting will be opened at 15:15 hrs IST i.e. 15 minutes before the time
scheduled for the Meeting and will remain open throughout the proceedings of the Meeting. Also,
the facility shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after start of the Meeting.

Participants may like to connect with Mr. Anurag Chauhan, Company Secretary at (+91)
9650822332 in case any assistance is required pertaining to using the technology before and
during the Meeting.

Members shall further note that since their physical presence has been dispensed with for attending
the Meeting, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of
appointment of proxies to attend and cast vote on behalf of a member is not available for this
Meeting. However, representatives of corporate members may be appointed for the purpose of
participation and voting on their behalf in the Meeting. Corporate Members intending to attend the
Meeting through their authorized representative(s) are requested to send ic the Company a
Certified True Copy of the board resolution/ letter of authority authorizing their representative(s) to
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting at the following e-mail address of the Company i.e.
anurag.chavhan@maxlifeinsurance.com, unless such resolution/ |etter has already been shared
with the Company.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out the
material facts in respect of business as set out under item no. 2 to 4 and 6 to 8, is annexed hereto



and forms an integral part of the notice. The relevant details, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (*ICSI”) in respect of
Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at this Meeting are also annexed as Annexure 1.

The Register of Direciors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act and any other documents referred to in the
notice and accompanying explanatory statements, are open for inspection in electronic form for the
duration of the Meeting on request from member(s) at the following e-mail address ie.

anurag.chauhan@maxlifeinsurance. com.

The Meeting shall be conducted, subject to consent from zll the sharsholders of the Company
have been received for convening the Meeting at a shorter notice.

Enclosed herewith is the Attendance slip to record the presence of the members/ authorized
representatives. Members are requested fo fill and share the same through e-mail at the following
e-mail address i.e. anurag.chauhan@maxlifeinsurance.com.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Itemno.2,3&4

Mr. Prashanf Tripathy

A seasoned professional with over two decades of experience across Finance, Organizational Strategy,
Operations, Risk Management and investor Relations, Prashant Tripathy [eads Max Life Insurance as the
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer. Having spent 17 years with the Company, Prashant was
earlier the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, spearheading Financial Management and the Corporate
Strategy, as well as playing a critical role in managing Investor Relations and Communications for Max
Financial Services Ltd., the parent company of Max Life Insurance,

Prashant joined Max Life as Head of Strategy in 2007 and led all organizational strategic initiatives on
growth and profitability. In his eight years' tenure as the CFQ, Prashant played a pivotal rale in positioning
Max Life Insurance as a respected private life insurance company.

Prior to joining Max Life Insurance, Prashant was associated with GE and Genpact for eight years in India
as well as in the UK. During the early days of his distinguished career, Prashant worked with Tata Steel,
Jamshedpur where he was responsible for the operations of a steel plant.

Prashant holds a degree in Chemical Engineering from IIT Kharagpur and is a Post Graduate in
Management from {IM Bangalore.

Mr. Sahil Vachani

Mr. Sahil Vachani is the CEO & Managing Director of Max Estates Limited. He also serves as a Director on
the Boards of Max Financial Services Limited.

Mr. Sahil Vachani joined the Max Group in 2016 with a focus on creating a powerful Real Estate brand —
Max Estates Limited. Mr. Sahil Vachani has successfully completed key fransactions which will have an
enduring impact on the Company's growth journey. ’

He started his career as an investment banker with Citigroup in London, where he worked on Mergers and
Acquisitions across the Middle East and Africa region. In 2004, he joined Dixon Technologies, a consumer
appliance manufacturing firm as Business Head and setup new verticals across multiple locations and was
involved in the launch of new products, setting up of new manufacturing facilities and establishing
relationships with leading brands as customers.

His next career progression was in 2008 as Co-founder and Managing Director of Dixon Appliances Pvit,
Ltd. In July 2015, Mr. Vachani sold his shareholding in the company to pursue opportunities in Max Group.

He holds a Bachelor's degree in Management Sciences from the University of Warwick, U.K. backed up by
an Executive Management Program on Disruptive Innovation from the Harvard Business School.

Mr. Mohit Talwar
Mr. Mohit Talwar has been associated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f January 30, 2016.

Mr. Mohit Talwar brings a wealth of experience of over 40 years in Corporate Finance and Investment
Banking. He spent 24 years in Wholesale Banking in Standard Chartered, ANZ Grindlays and Bank of Nova
Scotia. Prior to this, he spent almost 6 years with the Oberoi Group. Mr. Mohit Talwar joined Max Financial
Services Limited ("MFSL"), the holding company of the Company on November 1, 2007, as Director-
Business Development. He was appointed as the Deputy Managing Director of MFSL on February 14,
2012, Mr. Talwar was thereafter elevated as the Managing Director of MFSL with effect from January 15,
2016, for a period of five years. Further, Mr. Talwar was also appointed as the Managing Director of
Erstwhile Max India Limited for a period of five years with effect from January 15, 2016. He was also the
Vice Chairman of Max Group of companies.



Given his wealth of experience and the critical matters which are handled by him, the Board of Directors of
MFS5L engaged him as a Business Advisor to MFSL on completion of his term as the Managing Director of
the Company with effect from January 15, 2023.

Mr. Mohit Talwar is a post-graduate from St. Stephen's College and completed his management studies in
Hospitality from the Oberoi School.

Except Mr. Prashant Tripathy, Mr. Sahil Vachani and Mr. Mohit Talwar, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their refatives are concerned or interested financially or otherwise
except to extent of their sharehalding, if any, in the respective resolutions as set out in ltem No. 2, 3 & 4.

Pursuant to the Secretarial Standard - 2, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, please
find the details of Mr. Prashant Tripathy, Mr. Sahil Vachani and Mr. Mohit Talwar appended in Annexure I

Your Directors recommend the ordinary resolutions at item no. 2, 3 & 4 for your approval.

ltemno. 67&8

Mr. Jai Arya

The Board Mr. Jai Arya (DIN: 08270093) was appointed as an Additional Director in the Independent
category on the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from April 1, 2024 to hold the office up to the
date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company.

It is proposed to regularize the appointment of Mr. Jai Arya as an Independent Director on the Board of
Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013
read wiith schedule IV of the Act, for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from April 1, 2024 till
March 31, 2029.

In terms of the applicable laws, the Board has ensured that there is an appropriate balance of skills,
experience and knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties
effectively. Further, the Board has placed on records its opinion that Mr. Jai Arya fulfils the conditions
specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder and that he is independent of the management,

In respect of the appointment of Mr. Jai Arya, the relevant consent letter in form DIR-2, disclosure of his
interest in other entities, declaration in Form DIR-8 i.e. declaration of nen-disqualification, declaration that
he meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013 and is in compliance with sub-rule
(1) & (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; and
declaration as per "Fit & Proper Criteria” as per the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by the IRDA,
have been received by the Company.

The members shall note the following brief profile of Mr. Jai Arya as follows:

Mr. Jai Arya is an Independent Director on the Board of MFSL and a member of the Board of the UK based
research consultancy, the Official Monetary and Financial Institutions Forum (OMFIF). He is also a Senior
Adviser, NUS Business School, Singapore. In addition, Mr. Arya has also been a Senior Adviser for Asian
banking to a global consuitancy firm, and has also consulted on a project basis for the Asian Development
Bank.

Prior to this, Mr. Arya worked for Bank of New York Mellon for 27 years and Bank of America for 10 years,
in various Asian locations. Before leaving BNY Mellon in April 2014, Mr. Arya was an EVP and global head
of their business with sovereign institutions, as well as a member of the bank's Global Operating Committee
as well as Asia Executive Committee. Earlier roles included head of Asia client relationships and Asian
country offices.

Mr. Arya received an MBA from the Faculty of Management Studies, Delhi University and a BA (honours)
in Economics from St. Stephen's College, Delhi University.



Mr. Munish Sharda

Mr. Munish Sharda (DIN: 06796060} was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of Directors of
the Company with effect from April 29, 2024 to hold the office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

It is proposed to regularize the appointment of Mr, Munish Sharda as a Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company in terms of Sections 152, 160, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 with effect from April 29, 2024. He shall be liable to retire by rotation.

In respect of the appointment of Mr. Munish Sharda, the relevant consent letter in form DIR-2, disclosure
of his interest in other entities, declaration in Form DIR-8 i.e. declaration of non-disqualification; and
declaration as per “Fit & Proper Criteria” as per the Carporate Governance Guidelines issued by the IRDAI,
have been received by the Company.

The members shall note the following brief profile of Mr, Munish Sharda as follows:

Mr. Munish Sharda is an Executive Director at Axis Bank. He was earlier Group Executive & Head - Bharat
Banking, Axis Bank since September 2021. In his role as Executive Director, he is respansible for driving
business growth in Rural & Semi urban markets across all product offerings of the Bank and is also
responsible for Retail Lending businesses for the bank. He is also the Chairman of A. TReDS Limited (Axis
Bank's subsidiary), and a trustee at Axis Bank Foundation.

He has worked for over 25 years in banking and financial services sectors across product categories in all
the major markets of the country. He brings in rich leadership experience in scaling businesses, leveraging
digital technology to drive business outcomes, building people capabilities, and enhancing customer
experience.

Mr. Munish started his financial services career with Global Consumer Bank, Citibank India, where he
worked across geographies, products and businesses for over a decade.

Prior to joining Axis Bank, Munish was the Managing Director & CEO of Future Generali India Life Insurance
for over 7 years where he led transformation & growth & scaled up the business with improved profitability,
He has also worked in the consumer goods industry with Blow Plast Limited and with engineering major
Larsen & Toubro Limited.

Munish holds a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from Punjab Engineering College and has
completed his post graduate diploma in Management from IIM Lucknow. He also holds a Certification in
ESG Investing by CFA Instituie, USA.

Mr. Arjun Chowdhry

Mr. Arjun Chowdhry (DIN: 02947622) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of Directors of
the Company with effect from April 29, 2024 to hold the office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

It is proposed to regularize the appeointment of Mr. Arjun Chowdhry as a Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company in terms of Sections 152, 160, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 with effect from April 29, 2024, He shall be liable to retire by rotation.

in respect of the appointment of Mr, Arjun Chowdhry, the relevant consent letter in form DIR-2, disclosure
of his interest in other entities, declaration in Form DIR-8 i.e. declaration of non-disqualification; and
declaration as per “Fit & Proper Criteria” as per the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by the IRDAI,
have been received by the Company.

The members shall note the following brief profile of Mr. Arjun Chowdhry as follows:



Mr. Arjun Chowdhry is a Group Executive for Affluent Banking, NRI, Cards & Payments at Axis Bank since
March 2023. He joined Axis Bank post the acquisition of Citibank India's consumer business on March
1,2023. He shepherded this merger as the Country Consumer Business Head for Citibank India.

Mr. Arjun has 29 years of very diverse experience across consumer banking businesses, with Citibank
India. His experience spans across operations, sales, strategic functions and running large &diversified
businesses. Over his tenure, he was instrumental in building the cards, wealth and salary franchises at
Citibank India. He also set up Citi's first US facing offshore consumer operations, growing it rapidly from its
inception and leading it for over 5 years, during his long stint in the operations function.

Arjunis an alumnus of St Stephens College, Delhi, and the Indian Institute of Management (IIM), Bangalore.

Accordingly, approval of the members of the Company is being sought by way of respective Ordinary
resolutions for appointment of Mr. Jai Arya as an Independent Director of the Company and Mr. Munish
Sharda and Mr. Arjun Chowdhry as the Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

Except Mr. Jai Arya, Mr. Munish Sharda and Mr. Arjun Chowdhry, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested financially or otherwise except to
the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the respective resolutions as set out as Item No. 6, 7 & 8
respectively.

Pursuant to the Secretarial Standard 2, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, please find
the details of the said directors appended in Annexure I,

Your Directors recommend the ordinary resolutions at item no. 6, 7 & 8 for your approval.
Itern no. 8

in accordance with Section 149(9) and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules made thereunder, an Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, the
reimbursement of expenses for participation in Board and other meetings and profit related commission as
may be approved by the shareholders.

The shareholders are requested to note that, in line with the regulatory limit, the profit related commission
of INR 10,00 Lacs per annum is paid to each Independent Director of the Company from FY 2019-20
onwards, as approved by the Company in May, 2020,

The shareholders shall further note that IRDAI vide new Remuneration Guidelines, 2023 has increased the
limit for the payment of remuneration to INR Twenty Lakh (20 Lacs) per annum to each independent director
from FY 2023-24. Accordingly, it is proposed to increase the profit related commission as a part of
remuneration payable to Independent directors from FY 2023-24 onwards from INR 10 lacs to INR 20 lacs,
in pursuance of the said guidelines and in supersession of the earlier resolution passed in the 20 Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on May 20, 2020,

The shareholders shall note that this profit related commission shall be payable to the Independent
Directors in addition to the sitting fees and the reimbursement of expenses for participation in Board and
other meetings, subject to compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The
shareholders are informed that the sitting fees paid to Independent Directors shall remain the same i.e. at
the rate of INR 1,00,000/- per meeting for attendance in Committee and the Board meetings of the
Company.

The aggregate amount paid to all non-executive Directors shall not exceed 1% (One Percent) of the net
profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, as amended from time to fime in any financial year.

Except Mr. Girish Srikrishna Parajpe, Mr. Jai Arya, Mr. Pradeep Pant and Mr. Rajesh Khanna, none of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested
financially or otherwise, in the respective resolution set out as ltem No. 9, as on date.

Your Directors recommend the ordinary resolution at item no. @ for your approval.



Item No. 10

The members are requested to note that in line with the restated shareholders’ agreement dated August 9,
2023 and the Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to Section 197 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, it is proposed to pay sitting fees to Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya, Non-executive Director of the
Company for participation in the Committee and the Board meetings of Max Life, of INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees
One Lac) per meeting, in addition to the reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses incurred towards
attending Meetings of the Board of Directors and/ or any Commitiee thereof.

The aforesaid payment shall be in line with the limits prescribed i.e. the aggregate amount paid to all non-
executive Directors shall not exceed 1% (One Percent) of the net profits of the Company calculated as per
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time in
any financial year.

Except Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives are cancerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out as ltem No. 10.

Your Directors recommend the resolution at item no. 10 for your approval by passing a Special Resolution.



Information pursuant to the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings {'SS8-2") issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, pertaining_to Directors seeking re-appointment at
the 24" Annual General Meeting:

Annexure |

Name of the Director

Mr. Prashant Tripathy

Mr. Sahil Vachani

Mr. Mohit Talwar

Directors, Manager and
other Key WManagerial

| Age 54 years 41 years 64 years
Qualification As provided above As provided above As provided above
Experience As provided above As provided above As pravided above
Date of first appointment | January 1, 2019 May 18, 2018 January 30, 2016
on the board
Terms and conditions of | No change proposed N.A N.A
appoiniment or
reappointment
Details of remuneration | No change proposed Nil Nil
sought to be paid
Remuneration last | INR 247,529,003 (for FY | Nil Nil
drawn 2023-24)
Shareholding in  the | 10 no. of equity shares | Nil Nil
company (held as a nominee of
Max Financial Services
Limited} :
Relationship with other | None None None

during the year

Personnel of the

company

Number of Meetings of | 5/5 held during the FY | 5/5 held during the FY | 5/5 held during the FY
the Board attended | 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24

Other Directorships as
on May 7, 2024

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures

Membership/

Chairmanship of
Committees of the
Boards of other

companies

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures




Information pursuant to the
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, pertaining to Directors seeking appeintment

rovisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ('S§-2'

at the 24" Annual General Meeting:

Personnel of the Company

Annexure |l
Name Mr. Jai Arya Mr. Munish Sharda Mr. Arjun Chowdhry
| Age 69 years 53 vears 52 years
Qualification As provided above As provided above As provided above
Experience As provided above As provided above As provided above
Date of first appointment | April 1, 2024 April 29, 2024 April 29, 2024
on the Board
Terms and conditions of | As per the letter of | N.A N.A
appointment or re- | appointment
appointment
Details of remuneration | Sitting fees of INR 1 | Nil Ni
sought to be paid lac per meeting
attended and profit
related commission as
may be decided by the
Cempany for the time
being
Remuneration last drawn Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding in the | Nit Nil Nil
company
Relationship  with  other | None None None
Directors, Manager and
other Key Managerial

Numbker of Meetings of the
Board attended during the
year

N.A for FY 2023-24

N.A for FY 2023-24

N.A for FY 2023-24

Other Directorships as on
May 7, 2024

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures

Membership/Chairmanship
of Committees of the
Boards of other companies

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures

As per the disclosures




MAX LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office:

419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar, Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur Nawan shehar, Punjab — 144533
Tel. +91 1124 4121500, Fax: +91 124 6659811, Website: waww.maxlifeinsurance.com,
e-mail: service.helpdesk@maxlifeinsurance.com

CIN: U74899PB2000PLC045626

ATTENDANCE SLIP

24" Annual General Meeting held on Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 15:30 hrs IST
Name of the attending member (in block letters)
Folio no.*
DP Id no./ Client Id no
No. of shares held
* Applicable in case of Shares held in Physical Form

I, hereby record my presence at the 24% Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Tuesday, May 7,
2024 at 15:30 hrs IST through video conferencing.

Member's Signature

NOTE:

1. Please fill this aftendance slip and send the same through e-mail at
anurag.chauhan@maxlifeinsurance.com.




DIRECTORS’' REPORT OF MAX LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LEIMITED (the ‘Company’ OR ‘Max Life')

Your directors are pleased to present the Twenty-Fourth Annual Report of your Company with the
audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

(INR crores)

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023 Growth %
Particulars {Apr. 23— Mar. 24) (Apr, 22— Mar. 23)
Financial Performance
New Business Premium (First Year 11,023 8,960 23%
Premium and Single Premium)
Adjusted Individual First Year Premium™® 6,964 6,025 16%
Renewal Premium 18,506 16,382 13%
Commission Expenses** 2,398 1,614 49%
Operating Expenses {Policyholders) 4,086 3,581 14%
Shareholders Profit or Loss After Tax 360 435 -17%
Key Business Parameters
Solvency Ratio 172% 190% -1,800 bps
Share Capital (including Reserves and 3,998 3,547 13%
Surplus)
Assets Under Management 150,836 122,857 23%
No. of Policies In-Force (individual) 5,250 4,955 6%
{'000s}
Sum Assured In-Force 1,779,409 1,397,142 27%
No. of Employees 23,125 19,338 20%
No. of Offices 304 269 13%

*Adjusted First Year Premium = individual Regular First Year Premium plus 10% of Single Premium

**Incl. of rewards
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

Highlights for the financial year (FY} ended March 31, 2024, are as follows:

THE STATE OF THE INDIAN ECONOMY

In early 2023, the global economy grappled with significant challenges, including supply-chain disruptions
following the pandemic and the lingering effects of geopolitical tensions, notably the Russia-Ukraine conflict.
These tensions contributed to energy and food crises and growing infiationary pressures. However, by mid-2023,
there was a gradual shift as inflation rates began to decrease, offering relief from economic pressures. This
moderation in inflation, alongside synchronized monetary policy tightening by central banks worldwide, helped
restore confidence in financial markets. Although this tightening initially raised concerns about its potential impact
on economic growth, the measured approach adopted by central banks helped prevent any major shocks. As a
result, the global economy avoided recession and maintained stability with an estimated GDP growth of 3.2% in
2023 and is expected to maintain the same growth rate in 2024 and 2025, according to IMF world economic
outiook.

Regionally, the global economy exhibits a diverse landscape, with distinct trends observed across advanced
economies, emerging markets and developing economies. In advanced economies, such as the United States and
the euro area, recovery paths differ. The US economy has not only rebounded from the pandemic but has also
surpassed pre-pandemic levels, registering a GDP growth of 2.5% in 2023. This growth is underpinned by robust
domestic demand supported by fiscal stimulus measures. Conversely, the euro area faces challenges in achieving
significant growth due to tight monetary policies and lingering energy costs. In contrast, emerging markets and
developing economies showcase resilience, benefiting from shifts in global supply chains and trade tensions. The
IMF projects these economies to grow hy 4.3% in 2023, outpacing their advanced counterparts.

Amidst these global dynamics, India stands as one of the bright spots. The Indian economy demonstrated
sustained momentum, growing at 7.8%, in 2023, driven by robust private consumption, the government's
continued capex push and an overall positive sentiment. Further, strong corporate profitability and healthier
balance sheet of banks and NBFCs led to a sustained credit flow across many sectors of the economy, which was
further boosted by a pickup in private investments.

Further, with GDP growth staying robust and inflation easing, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) maintained its
prolonged pause on policy rate cycle. Retail inflation eased to 5.09% in February 2024, based on the consumer
price index {CPl) data. However, the central bank maintained its “withdrawal of accommodation” stance, as retail
inflation has yet to reach its 4% target.

India's external sector remained robust with merchandise and services exports maintaining strong performance
in FY24. Merchandise exports, although experiencing 3 moderation in growth compared to the previous fiscal
year, remained robust, with a notable increase. In FY23, merchandise exports reached a record high of USP 451.1
billion, marking a significant milestone in India's export history. However, in FY24, the pace of growth moderated
due to weaker global demand, yet it remained substantial. Locking forward, India remains committed to
enhancing export promotion measures and production capacity to achieve its ambitious export target of USD 2
triflion by 2030. Foreign investment inflows stayed strong, with India attracting significant foreign portfolio
investments and maintaining its position as a preferred Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) destination. The stable
macroeconomic factors, positive global perception and stable currency contribute to India's attractiveness for
investors.

The government's continued focus on enhancing social infrastructure through initiatives like the Ujjwala Yojana,
PM-Jan Aarogya Yojana and PM-lal Jeevan Mission prioritizes universal access to basic amenities, fostering
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empowerment among previously underserved segments of the population. Moreover, rising youth employment
trends and women workforce empowerment indicate a shift towards inclusive development in India. The service
sector's robust growth, driven by digitalization initiatives and the resilience of the agricultural sector further
contribute to India's economic resilience.

However, FY24 also brought forth challenges and emerging trends that demand strategic responses. Evolving
globalization trends, changing trade dynamics and the rise of Artificial Intelligence {Al} present both opportunities
and risks for India's economic growth. Balancing energy needs for economic growth while transitioning to cleaner
energy sources poses a complex challenge, requiring careful policy considerations. Additionally, addressing gaps
in the skills, education and health ecosystem is crucial for enhancing economic productivity and ensuring inclusive
growth,

Looking ahead, India's growth trajectory is expected to continue. According to IMF, India's economic outlook
remains promising, with a projected growth rate of 6.8% for FY25. This growth is fueled by a combination of
private consumption and public investment, particularly in infrastructure development such as airports, roads,
and railways. While public investment has been a key driver of growth, there's been a concern about its impact
on crowding in private investment. However, recent signs of an uptick in private investment are encouraging and
bode well for the future.

On the consumption front, the decline in inflation, currently around 4.7%, is expected to provide a boost to
consumption as it nears the mid-target of 4%. As inflation continues to moderate, it is anticipated to further
support consumption growth in the coming periods. Heading into the general elections, the Union government
stayed away from announcing big bang referms while maintaining fiscal discipline, which should keep the fiscal
deficit on track to its long-term target while providing head room for the new government to calibrate budgetary
allocation to continue driving growth aligned with India’s aspirations to become a developed nation by 2047,

However, there are risks to this optimistic outlook, both in the short term and the medium term. Short-term risks
include volatile global commoaodity prices, especially oil, which could significantly impact India due to its large oil
imports. Additionally, food price shocks and weather-related disruptions pose immediate risks to economic
prospects. Looking further ahead, risks from geopolitical tensions and trade frictions could affect India's growth
trajectory.

- To address the challenges posed by india's young and growing population, investmentin education and healthcare
is paramount. With 15 million people being added to the labor force annually, ensuring they have the necessary
skills and capabilities to compete in a rapidly evolving job market, including competition from artificial intelligence,
is essential. Therefore, prioritizing investments in education and healtheare is crucial to harnessing the potential
of India's demographic dividend and securing sustainable economic growth in the long term.

LIFE INSURANCE INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Economic growth, an expanding middle class, and a favourable regulatory environment are driving the insurance
market growth in India, outpacing that of G20 nations. Furthermore, growing consumer awareness about life
insurance, especially pure protection products, coupled with a young population and increasing digital adoption,
are expected to significantly improve the relatively low life insurance penetration rate.

In FY24, the life insurance sector exhibited steady growth, underlining its robustness and adaptability in navigating
a dynamic market landscape. Besides being a year of growth, FY24 marked a significant milestone for the Indian
insurance sector with IRDAI embarked on a mission to achieve "Insurance for Al by 2047."

Under the visionary "Vision 2047," announced in 2022, IRDAl has been actively working towards enhancing
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insurance penetration and ensuring the availability, accessibility, and affordability of insurance for all citizens and
businesses. The groundwork includes regulatory reforms aimed at rationalizing the regulatory framework and
reducing compliance burdens for regulated entities. Additionally, initiatives like the State Insurance Plan ($1P} have
been introduced to increase insurance penetration across various parts of the country. The SIP is a collaborative
effort involving the entire insurance industry to deepen insurance penetration. Each State/UT has been assigned
to various insurers, with designated Lead Insurers responsible for developing state-specific strategies. These
strategies aim to address insurance coverage gaps and enhance resilience against natural disasters, thereby
providing a social safety net to the underserved population.

Moreover, IRDAI has initiated projects like the "Trinity of Bima Sugam, Bima Vahak, and Bima Vistaar” to further
expand insurance coverage. Bima Sugam, an electronic/digital insurance marketplace, aims to provide end-to-end
solutions for policyholders and facilitate seamless interactions between insurers, intermediaries, and customers.
This initiative aligns with the broader vision of "Insurance for All by 2047" and showcases India's commitment to
achieving universal insurance coverage.

Private Insurers Driving Growth

Private insurers emerged as key drivers of growth, with a resilient NBP growth of 12.11 in FY24.. Their significant
contribution to the sector's expansion underscores their agility and responsiveness to market conditions.

Growth Drivers

- Private insurers are projected to sustain strong growth momentum, with individual NBP estimated to grow
by 13-15%, outpacing industry averages.

- The forecasted increase in Gross Premium Written (GPW) to Rs. 9.33-9.55 trillion by FY 2025 signals a
positive trajectory..

- Growth in the Annualised Premium Equivalent {APE) segment is anticipated to drive Value of New
Business (VNB) and Embedded Value {EV) growth, supported by strategic product mix adjustments and
margin enhancements.

Outlook

Looking ahead, the life insurance sector remains poisad for robust expansion, driven by a convergence of factors
including increasing consumer awareness, expanding middle class, and a conducive regulatory environment. By
2032, the life insurance sector is poised to achieve a remarkable 8% annuz| growth in real terms, positioning India
as a formidable contender in the global life insurance market. Private insurers are expected to spearhead this
growth trajectory, leveraging regulatory reforms and strategic initiatives. Collaborative efforts between insurers,
regulators and state governments such as the State Insurance Plan and stakehoider engagement forums, are
expected to further drive penetration and inclusivity within the sector. Additionally, regulatory enhancements and
the adoption of technology signify a commitment to efficiency, innovation, and customer-centricity, ensuring the
industry's sustained growth and relevance in India's evolving economic landscape.

MAX LIFE OVERVIEW

In FY24, Max Life demonstrated strong performance with an individual business growth of 16% against the private
industry growth of 8% among private insurers positioning it as the fastest-growing listed player and 2nd fastest
among the top 10 private life insurers. Total new business premium experienced a healthy growth of 23%,
continuing the upward trajectory from the previous fiscal year. Similarly, renewal premium income, including
group premiums, saw a growth of 13%, contributing to the overall rise in gross written premium, which reached
INR 29,529 Cr.
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Furthermore, Max Life continued to generate sustained profitability. The post-tax shareholders' profit for F¥24
stood at INR 359 Cr, which underscores its ability to generate value for its stakeholders.

Additionally, Max Life continued to reinforce its capital base to support its growth initiatives and ensure long-term
sustainability. The total sum assured (individual and group} witnessed a significant increase of 59% from INR 31.1
Lac Cr. in FY23 to INR 49.8 Lac Cr. in FY24, demonstrating the growing confidence of customers in Max Life's
insurance products and your Company's ability to meet their protection needs.

THE STATE OF YOUR COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

STRATEGISING FOR CONSISTENT AND PROFITABLE GROWTH

Max Life’s strategy continues to be anchored around 6 key pillars:

1. Consistent market outperformance by focusing on priority areas -

a. Leadership in e-commerce: Your Company aspires to become a market leader in the online life
insurance market — both protection and savings categories — through product innovations, entry
into new untapped segments, building e-com as a platform to create phygital synergies with
offline channels and expanding ecosystem partnerships across the insurance value chain,

b. Building fastest growing profitable distribution: Proprietary distribution continues to be a critical
focus area for the Company, with its aspiration to be among the top 3 players in offline proprietary
distribution. Your Company will drive growth through office footprint expansion, adding new
business models and propositions, focusing on top advisor growth, agent recruitment growth, and
building a high-performance culture,

¢. Leadership in Protection and Wellness: Protection penetration and Sum Assured coverage
continue to be low in the country. Your Company aspires to be among the top 3 players in
protection and health by creating fit-for-customer value propositions, simplifying on-boarding
through digitization, and strengthening distribution execution to improve protection penetration.

d. Building retirement business: Your Company continues to focus on improving annuity
penetration by enhancing the product suite, strengthening distribution execution, digitizing
fulfilment journeys for customers, and creating a holistic retirement ecosystem for an improved
customer engagement.

2. Leveraging synergies with Axis Bank - Your Company continues to drive synergies in the Axis Bank
partnership by scaling new-age and untapped channels (e.g. mobile banking, tele-banking), augmenting
deployed manpower in traditional channels, and improving productivity through focused on-boarding,
training rhythms, and digital-led sales management practices.

3. [Inorganic expansion {M&A)} & Business Development — Your Company continues to explore opportunities
to further augment Banca and group business partnerships, along with building proprietary fintech
capabilities for accelerated growth.

4. Digitization for efficiency and intelligence — Your Company continues to pursue its digitization agenda
and build artificial intelligence to offer best-in-class customer/ distributor service experience and reduce
back-office costs. Your Company has launched various digital assets over time, adopted a “Cloud-First
Approach” for all new workloads, and has embedded intelligence to drive efficiency.

5. People Capahility — Your Company believes in engaging and retaining top talent, enabling key cultural
shifts to drive superior employee outcomes, and building organizational capabilities to prepare for the
future.
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6. Creating a sustainable business {ESG) — Your Company had identified imperatives around work, people
and community, green operations, and financial responsibility. To ensure that the true spirit of ESG pillars
is translated into practice, the company has set ambitious targets under each pillar to track the progress.
It has set a target of 28% gender diversity, 95% of digital penetration, 40 learning hours per employee
each year, 75% of the equity portfolio to be ESG compliance and 100% ESG integration in equity
investment research and decision making and 80% carbon neutrality by 2028.

STRENGTHENING DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

Your Company has invested in and nurtured a diverse multi-channel! distribution architecture that reaches people
across the length and breadth of the country to offer product solutions. With eur praoprietary channel at the core,
the distribution architecture has grown through a strong agency channel, direct employee sales force (Customer
Advisory Team}, new-age e-commerce online channel, efficient banca distribution, and addition of new
relationships that have helped your Company reach its target audience with the best-in-class products and
services.

PROPRIETARY DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

At Max Life, proprietary distribution channels have been the core of consistent growth. This congregation of Agency
Distribution, Customer Advisory Team, and e-commerce have combined to enable a stronger growth momentum
for your Company, and have ensured exemplary performance in terms of business quality. The proprietary
channels recorded a superlative growth of 24% during the year and closed the year with a 38% share {YoY: 222bps)
in adjusted individual first-year premiums in FY24.

Agency Distribution — Being the oldest and most mature channel, that has been propelling Max Life’s growth over the
years, your Company launched the multi-year Agency transformation program in FY23 to strengthen the channel
further and with a vision to be the top 3 growing Agency channels among the top 10 insurers, enabling your Company
to build a high-growth proprietary distribution by improving the efficiency and productivity of agency distribution. To
enhance the scope of business and increase the share of proprietary channels overall, the focus continues to be on
growing the top-performing advisors base exponentially along with activation and retention of agent advisors by
building a strong performance culture with growth and entrepreneurial mind set. The structural changes deployed in
FY23, started to show results, for 9M FY24 your Company became one of the faster growing among the top 10.

Within the agency distribution, your Company has carved out the Agency Partners Channel driven by a variable
agency model and leverages recruitment through a higher variable construct. This Agency Partners Channel exited
the FY24 with a robust 53% growth. Your Company continues to focus on growing this channel further in the years
to come.

As the Army and Paramilitary personnel of the couniry remain at the forefront to protect the country, to bring
additional focus to this segment, your Company created a specialist team within proprietary distribution to
provide relevant life insurance solutions to the armed farces, in FY24 this unit registered healthy growth .

Customer Advisory Team — At Max Life, we keep the customer at the core of everything we do as an organization.
Hence, no customer is unaided in your organization, where the Customer Advisory Team acts as a specialized team
that meets the needs of customers whose agent advisors are no longer part of the Max Life system. This channel
registered a robust growth of 48% in FY24 to be the 2" fastest growing player among the peers. The channel
continues to maintain its novelty by experimenting various cross sell models, in FY24 channel experimented with
multiple models to drive the profitability & growth while keeping the customer at the core, some of these models
will be taken up for scale-up in FY25 and the learnings from these experiments

Page 6 of 35



Online Channel — The Indian consumer behaviour has started to evolve over the years. In the past, the consumer
used to research online and buy offiine. However, today customers are getting increasingly comfortable buying
online. Until FY23, this channel used to focus primarily on Protection business. in FY24, channel expanded its
horizons in other product segments leading to channel continues to maintain growth trajectory year on year and
exited FY24 with 56% YoY. Your Company continues to maintain its leadership position in term plans purchased
through life insurers’ websites, leading web aggregators, and digital brokers in India.

PARTNERSHIP DISTRIBUTION

¢  Axis Bank — The vision of the Max Life and Axis Bank {“Bank”} distribution relaticnship is to be the most
admired bancassurance partnership in the country. With both partners being committed to providing
superior value to the customers, the partnership continues to build on the vision of strengthening our
position as a top leader in the Indian Life Insurance sector. Despite the implementation of open
architecture at the Bank, Max Life continued to dominate the life insurance counter in the Bank in both
individual and group business. In FY24 your Company faunched a focused program to drive enhanced
productivity at Bank counter and grow new business verticals {Emerging verticals currenily account for
>10% of Axis channel sales)

e YES Bank —The YES Bank and Max Life bancassurance relationship is one of the oldest relationships in this
space, where in FY24, this relationship has completed 18 years of successful partnership. This stands as
testimony to both the partners’ commitment to growing the business and strengthening the relationship
further in the years to come. Despite an open architecture set up in Yes Bank, the channel continues to
hold a dominant share of the individual business.

e Other bancassurance partnerships — Our Urban Cooperative Banks’ partnership business grew despite
being impacted due to the pandemic with the geographic concentration of this bank branch networks in
Maharashtra.

2 In line with the long-term strategy of leveraging inorganic growth {M&A) and business development to
build a robust distribution footprint, your Company entered in strategic partnership with 45 partners
spread across corporate Agency, Broker {online/ offline} and Group Credit Life. Your Company will
continue to focus on inorganic growth to grow its distribution footprint sustainably in the years to come.

o Max Life Pension Fund Management Ltd., subsidiary of your Company attained 576 Cr Assets Under
iManagement from the first year of operation & continues to grow at a fast pace.

s In FY24, your Company expanded its footprint in the Middle East with a representative office in Dubai,
UAE to spread brand awareness and offering services to our NRI customers in that region.

GROUP BUSINESS

e Qverall Group business (Group Credit Life, Group Term Life and Group Annuity) opportunity continues to
grow, especially Group Credit Life. Your Company is focused on tapping into by bringing in new partners,
reinsurance support, re-pricing and deep business engagement.

CONTINUOUS FOCUS ON OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY FOR ENHANCING CUSTOMER EXPER_iENCE

Prompt settlement of death claims is the most important promise a life insurer makes while selling a life insurance
policy. A timely and hassle-free claim settlement is the most important moment of truth for the life insured and life
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insurer relationship. We endeavour to keep promises and keep dreams alive at the time of the customer’s utmost
need by paying death claims within one day for eligible policies.

Max Life has paid in-total 19,569 death claims worth INR 1254.39 crores during FY 2023-24. Since its inception,
Max Life Insurance has paid INR 8,679 crores towards death claims on 2,02,830 policies. With the instaClaim™
initiative for our vintage policyholders {i.e. policies that have been in force for at least 3 continuous years with us),
your Company endeavours to provide death claim payment within one day. Currently, 48% of claims are settled
in a day and this number is expected to increase materially in line with our Value for customer obsession.

Long-term customer retention is of critical importance in creating a win-win for customers, distributors, and your
Company. Ongoing improvements in our structural solutions and services to improve persistence are one of the
key focus areas for your Company. In FY24, the 13th-month persistency of Max Life Insurance was at 86.6%
{Premium) and the 61st-month persistency stood at 58.3% {Cumulative, Premium).

InFY24, your Company also tracked performance on customer engagement and satisfaction through Net Promoter
Score (NPS) across key customer touchpoints and at the overall Company relationship level, reflecting the
difference between promoters and detractors of a Company. By doing so, your Company has generated greater
insights into what delights or detracts customers and recommended our sclutions and further implemented
corrective actions to ensure that we meet our customers’ expectations. During FY24, your Company witnessed an
improvement of 4 points in the NPS scores to 56 from 52 in FY23. Further, our transactional NPS reflecting the
satisfaction of our customers at key touchpoints increased from 69 in FY23 to 74 in FY24, another reflection of
your Company’s obsession to better serve its customers,

PRODUCT INTERVENTIONS TO ENABLE PLANNED PRODUCT MIX

Your Company has a balanced product portfolio with an optimal mix of traditional savings, retirement, unit-linked
plans, and pure protection plans,

During FY24, your Company added new products and propositions to its portfolio in all categories with clear focus
on innovation and industry first options.

Your Company launched unique proposition in health space, Max Life SEWA (Secure Earnings and Wellness
Advantage). SEWA offers cover against hospitalisation & death along with guaranteed returns and host of wellness
benefits through MAXFIT wellness app. The plan offers fixed health benefits in case of ICU/ non-ICU hospitalisation,
minor and major surgeries.

In pure protection category, Max Life STEP (Smart Total Elite Protection Term Plan) was launched to target affluent
segment with flexibilities like Cover Continuance Benefit, where customer can choose to continue with his/ her cover
for 12 months even in case of non-payment of due premium due to any financial emergency.

Your Company also strengthened rider portfolio by launching Max Life SUPR (Smart Ultra Protect Rider) for ULIP
category which offer 4 sub variants to provide protection against various contingencies for life assured and policy
holder.

In PAR category, your Company launched Max Life SWAG Par (Smart Wealth Advantage Growth Par Plan) to power
up the category with 4 variants, including a variant that offers incame from the first year. SWAG Par is exclusive plan
which has an element of guarantee in the income along with non-guaranteed cash bonuses. It also offers industry
first whole life design, where income increases after attainment of 65 years of age - a true companion of golden
years.
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In ULIP category, your Company powered up Max Life PWP {Platinum Wealth Plan) with compelling customer
proposition by reducing charges. In addition to this, it offered strong proposition for mutual fund sellers where their
income increases in later years. In FY24, your Company launched 2 index funds, one each in small cap and midcap
category.

Your Company launched enhanced version of its 2 flagship products in Non-Par Savings category - SWAG (Smart
Wealth Advantage Guarantee Plan) and SWP {Smart Wealth Plan} to cater to the emerging needs of our customer
segments and market trends. Your Company also launched a new plan, SWAG Elite {Smart Wealth Advantage
Guarantee Elite Plan), which offers guaranteed returns for special milestones along with life insurance cover for
whole of life.

In the retirement category, Your Company launched a Max Life SWAG Pension {Smart Wealth Annuity Guaranteed
Pension Plan) with host of industry first features like Early Return on Premium at any milestone age, liuidity option
for Joint Life Annuitant along with inflation proof annuity plans. This product comes with total 18 variants for retired
and pre-retiree segment.

REINSURANCE ACTIVITY

Reinsurance is an arrangement whereby one party (the reinsurer), in consideration for a premium, agrees to
indemnify another party {the cedant) against part or all of the liability assumed by the cedant under one or more
insurance policies or under one or more reinsurance contracts. Max Life is a purchaser of reinsurance and operates
only on outward reinsurance.

Max Life uses reinsurance as one of the risk management mechanisms to transfer risks (insurance risks, including
both mortality and morbidity risk) from our balance sheet onte that of the reinsurer in a way that reduces the
volatility and uncertainty of our future results. Additionally, because of the global presence of the reinsurers, they
have access to large volumes of data from different markets, based on which they provide their expertise and
technical assistance to Max Life on certain product lines.

To appropriately control the reinsurance credit risk, Max Life selects reinsurers with credit rating thresholds {as
prescribed by the insurance regulator) to ensure that reinsurers are financially strong and have high
creditworthiness. Max Life also menitors the credit ratings and financials of its reinsurers regularly. To control the
concentration risk from reinsurance arrangements, it is ensured that the reinsurer business is well-diversified across
a minimum of three large reinsurers subject to the prescribed regulatory requirements.

Max Life has appropriate reinsurance arrangements in place that cover risks pertaining to individual businesses as
well as group businesses. Additionally, Max Life is also adequately covered for certain types of catastrophe risks. The
extent of risk retained by us for each of these arrangements depends on our evaluation of that specific risk and is
subject to regulatory requirements, wherever applicable.

COST MANAGEMENT

The operating expenses (policyholders) to net premium ratio decreased from 14.4% in FY23 to 14.1% in FY24. The
cost {Commissions plus total operating expenses) to net premium increased to 22.4% in FY24from 20.9% in FY23.

DIGITISATION AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - LEVERAGING TECHNOLOGY FOR BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

During FY24, many initiatives were taken to move towards becoming a truly digital organization and delivering
many industry-first digital processes.
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1. Digital Sales transformation:

At Max Life, we are building a best-in-class sales force which is driven by digital enabling new business models &
intefligent ways of working. We have digitized the entire end to end selling process from recruitment, lead
management, activity management, servicing, training, and sales governance across all our channels.

Max Life has rapidly digitized the sales governance and lead management processes to help huild a superior
execution driven sales force. This has led to significant improvement in the lead conversion ratio across our
partnership channels.

Max Life has implemented activity management processes across all partnership and proprietary channels. This
has led to better sales input leading to increased sales productivity. Max Life has also implemented the new age
Learning and Training management system “m5Saarthi” to provide a blended experience across offline and online
modes and enable learning on the go for more than twenty thousand strong sale force. Currently we are working
on Sales Super app to significantly enhance seiler experience, stitching the funnel view, creating a unified calendar
and nudge engine with Al enabled intelligent nudges.

2. New Business onboarding:

Max Life has made our Onboarding platforms more comprehensive & Intelligent to encompass all types of new
business scenarios such as Business insurance and Digitized ali the residual Physical journey. 100% of our propaosals
are now digital since Nov '23. Business enablement like, underwriting checks for higher accuracy and leakage
prevention {GuWern) powered by in-house Al models, combo journey (2 products) for online business, indusiry-
first National Pension Scheme integration via PRAN have been done for improved business quality and efficiency.
Penny drop and eKYC were introduced to reduce manual Quality Check requirements on new business and risk
mitigation.

The Onboarding customer experience saw a significant improvement through a new POSV (Point of Sale
Verification) asset with improved design that led to a 25% reduction in journey time for POSV. The platform has
been extended to all channels and now covers 57% of overall seller sourced business vs. 20% in the previous FY
thereby enabling better risk management.

Mas Life has driven agility in our onboarding platform through high configurability based one rule-based
capabilities that will reduce TAT by 60% for future business events like reinsurer guideline changes, POSV, and
Broker journeys to be implemented.

Various technology interventions on Onboarding platforms were done to enable higher system stability and peak
load performance. The year-end response time on critical APls was 60% faster vs. FY23. Architecture
simplifications have been done to ensure that the systems are more modular, simpler in design, and easily
scalable. We have now completely migrated from our legacy processing system to the new-age system Dolphin
with an upgraded workflow version. This has enabled over 80% cases to be processed as Clear case {Human less
Underwriting).

Max Life has collaborated with our Bancassurance partners by enabling Deep integration with Axis Bank Super
app “Siddhi” for our onboarding journey, now bank specified persons can login an insurance policy fram anywhere,
outside bank branch also thereby increasing selling opportunities.

Pre-Approved Sum Assured offers and Journeys were launched in Axis Bank & YES Bank. Offers created for all
product types and customer segments to cover maximum customer base
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Penetrating deeper into the alternate channels in Axis bank a customized POSP journey “Insure Bharat “created
for Bharat Banking segment.

3. Ecommerce:

Max Life scaled up investment on the purchase journey on customer on-hoarding platform, capturing #2 spotin
the direct to customer segment, while maintaining #1 position in protection business. The platform has helped
achieve industry-leading page load performance (less than 3 seconds as verified by Google) with key product
category pages at less than 2 seconds. The platform is now extended with capabilities of selling sales story having
combination of products, which helped sales team to leverage unprecedented scale during New Fund Offer (NFO)
period. Flexibility of platform enabled the launch of complete native AXIS Distributor to Customer journey for our
flagship direct to customer Smart Fixed-Return Digital product. The journey is available on net banking and Axis
Bank mobile app.

4.  Customer services:

We re-launched MILI, Max Life’s first truly native, enterprise wide, vernacular WhatsApp bot which serves as a
cornerstone towards building a single touchpoint for varied customer needs.

This bot is an Industry first, which enables us to serve our customers in eight languages, allows for Native Payment,
Native downloads of Policy documents and Policy Servicing along with Live Chat Support. Attracting 1 Lac+ unique
users, the new WhatsApp bot takes the customer’s buying as well as servicing experience to the next level, in the
brief 3 months of launch.

In continuation with our partnership with new age Fintech players we have collaborated to create a unified
payment platform which has helped us drive superior payment Success Rate which exceeds the benchmarks from
competition. The first attempt successful transaction is 84% and the UPI share has improved from 28% to 44%.
There is an increased in transaction rate from 31% to 61% by implementing new payment modes (UPland CC/DC)
within the auto-debit process, thereby boosting the proportion of online payments for future transactions.

The overall Website NPS has also improved ten points from 57 in April ‘23 to 67 in Mar ‘24 by re-imagining top
customer journeys thereby enhancing customer experience across all post purchase touch points. We leveraged
automation in our call centre enabling more self-service options to our customers resulting in an increase in self-
service take up from 13% to 30% over IVR.

5. Technology Modernization:

We have continued to bring agility, cost efficiency and scalahility of our 1T infrastructure though transformation
to cloud native apps and services and now 75% of our entire IT infra is on cloud.

Under Project Aakash, we undertook a transfarmation of our Core Insurance system transformation and moved
them to cloud. This is an Industry 1st initiative and key constituent of modernization of technology program. This
has resulted in higher resilience, scalability, improved Business Continuity, reduced Recovery Point Objective {near
real time) & Recovery Time Objective, Increased Uptime & performance.

6. Data Modernization:

We had embarked on a multiyear program to modernize our data foundation and make it ready for next level of
analytics and integration. This year we completed the first two phases of this journey and are in the process of
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completing the last phase. We have built an enterprise data lake on cloud which acts as a single source of truth
across all our digital assets. Today 70% of our data is on cloud which has led to near real time reporting, superior
performance and resilience.

We have completed two phases of data lake so far and the third phase is in progress. In Phase 1, Data Lake
Foundation layer was built to host real time data from onboarding, servicing, sales, core policy admin and
enterprise platforms, it has enabled several Al and analytics use-cases like Medi Check, dedupe, etc.

In Eagle Eye project, we built lake house architecture that enabled self-service Bl capabilities for business users,
near real time warehouse where all the critical KPI's are getting refreshed on a near real time basis.

7. Security:

Real time BCP Drill for 4 Critical functions {Investment, Customer Service, Buying Journey, Inbound & Cutbound
Calling, Mailroom) was performed with RTO < 120 Minutes.

Continued focus on security and investments in Cloud Security, End Point Security, penetration testing, threat
protection and data protection has led to increase in BitSight Security Maturity Score ~ 800 {Best in Industry),
Deployment of Cloud and End Point threat observahility and security posture management tool helped in
proactive detection of risks, misconfiguration and helped in improving averall security posture. (AWS Cloud
security posture improvement from ~70% to ~98.3%, Azure Cloud security posture from ~83% to ~89%, End point
security risk score from ~33% to ~15%.)

Al Works at Max Life

With a continuous focus on leveraging the power of Data, Al and Analytics, this year we focused on implementing
a number of innovative Al and Analytics solutions, along with, sustaining and enhancing the existing Al solutions
to ensure that continuous expected business value is realized through these solutions. Apart from this, we also
focused on developing core capabilities to create enterprise grade solutions leveraging new technologies such as
Generative Al, through experimentation and prototyping for most impactful business use cases. From a functional
focus perspective, enabling the distribution function and on ground distribution teams with Al driven smarts has
been one of our primary focus areas this year.

We undertook the expansion and enhancement of fully automated Al-driven insights solution -which helps analyze
sales activity trends and provides actionable insights across inputs , outputs and quality metrics [persistency,
cancellations and complaints) customized to each individual sales team member..

We closely worked with the partner Bank Analytics teams to co-create Al driven Max Life Specific Next best action
enginethis Al driven engine leverages ~100+ variables across bank account transactions, customer demographics,
relationship with the bank along with previous financial product purchase history from the bank, to derive the LI
propensity and offers.

Further enabling intelligence for sales execution and new seller success, we worked on creating a suite of seller
intelligence Al models. This madel suite consists multiple Al & Machine learning models such as, FLS attrition early
warning prediction model which leverages the seller demographics, performance, sales environment {branch
performance, OA share etc.) and supervisor variables to flag FLS who are more likely to attrite in the next 90 days.
This is helping the sales supervisors and HR teams to connect with the at-risk sellers and ensure focused retention
efforts. Similarly, another Al model from this suite - the advisor activation propensity model enables the Agency
team to sharply identify the advisors which are most likely to be activated in the next 60 days so that focused
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training and supervisory efforts can be done for these advisors to improve advisor activation rates.

Deepening our Al driven intelligence for enabling renewal income and persistency, apart from the previously
developed deep learning based calling allocation models, this year we developed the Impact Max solution, an Al
driven ECS success likelihood prediction mode! which enables to identify the most suitable dates for renewal ECS
debit for policies which failed to succeed the ECS hit on the due date (primarily due to lack of funds}. The solution
leverages financial bureau data for customers along with past payment patterns, customer service interaction
history and customer demographics data to determine the most suitable dates for ECS redebit.

Apart from this we worked on a number of customer communication and alternate collection channels {such as
automated bot collection agents, WhatsApp collection etc.) experiments for laying the foundation of reducing the
human call center efforts. This is helping us to create a comprehensive intelligent customer communication and
collections framework for FY25 execution.

For the customer onboarding, issuance and UW processes, we worked on enhancing multiple Al driven smarts
such as enabling the Al model driven intelligence for proactive identification and likelihood of incoming book
quality including Mortality, Persistency, Free Look Cancellation and missell Grievance which has enabled
identification of high risk cohorts for higher due diligence such as Video POSV process.

With a special focus on Generative Al, we developed embarked in execution of framework for implementing
Generative Al use cases for Max Life.

On the application of generative Al, we developed multiple MVPs including the development of SalesGenie- a
Generative Al-powered virtual Life Insurance trainer bot provides real time on demand sales inteliigence
assistance to field sales agents through a conversational chat platform, which acts as a virtual sales expert and
enable the sellers with appropriate answers to any sales related questions, financial market intelligence and
custormer sales pitches to improve sales productivity.

Apart from SalesGenie we are also experimenting with development of Generative Al based HRBP co-pilot to
improve employee experience and Customer service co-pilot bots to improve CS agent productivity and customer
experience. Experimenting with the Generative Al driven productivity improvement use cases, we developed
automated marketing campaigns by generating customer communication content, personalized interaction
videos, KFDs & training videas in multiple languages, leveraging a number of Generative Al platform tools.

On the customer service side, we developed the CX360 solution — Machine learning based engine to proactively
determine the likelihood of customer raising a service grievance. The model leverages 50+ parameters primarily
including the customer communication and servicing history to determine the customers likely to raise grievance
in the next 30 days. This profiling enables the customer service team to proactively engage with these customers
and take proactive action to reduce service grievances.

Recognising our cutting-edge work in the area of Al and Machine learning, this year, Max Life Insurance continued
to be recognised as front runner in Al implementation across various prestigious industry forums. We won the
AIM Al Innovation award 2024 (by Analytics India), ETBEFSI — Exceller Al in Fraud Prevention (For onboarding
model suite} and AWS {Amazon} - Generative Al Excellence award for being among the leaders for proofing and
adoption of Gen Al within the Insurance Industry.

ENHANCED ENGAGEMENT WITH EMPLOYEES

Max Life believes that the employees’ overall well-being represents the core of the business. Wellbeing at Max
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Life is much more than just physical health. With focus on Holistic Wellness through our unique Employee
Wellness Proposition, we run multiple wellbeing initiatives including a dedicated monthly wellness calendar with
activities like Health Camps, Informative Webinars, Financial/Mental wellness Sessions, Yoga/Zumba, Psychologist
& Dietician Consultations. Employees also have access to discounted services at top Hospital Chains across the
country.

The Company aspires to empower employees and enrich their careers by providing various opportunities to upskill
them, develop an inclusive work environment and evaluate their performance for continuous improvement. Max
Life enables a seamless flow of communication and further motivates them to perform better.

Our progressive policies and practices, a value-driven culture and inspirational leadership have helped us attract,
engage and retain key talent. By advancing employee’s competencies and skill sets through various initiatives, we
bring value at every stage of the employee life-cycle, which benefits both the organisation’s productivity and the
individual employee’s motivation and encouragement.

VALUES FRAMEWORK
At Max Life, all employees are guided by the following values:

o CUSTOMER OBSESSION: Customer at the core

e  GROWTH MINDSET: Curious to learn, Hungry to win
e COLLABORATION: Stronger together

e CARING: Respect people, Act with compassion

With INTEGRITY at its core
Band 3+ employees also demonstrate “People Leadership” along with the four values mentioned above.
DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION (DEI)

At Max Life, we recognise that Diversity, Equity and Inclusion are not just buzzwords but integral components of
our organizational culture and success. Our commitment to fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace is
unwavering, as we believe it drives innovation, fosters creativity and enhances employee satisfaction. As the world
evolves, our DEI initiatives also don’t remain static; they evolve in response to the ever-changing needs and
dynamics of our workforce.

Achieving meaningful progress in DEI requires more than just good intentions; it requires accountability at every
level of the organization. Our leadership team is actively involved in championing DEI initiatives, demonstrating
their commitment to creating a more inclusive workplace.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion are at the heart of or operations, and we had encouraging results this year
deploying enabling programmes and initiatives achieving a diversity ratio of 27%.

Qur Progress on the C.Q.R.E. Framework:

Culture:
e Inclusive culture building by manager sensitization through Leading with Inclusion workshops and e-
modules for all employees
e Sensitizing program for all hiring managers through Hiring with Inclusion
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Our Employee Satisfaction scores remain consistent between genders at 95%

DEI Toolkit as a resource guide available to all leaders

Recognizing DEI Champions & Women Role Models as part of Founders Day celebration

Launch of créche assistance program for employees to support working parents

Launch of Max WIN {Women in Network) Circles, an employee resource group for women leaders

Bujlding Organization Capability: o
We continue our signature programs for women like She Leads, Catalyst, Roar, that are designed to provide inputs
at every life stage & career stage of a woman.

Recruitment & Retention:

MLI achieved a diversity ratio of 27% starting the year from 25.6%.

Regular governance through monthly diversity dashhoards at a granular level.

On time retention conversations and inclusion efforts led to a drop in women attrition score by 10.2% in
Fy'24,

Differential Referral Program: Qur employee referral scheme offers 50% higher incentive in case of
wemen candidates.

Differential incentive for empanelled diversity vendors.

Engagement & Connect:
Celebration of our annual DEI Week, which saw:

o Llaunch video of #ICelebrateWholAmEveryday featuring the CEO and leaders speaking in multiple
regional languages. The video was shared with 22000 employees on WhatsApp and had ~249
reactions to the post on LinkedIn.

o Fireside Chat with Arundhati Bhattacharya, CEQ, Salesforce India & Ex-Chairperson, SBl and
Prashant Tripathy, CEQ, Max Life {(~6417 impressions on Viva Engage)

o ldeas Xchange: Beyond Boundaries & Barriers with Parmesh Shahani, Head, Godrej DEI Lab,
attended by all leadership.

o Employee Debate: “Is it crucial to raise awareness about LGBTQ+ rights in the workplace?” & “Are
efforts to enhance gender diversity leading to reverse discrimination?” (~6710 impressions on
Viva Engage).

o Understanding unique challenges of people with disabilities through disability simulation
activities.

o "Get Your Child to Work Day” as token to support working parents of Max Life.

Two very special and meaningful initiatives were organised on International Women's Day:
¢ Jugalbandi: Panel featuring 5 female employees across different functions and seniority levels,
hosted by EVP & Head, Operations was held at our Head Office. (~*5034 impressions on Viva
Engage}
o “l Appreciate You”: Leveraging the Power of Appreciation, all managers wrote personalized
appreciation cards or used Digital cards for their women team members.

As an organisation committed to this purpose, through its continued efforts, your Company is trying to cultivate
environment that allow each employee, regardless of age, gender, ability, etc., to contribute his /her best selves
— and this is what leads to a highly productive and innovative workplace.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Your Company’s assets under management (AUM) are INR 1,50,836 crore as of 31% March 2024. This is a growth
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of 23% over the previous year. Your Company ensures that its investment assets are managed in accordance with
robust asset-liability management guidelines for traditional policies and a market-oriented approach for its Unit-
Linked (ULIP) policies. The performance of both traditional and unit-linked funds is commensurate with the risks
assumed in the respective funds.

With an endeavour to deliver optimal returns to policyholders, Max Life’s investment team follows a disciplined
apprdach. For the traditional policies, funds were invested keeping in mind the safety of capital and stability of
returns over the long-term. The debt portfolio of your Company continues to be of high quality, with about 97%
of the portfolio carrying highest credit ratings of AAA {long-term} and Al+ (short-term). Most of the equity
portfolios for Traditional funds and ULIP funds are large-cap-orienied.

The Indian equity market was amongst the best performing across the globe in FY24, The large cap index ended
the year up 25%, while mid cap index and small cap index far outperformed the large caps with the indices ending
the year up 60% and 70%, respectively. Strong economic growth, stable policy environment and easing inflation
make India stand out on the global front. Furthermaore, fiscal discipline and policy continuity has buoyed the
overall investor sentiment. Foreign investor outflows remain erratic, however, domestic flows remained rabust.
Hence, Indian equity markets continue to outperform.

FY24 witnessed strong growth supported by an upturn in the investment cycle on the back of the government’s
continued thrust on capital expenditure, resilience services sectar, strong credit growth, and healthy balance
sheets of corporates and banks. Headline inflation remained volatile during the vear, mainly due to fluctuations
in food prices even as core inflation witnessed a sustained decline. The Reserve Bank of India’s {RBI} Monetary
Policy Committee {(MPC) maintained status quo on both policy repo rate (at 6.50%) and monetary. policy stance of
“withdrawal of accommodation”. Interest rates were 'range bound during the year, rising in first half then reversing
in H2-FY24, tracking movement in global yields.

For our participating funds, we increased our investments in long-term bonds in line with liability requirements.
We continue to invest in other growth assets like listed equities, high-quality pre-leased commercial real estate
with long-term lease commitments, Alternative investment funds, Infrastructure and Real Estate Investment
Trusts {InviTs, REITS}). We continue to use innovative interest rate hedging tools for substantial part of non-
participating funds that enable us to provide long-term guarantees to our policy holders.

The long-term performance of our ULIP funds remained strong, with above-benchmark returns for all funds. The
yield on our traditional funds income was in line with the long-term objectives of various plans.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

Specializing in crafting 'Customer Delight', Max Life consistently endeavours to deliver unparalleled experiences
to its stakeholders. As a result of our dedication, our business performance and practices have garnered sector-
wide acclaim, earning us numerous prestigious awards and recognitions. In the current fiscal year alone, your
Company has been honoured with over 40 awards and acknowledgments from various industry forums, including,
but not limited to the following:
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Won the Best Eco-friendly Business Award y the MSME Chamber of Commerce and Industry of India

Awarded Swift and Promptlnurer at The Economic Tsme Insurance Awards

Awarded by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india {ICAl) ‘For Excellence in Financial Reporting’
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Awarded as the Digital Enterprise of the Year - BESI at The Economic Times_ClO Awards

Awarded in Excellence for Claims Service and Best Product Innovation (SERD} at World BFSI Congress
A ROBUST RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK TO ADDRESS ENTERPRISE-WIDE RISKS

Max Life has a Risk Management Framewaork (RMF) that enables it to appropriately develop and implement
strategies, policies, procedures, and controls to manage different types of material risks. The RMF is Max Life’s
totality of systems, structures, policies, process, and people that identify, measure, monitor, report and control or
mitigate all internal and external sources of material risk. This framework provides reasonable assurance to the
management that each material risk is being prudently and soundly managed in regard to the size, business mix
and complexity of Max Life’s operations.

The RMF is maintained by the independent risk management function, headed by the Chief Risk Officer, who
reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He also has direct access to the Board and the Risk
Committee of the Company to share his independent view on key risks affecting the Company.

Under RMF, the risk function is responsible for the supervision of all risk management activities in the Company,
including:

1. Review of the Risk Appetite Statement (RAS), which states the material risk and the degree of risk that
Max Life is prepared to accept.

2. Appropriateness and adequacy of the Risk Management Strategy (RMS) that states Max Life’s strategy to

address the material risks and the policies and procedures supporting the management of the material

risks in Max Life.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process.

4. Ensuring through various management submissions, that the Board is adequately informed on top risks
and key emerging risk-related issues and providing supplementary advice to the Board through the Risk

w
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Committee, if necessary.

Max Life’s Risk Management Policy sets the broad contours of the management system, which is used to identify,
assess, monitor, review, control, and report risks and controls within the Company. Itis also the Company’s policy
that risks should be managed systematically, with the process of risk management well-defined and its various
elements properly integrated. The implementation of the RAS is a continuous cycle of improvement over the
Company’s existing risk management elements.

Max Life continues to progress well on its vision of a mature state of risk culture where every individual takes
responsibility for risks and has a thorough understanding of all risk tolerances.

The Company’s overall approach to managing risks is based on the Three Lines of Defence’ model, with clear
segregation of roles and responsibilities for all the lines, Business managers are part of the first line of defence and
have the responsibility to evaluate the risk environment and put in place appropriate controls to mitigate such
risks or avoid them. The risk management function, along with the compliance function, forms the second line of
defence. The internal audit function, guided by the Audit Committee, is the third line of defence and provides
independent assurance to the Board.

The statutory auditors and regulatory oversight aided by the Appointed Actuary in his fiduciary capacity are also
construed to provide an additional third line of defence. The entire implementation is monitored both at the
management level and by board-level committees and the overall risk management framewoark and its
effectiveness are subject to periodic assurance reviews.

The business continuity team under the risk management function works proactively to ensure business continuity
while giving primacy to the safety and security of our people.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT THE WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL} ACT, 2013

Your Company is committed to providing a safe working environment for all and in particular, to eliminating sexual
harassment against women in the workplace. Your Campany is very sensitive to any complaints related to sexual
harassment and has a well-defined policy on the prevention of sexual harassment against women in the
workplace.

During FY24, your Company received 28 complaints under the sexual harassment category. All these complaints
were investigated and 24 were closed. The investigation of the remaining four complaints is in progress and the
same will be closed within the prescribed timelines. Your Company is compliant with respect to making the
requisite filings with the competent authority in this regard.

further, your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

In addition, 20,971 employees were certified on Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH} via an e-learning module
and Annual Compliance Exercise (ACE) and 109 training sessions were conducted through various interventions

like new employee induction, refresher training and digital platforms.

NAME OF COMPANIES THAT HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR, ALONG WITH REASONS THERECGF
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No Company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary, joint venture or associate Company of your Company
during the year.

MAX LIFE PENSION FUND MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Max Life Pension Fund Management Limited {“Max Life PFM”), a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company, holds
both Pension Fund Management {PFM} and Point of Presence {PoP) licenses under the National Pension System
{NPS) architecture from the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority {PFRDA). Being a licensed PoP,
Max Life PFM can distribute NPS accounts in both retail and corporate NPS segments and can provide servicing to
public at large. The financial year 2023-24 marked Max Life PFM's first full financial year of operations, during
which it achieved an AUM of Z576 Cr and a subscriber base of 8,416. This perfermance demonstrates its strong
financial management and growing market presence.

GENERATING INSURANCE AWARENESS AMONG CUSTOMERS

Buring FY24, Max Life continued its commitment to fostering a financially secure nation through its Insurance
Awareness program, building on previous initiatives while introducing new strategic focuses. The program,
consisting of four targeted campaigns to address specific aspects of financial well-being and social equity, aligning
with the Company's mission to ensure a secured financial future for all.

These campaigns include:
o (Create awareness on the benefits of life insurance
e Focus on protection against fraudulent activities
» Campaigns for customer engagement
e Campaign for the underprivileged, rural and socially backward communities

A central theme emphasized throughout the program was the impaortance of life insurance in ensuring financial
well-being, with specific attention given to term insurance and retirement planning. These initiatives significantly
increased awareness about life insurance among the target audience, reflecting in the enhancement of the brand
consideration score from 71 in FY23 to 75 as of March 31, 2024.

Create awareness on the benefits of life insurance

Max Life is deeply committed to spreading awareness about the critical role of life insurance in financial planning
and security, Through a multifaceted approach encompassing social media, public relations, knowledge
dissemination and engagement with government initiatives, your Company aims to educate individuals across
india about the benefits of life insurance. This helps your Company maintain transparency, customer-centricity
and equity in its approach.

Recognizing the power and reach of social media, Max Life leverages different platforms such as Twitter,
Instagram, Facebook and Linkedln to disseminate valuable information about life insurance. During FY24, your
Company's social media campaigns reached z significant number of digital natives, totaling 7,32,06,314 individuals
through 219 engaging posts including images, text and videos on social media platforms.

Max Life also places a strong emphasis on leveraging public relations (PR} strategies to enhance insurance
awareness among our target audience. Through thought-provoking articles published in leading publications such
as Mint, Dainik Bhaskar, Vir Arjun and Divya Rashtra, your Company continues to highlight key topics relevant to
consumers from a life insurance perspective. In FY24, your Company focused on topics like retirement planning,
guiding individuals on how to prepare for their second innings effectively.
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With an endeavour to ensure comprehensive understanding of life insurance and the significance in achieving
financial goals, Max Life regularly updates its knowledge centre on both corporate and third-party websites.
During the year, your Company published a total of 241 articles on our company website and 405 articles on third-
party platforms, expanding its total reach to 69,00,000. These articles covered essential topics such as Mediclaim,
Pension Paying Order (PPQ) and other pertinent aspects of insurance, contributing to greater awareness among
the public.

As part of its commitment to national initiatives aimed at expanding insurance coverage, Max Life actively
participates in the State Insurance Plan (SIP) program initiated by the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India (IRDAI). In this regard, your Company organized a Lead Insurer meeting with officials from the
Uttar Pradesh government in Lucknow to review SIP activities in the state. Additionally, your Company conducted
an insurance awareness workshop at the district level in Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh, where teachers and students at
Composite School in Barnawa were educated about the importance of insurance and introduced to various
insurance instruments.

Mareover, Max Life has been diligently tracking India's Protection Quotient (IPQ) over the past six years, providing
crucial insights into urban India's financial preparedness. Starting with a baseline score of 35 in 2019, the IPQ has
shown consistent growth over time. This annual survey reflects a shifting attitude towards financial security.
Successive editions, including IPQ 2.0, IPQ 3.0, and IPQ. 5.0, saw steady increases, with scores reaching 35, 39, and
43 respectively. The sixth edition of the IPQ achieved a notable score of 45, marking an impressive 10-point
increase over five years.

Campalgn on fraud protection and prevention among consumers

Max Life recognizes the growing threat posed by fraudulent activities within the life insurance sector and is
committed to safeguarding the interests of its stakeholders. In response to the rising incidence of fraud, Max Life
conducts various programs on fraud awareness and prevention. Buring FY24, your Company distributed nine
emails and six SMS alerts to consumers, providing them with essential information to avoid falling victim to
fraudulent schemes. These communications highlighted common tactics employed by fraudsters and offered
practical guidance on how to recognize and respond to suspicious activities, Additionally, Max Life engaged in
email and SMS campaigns for educating customers on fraud awareness, delivering nine emails with an open rate
of 23.79% and six SMS with a click rate of 28.38% to the entire active customer base.

Furthermore, your Company conducted fraud awareness sessions across various geographical locations, engaging
over 2,300 employees in discussions about the importance of vigilance and adherence to security protocols. In
branches, your Company covered a total of 182 awareness sessions in FY24, along with 67 awareness
communications digitally, reaching all HO and GO locations and encompassing 5,635 employees.

Moreover, Max Life leverages its social media platforms to amplify the message of fraud prevention and
awareness to a wider audience. Throughout the year, your Company shared 30 posts across its social media
channels, including Instagram, Facebook, and Twitter, focused on educating users about staying vigilant through
authentication methods and enhancing password security. Through engaging content and interactive formats,
your Company aims to empower individuals with the knowledge and tools needed to protect themselves from
fraudulent activities online.

Campaigns for customer engagement

Max Life is committed to enhancing customer satisfaction through various engaging initiatives, including the Max
Life Super Customer Week. This event, conducted through digital mailers and SMS, featured 'a comprehensive
series of 12 emailers and 12 SMS messages sent to our esteemed customers. Impressively, these communications
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achieved a remarkable 23.3% open rate for emails and an impressive 26.41% click rate for SMS, indicating strong
customer engagement and interest.

Additionally, as part of our broader customer education efforts, Max Life conducted targeted email and SMS
campaigns throughout the year. A total of 32 emailers and 17 SMS were distributed to our customers, providing
valuable insights and information on various aspects of life insurance. These initiatives yielded positive results,
with an open rate of 23.01% for emails and a robust 25.55% click rate for SMS, demonstrating the effectiveness
of our engagement strategies in delivering relevant and impactful content to its valued customers.

Campaign for the underprivileged, rural and socially backward

In line with its commitment to promoting financial inclusion and social equity, Max Life conducts targeted
campaigns to extend insurance awareness to underserved communities in rural and socially backward regions.

In partnership with two prominent non-governmental organizations {NGOs), your Company conducted targeted
initiatives to enhance financial literacy and insurance awareness among marginalized populations in Haridwar
{Uttarakhand), Purbi Singhbhum (Jharkhand) and Varanasi (Uttar Pradesh}.

Through a series of mass gatherings and community ouireach events, Max Life is bringing insurance awareness
directly to the doorstep of underserved populations. These campaigns serve as platforms for interactive
discussions, educational workshops and awareness-building activities designed to demystify insurance concepts
and empower individuals to make informed financial decisions.

The campaigns helped your Company to reach more than 59,000 direct beneficiaries and 10.28 lacs indirect
beneficiaries reached during FY24.

Contributing to IRDAI's Vision of “Insurance for All by 2047”7

In addition to the insurance awareness campaigns, Max Life undertook multiple activities to contribute to the
IRDAl's initiative to ensure life insurance coverage for every Indian by 2047 through the State Insurance Plan
during FY24.

In Q2 FY24, Max Life participated in the Greater Noida Trade Expo event, effectively showcasing the concept of
the State Insurance Plan through comprehensive stall design and engaging customer interactions. Additionally,
your Company organized a dedicated one-hour session on insurance, involving key state functionaries such as
Finance Minister Mr. Suresh Khanna, Minister of Industrial Development Mr. Nand Gopal Gupta, and Minister of
MSME Mr. Rakesh Sachan. This event facilitated informative discussions on insurance for MSMEs, offering
valuable insights into its benefits and its pivotal role in mitigating business risks.

in Q3 FY24, Max Life organized a Lead Insurer meeting with officials from the Uttar Pradesh government in
Lucknow to evaluate the progress of the State Insurance Plan (SIP) initiatives in the state. Additionally, Max Life
conducted a district-level insurance awareness workshop in Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh. This workshop aimed to
educate teachers and students at Composite School in Barnawa about the significance of insurance coverage and
introduced them to various insurance options available.

In Q4 FY24, Max Life organized a virtual State Level Insurance Committee (SLIC) meeting with IRDAI officials and
representatives from other insurance companies operating in Arunachal Pradesh. The meeting focused on
partnering with NGOs, healthcare workers (AASHA), Gram Sevaks, etc., to raise awareness and enhance insurance
penetration in rural areas. Discussions also revolved around collaborating with Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) and
other banks to premote the Pradhan Mantri leevan Jyoti Bima Yojana {PMJIBY), a government-sponsored life
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insurance plan for the underprivileged.

Furthermare, under the new guidelines of IRDAI (Rural, Social Sector, and Motor Third Party Obligations)
Regulations, 2024, Gram Panchayats serve as the unit for rural sector measurement, mandating insurance
companies to conduct awareness activities at this level. In line with this, Max Life organised an insurance
awareness activity and need assessment workshop at Gram Panchayat — Pahlari, District Uttar Pradesh, in March
2024, as part of the State Insurance Plan agenda. The workshop saw the participation of 25 Seif-help Group (SHG)
members, who gained insights into insurance needs, income sources, and local demographics. The SHGs
elucidated the importance and benefits of insurance, introduced Max Life, and suggested various insurance
products to the attendees.

ENVIRONMENT, SUSTAINABILITY AND GOVERNANCE {ESG) AT MAX LIFE

The increased use of resources is the main driver for the triple planetary crisis i.e. climate change, biadiversity loss
and pollution®. This takes our focus on how important it is to judiciously use the resources. Thus, responsible and
sustainable production and consumption of resources is of utmost priority. At Max Life, we use energy efficient
technologies, invest in emission reduction strategies and strive for effective waste and water management. We
encourage employees to reduce their individual consumption patterns as well.

Despite the Paris Agreement of 2015 reaching a milestone in cooperation amongst countries to limit global
warming to 1.5° C, the pace of action has not been adequate to achieve the goal. The signatories to the Paris
Agreement, including India, have submitted their Intended Nationally Determined Contributions (INDCs) and India
has made the commitment to achieve the net zero target by 2070. Taking this goal at the corporate level, Max
Life has committed to reduce carbon.emissicns by 80% by 2028,

in the recent past, conscious investors have been on the rise across the country and worldwide who are not only
concerned with financial disclosures, but also the non-financial disclosures of a company. Nowadays, every board
room discusses and deliberates on aspects related to £5SG. While this trend has been started as a result of the
need to abide by the statutory obligations, but the companies have started to overhaul their business structure
to integrate sustainability at all levels. Corporates are expected to embrace ESG criteria not just for compliance or
as risk management tool but as a chance to fundamentally transform their business model into a sustainable one.

At Max Life, we keenly take note of the developments occurring in the ESG space and the best practices followed
by companies to advance the £5G framework. This year, Max Life received the following rewards and recognitions
for its ESG practices:

» Recognition by the Economic Times, as one of the Sustainable Organisation, 2023 for adopting Valuable
Sustainable Practices.

e MSME Chamber of Commerce and Industry of India gave the recognition of Best Business Eca-friendly
Award to Max Life {e-waste management).

» Sustainability Report, 2022-23 was rewarded by League of American Communications Professionals in the
platinum category.

We have actively taken efforts for the tree plantation drive and to raise awareness of financial literacy among
communities. Further, to sustain a robust corporate governance structure, emphasis is laid on the compaosition of
directors, including the right mix of executive, non-executive and independent directors, the process to adhere to
a proper and effective flow of information and maintaining diversity to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

! The Global Resource Qutlook, 2024
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We have taken proactive efforts to embed ESG in our culture and imbibe it as a way of doing business rather than
looking at it as a mere regulatory requirement. For this, we have conducted several healthy dialogues with
employees, especially the internal stakeholders and the Board, to sensitise them about the importance of ESG.
We Jaunched campaign named #Insure Earth where several activities were designed to raise awareness on
recycling of e-waste, upcycling of old t-shirts to reusable cloth bags, segregation of dry and wet waste and on how
to reduce carbon footprint.

The four pillars of our ESG framework continue to be:
e Working Ethically and Sustainably
e Care for People and the Community
Financial Responsibility
¢  Green Operations

Working Ethically and Sustainably

Your Company has an ESG Steering Commitiee comprising of the CEQ as the Chair aiong with the CFO, CIO, COO,
CPO and General Counsel, Company Secretary and Head-Sustainability as the members of the said committee.

Max Life's governing committees and governing policies guide the organisation and the employees in their roles
and responsibilities. Max Life has a robust mechanism for grievance addressing for employees, consisting of a
listening platform, an ethics hotline and disciplinary action policies.

Max Life has a robust cyber security framework in line with regulatory requirements by IRDAI and the Indian IT
laws. Max Life is certified on international standards 1SO 27001 and 150 22301 for information security and
business continuity respectively.

Max Life follows robust security practices to protect Personal Information in accordance with the information
security and data privacy policy approved by the management. Our privacy policy is available on our website and
compliant with the regulatory requirements.

The key to sustainable business is a robust corporate governance framewaork and adherence to ethical business
practices. This method enables us to effectively communicate with both internal and external stakeholders,
control risk, and foster innovation across the work streams and activities. We constantly work towards earning
our customers’ trust as their preferred financial partner and ensuring their financial security. With this vision
guiding us, we hope to positively impact the nation and propel sustainable growth in our local communities,

Care for People and Community

People are the hedrock of Max Life’s success. Building a progressive organisation driven by our purpose of
‘Inspiring people to increase the value of their life’, remains our North Star. Diversity, equity and inclusion are at
the heart of our operations and we had encouraging results this year deploying enabling programmes and
initiatives achieving a diversity ratio of 27%. We will continue to strive in our journey to create a workplace that
is diverse and inclusive, where every individual can thrive and grow. Our CSR programmes include several
community development programmes that positively impact society. We value societal rights and see it as our
responsibility to uphold them. We ensure that people will benefit most from our social activities.

Financial Responsibility

Max Life has a financial obligation to meet our customers’ needs for long-term protection and savings, while
protecting the interests of other stakeholders. We are conscious of the potential influence that our investments
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may have on people’s lives. To encourage sustainable behaviour that will lead to the creation of wealth, we believe
that we must take ESG concerns inte account while making investment decisions. We have formulated stringent
procedures over the past few years to engage with investee companies on their governance standards under our
Stewardship Code of Conduct. We also engage with our customers regularly to address their issues and provide
them with best-in-class services. '

Green Operations

We ensure appropriate measures are taken to address key areas of concern within the organisation to reduce
our environmental footprint. Through internal operations, we engage in addressing issues such as waste
management, water conservation, emissions reduction and energy conservation. We also aim to promote best
practices across our communities in order to tackle the key issues pertaining to climate change. We released
internal ‘Guidelines far organizing sustainable event and merchandising’ to ensure that there is sustainable use
of resources to organise events.

By targeting major impact areas within the organisation, we ensure that the necessary steps are taken to address
environmental concerns and climate change risks. Qur energy management, waste management, water
conservation, and emissions reduction efforts contribute towards India’s circular economy.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company and its directors firmly believe that the ultimate objective of Max Life is to contribute to the well-
being of the society in which it operates. While your Company is focused on education, healthcare, environment
protection, financial literacy and insurance awareness, our employees volunteer initiatives saw great impetus
driving various CSR activities across the country.

During FY24, Max Life supported 13 leading NGOs towards education, benefiting 26,902 children directly.
Additionally, the following were reached out indirectly through our NGO partners:

e Through Education Alliance - more than 1.6 Cr. students across 4 states (Delhi, Madhya Pradesh, Tripura
& Punjab)

e Through Simple Education Foundation - 20 lakh students in Delhi

e Through Labhya Foundation - 25 lakh students in Uttarakhand, Belhi and Tripura

e  Madhi Foundation - 27 takh students in Tamil Nadu

Through these NGOs, support was also provided for the training of 34 fellows, 4.37 lakh teachers, and 3680
community members.

Intending to participate in and contribute to diverse community service initiatives, Max Life Insurance CSR, Pehal,
continued with significant momentum in FY24. Overall, through various initiatives under Pehal, the Company was
able to positively impact approximately 1.5 lakh beneficiaries across the country and successfully complete 3
independent environment projects including reviving a pond and planting 15000 trees

The obligatory spend for FY24 was INR 4.31 Cr. and the company went above the minimum spend and spent an
additional discretionary amount of INR 5.69 Cr., thereby arriving at a total spend of 10 Cr.

Financial Literacy and Insurance Awareness

Max Life partnered with United Way Chennai and Saaras Foundation to work in Haridwar (Uttarakhand}, Purbi
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Singhbhum {Iharkhand) and Varanasi {Uttar Pradesh). The project trained 133 citizens from the local community
to enrol eligible citizens into government welfare and insurance schemes, thus positively impacting 59134 direct
heneficiaries with a total outreach to ~10.3 lakh citizens.

Environment Conservation

Max Life carried oui 3 independent projects under this theme:

1. Pond Revival: We partnerad with SEEDS (Sustainable Environment & Ecological Development Saciety) and
Gurugram Metropolitan Development Authority (GMDA) to revive a dried pond in Jharsa village in
Gurugram.

2. Mission 10,000 trees — Our employees participated in planting 10,000 trees in partnership with the Police
Training Academy in Bhondsi village and GMDA, Cadets of the academy took the responsibility of caring
for the trees in the long term.

3. Metro greening project with Gurugram Metropolitan Development Authority (GMDA): The greening
and maintenance work of the central verge of the 4.5 km stretch from IFFCO Chowk, Gurugram to the
Delhi border was completed as per plan. A total of 1350 saplings were planted during this period.

Joy of Giving — Employee volunteering activities: Our employees gain a sense of purpose when they volunteer
for a social cause. Enabling social impact through volunteerism not only helps them feel more connected,
productive and purposeful hut also drives happier, more engaged humans.

Some of the key highlights under ‘Joy of Giving’ in FY “24:
s 50+ volunteering activities were conducted under the themes of Education, Environment, Healthcare and
Financial Literacy.
o Positively impacted 60,200 beneficiaries {including children, women, the elderly, people with disabilities)

In fine with the requirements under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company contributed INR 10
crore towards these CSR activities during FY24 through its execution partner, Max India Foundation and through
the Company directly. The detailed Annual Report on the CSR activities undertaken by your Company is placed in
Annexure Il

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has an optimum combination of executive, non-executive and independent directors on its
Board, which comprises 1 executive director, 7 non—executive (non-independent) directors (including one
woman director) and 4 independent directors as at the end of FY24. Your Company believes that a well-informed
and independent Board is essential to ensuring the high standards of corporate governance. Your Company has
had a woman Director on its Board even before this became a mandatory requirement and continues to benefit
from a diversified board composition.

Max Life’s corporate governance philosophy stems from its belief that corporate governance is an integral element
in managing the Company’s operations and growth as well as enhancing investors’ confidence. The Company’s
corporate governance philosophy is set out as follows:

“As o good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on compliance,
openness, fairness, professionalism and accountability in building the confidence of its various stakeholders,
including policyholders, distributors, shareholders, regulator and employees, thereby paving the way for its long-
term sustainable success.”

The Company’s corporate governance philosophy is based on the following principles:
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e Satisfying the spirit and not just the letter of the law.

e Going beyond the law in upholding corporate governance standards.

»  Driving the business on the basis of the belief that 'when in doubt, disclose’.

»  Maintaining transparency and a high degree of disclosure.

e  Making a clear distinction between personal convenience and corporate resources.

o Communicating externally in a truthful manner about the Company’s financial results and operational
practices.

e Having a simple and transparent corporate structure driven by business needs.

o Embracing a trusteeship model in which the Management is the trustee of the shareholders' and
policyholders’ funds.

Your Company believes in sustainable corporate growth that emanates from the top leadership down through
the organisation to the various stakeholders, which is reflected in its sound financial system, enhanced
market reputation and improved efficiency. Our corporate structure, business, operations and disclosure
practices have been strictly aligned with our corparate governance philosophy. Transparency, accountability,
fair treatment of policyholders and open communication with all our stakeholders are integral te our
functioning.

For Max Life, adherence to corporate governance stems not only from the letter of the law but also from our
inherent belief in doing business the right way. Corporate governance encompasses practically every sphere
of management in your Company, from action plans and internal controls to performance measurement and
corporate disclosures.

Your Company remains committed to excellence in its corporate governance and recognises that it is the result
of value-driven leadership and high standards of accountability, transparency and ethics across your Company.

Further, your Company confirms that we are compliant with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Insurance Act, 1938 and the Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI.

In line with the requirements under the IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines {‘Guidelines’} issued by [RDAI
dated May 18, 2016 and subsequent amendments till date as applicable at the end of FY24, the required
disclosures are made in Annexure |.

Your Company’s commitment to corporate governance is also reflected in the compaosition and structure of its
Board of Directors, as enumerated in Annexure |,

Your Company believes in implementing the highest standards of governance and transparency across all spheres
of its operations, be itin the areas of disclosure, compliance, dealing with stakeholders, including its customers,
vendors and employees or paying back to society through CSR initiatives. Your Company gives utmost importance
to regulatory and statutory compliance and in this pursuit, it has implemented an automated Compliance
Management System (COMS) across all of its corporate functions and in all the offices across India, thereby
establishing accountability and ownership and strengthening the compliance culture across the organisation.

BOARD OF BIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

There were conscious efforts to continue to strengthen the Board of Directors in terms of its diversity,
effectiveness and corporate governance. The following changes were made in the board composition of your
Company:
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1. Mr. Analjit Singh has resigned from the chairmanship and directorship of the Company with effect from end
of the day on December 4, 2023.

2. Mr. Rajiv Anand, Non-executive Director of the Company, has been designated as the Chairman of the
Company w.e.f December 5, 2023, in line with the nomination received from Axis Bank Limited.

3. Mr. V. Viswanand has ceased to hold the office of Deputy Managing Director and a member on the Board of
Directors of the Company on the expiry of his tenure under the employment contract i.e. on completion of the
business hours on December 31, 2023.

4, Mr. Prashant Tripathy has been re-appointed as the Managing Director & CEO of the Company for the period
of 5 years from January 1, 2024 till December 31, 2028.

5. Mr. Pradeep Pant has been re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a second
term of 5 {five) consecutive years with effect from February 7, 2024 till February 6, 2029,

6. Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f end of the
day on March 31, 2024, on expiry of his tenure upon completion of two consecutive terms of five years as an
independent Director of the Company.

7. Mr. Jai Arya has been appointed as an Additional Director in the Independent category of the Company with
effect fram April 1, 2024 to hold office up to the date of the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company.

8. Mr. Munish Sharda has been appointed in the Non-Executive category of the Company with effect from April
29, 2024 to hold office up to the date of the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company.

9. Mr. Arjun Chowdhry has been appointed in the Non-Executive category of the Company with effect from April
29, 2024 to hold office up to the date of the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Jai Arya is an eminent personality with integrity and have significant expertise
and experience and proficiency that has strengthen the overall composition of the Board, With regard to his
proficiency, it shall be noted that Mr. Jai Arya is exempted from passing the online proficiency self-assessment test
in terms of the provisions of Rule 6{4) of the Companies {Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Further, the appointment of Mr. Jai Arya as an Independent Director of the Company is in line with the terms of
Regulation 24 of SEB! (LODR) Regulations, which provides to have at least one common independent director with
Max Financial Services Ltd. (holding company).

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Prashant Kumar Tripathy, Mr. Mohit Talwar
and Mr. Sahil Vachani shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment in

the ensuing annual general meeting.

A resolution seeking the re-appointment of Mr. Prashant Kumar Tripathy, Mr. Mohit Talwar and Mr. Sahil Vachani
has been included in the notice convening the forthcoming annual general meeting of your Company.

The details regarding the number of meetings of the Board and its Committees as required under Section
134(3){b} of the Companies Act, 2013 also form a part of Annexurel.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL {‘KMP’) U/S SECTION 203 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2023-24, the following employees of your Company held the position of key managerial
personnel:

a) Mr. Prashant Tripathy as Managing Director and CEQ;

b) *Mr. V. Viswanand as Deputy Managing Director (Whole-time director) till completion of the
husiness hours on December 31, 2023;

c) Mr, Amrit Pal Singh as Chief Financial Officer;
d} Mr. Anurag Chauhan as Company Secretary.
*Mr. V. Viswanand ceased to be associated with the Company with effect from January 1, 2024
CHARTER OF BOARD AND VARIOUS COMMITTEES AS A MEASURE OF INTERNAL GOVERNANCE

With a view to follow sound corporate practices based on compliance, openness, fairness, professionalism and
accountability in building the confidence of its various stakeholders, your Company has adopted the charter of the
Board, which defines the respective roles, responsibilities and authorities of the Board of Directors (both
individually and collectively) and of the Management in setting the direction, management and control of the
Company.

Further, each committee of the Board operates within its own defined charter, which sets out the specific roles
and responsibilities of each committee. The committees are constituted to discharge their statutory duties and
responsibilities as required under various applicable laws as may be amended from time to time. Each
committee has a board-approved charter to ensure oversight of important policy issues outside the main
board meetings.

The charter of the Board and Committees are reviewed at periodic intervals.
ANNUAL EVALUATION

For FY24, the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, the committees, individual directors,
including independent directors and the chairman has been carried out in line with requirements under the
Companies Act, 2013. This was carried out by obtaining feedback from all directors through an online survey
mechanism/ hard copy questionnaires. The outcome of the said performance evaluation was placed before
the nomination and remuneration committee of your Company and the Board on May 2", 2024 and May 7",
2024 respectively.

In addition, the independent directors met separately without the attendance of non-independent directars
and members of management, wherein they discussed and reviewed the performance of non-independent
directors, the Board as a whole and the chairman of the Company. They further assessed the quality, quantity
and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board. Overall, the
independent directors expressed their satisfaction with the performance and effectiveness of the Board,
individual non-independent board members, and the chairman, as well as with the quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between the Company management and the Board.
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A STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (7) OF SECTION
149 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Your Company has received declarations from the independent directors of the Company confirming that:

i) They meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

i) They have duly complied with the provisions of sub-rules (1) and (2} of Rule 6 of the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, i.e. inclusion of their names in the databank for
independent directors.

DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS REGARDING FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA AS PRESCRIBED UNDER IRDAI
REGULATIONS

All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria as prescribed under
regulation 5.3 of the IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines,

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY U/S 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

All the related-party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis
and were in the ordinary course of business. The requisite disclosure of the related party transactions has been
made in the notes to accounts of your Company’s financial statements for FY24. [n addition, the particulars of
contracts or arrangements as entered into with related parties of your Company are enclosed herewith in the
prescribed format, i.e. Form AQC-2, as Annexure HI.

ANNUAL RETURN AS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION {3} OF SECTION 92 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In line with the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the annual return for FY24 is placed on the wehsite of the Company,
which can be viewed on web-link:

htips://www.maxlifeinsurance.com/eontent/dam/corporate/public-disclosures/2023-24/Q4-FY-23-
24/8nnual Return FY 2023-24.odf

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR
DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS
PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 178 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND IRDAI GUIDELINES ON
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONSOF INSURERS DATED JUNE 30, 2023

Your Company has a relevant framework and a nomination and remuneration policy as required under Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Insurance Act, 1938, Guidelines issued by IRDAl on remuneration of Directors
and Key Managerial Persons of Insurers dated 30" June 2023. Any shareholder, interested in obtaining a copy of
the policy may obtain it from the official website of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
enclosed herewith as Annexure IV.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Your Company, in a meeting held on February 6, 2024, appeinted M/s Chandrasekaran Associates, Company
Secretaries, Delhi, to conduct a secretarial audit for FY24 as per the requirement under Section 204 of the

Companies Act, 2013. M/s Chandrasekaran Associates has shared its report for FY24 in the prescribed format,
i.e. form no. MR-3, which is enclosed herewith as Annexure V for your reference.
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DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION, DISCLAIMERS AND ADVERSE REMARKS
{a} Statutory Audit
Joint Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s. B. K. Khare and Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s. S.R. Batlibai & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, have no qualification, reservation, disclaimers or adverse remarks in their joint auditors’
report for FY24,
{b) Secretarial Audit
W/s. Chandrasekaran Asscciates, Company Secretaries, Delhi, Secretarial Auditors of the Company, have no
qualification, reservation, disclaimers or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report for FY24. The said report
is enclosed for reference - as Annexure V.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SECURITIES:

The status of dematerialisation of equity shares of the Company as of March 31, 2024, is given below:

Mode of holding % to paid-up capital
Electronic 100.00% (approx.)
Physical 0.00% (approx.}
Total 100.00% {approx.)

Further, the non-convertible debentures issued by the Company on August 2, 2021, are in dematerialised form.
The Company confirms that the entire holding of securities of its promoters, directors and key managerial
personnel is in dematerialised form and the same is in line with Rule 9A of the Companies {Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014,

SHAREHOLDERS DIVIDEND

No dividend was declared or paid during FY24 by your Company.

PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

In August 2021, your Company has issued the 4960 number of Non-convertible debentures of INR 10,00,000 each
@ 7.50% annual interest and raised INR 496.00 crore. The said debentures are listed on National Stock Exchange

of India Limited.

During FY24, the Company has paid an interest of INR 37.2 crore to the debenture holders.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 2013 ACT

In accordance with Section 186{11)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with clarification issued by the Ministry
of Corperate Affairs on February 13, 2015, Section 186 does not apply to an Insurance Company. Accordingly, your
Company does not have any loan given, investment made, guarantee given, or security provided as required under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT

In terms of the share subscription agreement dated August 9, 2023 entered between the Company and Axis Bank
Limited (“Axis Bank”) and in accordance with the approvals received from the Reserve Bank of India, Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India, the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority and the
Competition Commission of India, your Company has allotted 14,25,79,161 (Fourteen Crore Twenty Five Lakhs
Seventy Nine Thousand One Hundred Sixty One} no. of fully paid-up equity shares of the Company to Axis Bartk on
April 17, 2024 on a preferential basis at INR 113.06/- per equity share including a share premium of Rs. 103.06/-
per equity share, being the fair market value of shares determined using the discounted cash flow method, for an
aggregate investment up to ~ INR 1612 Crores in the Company,

it shall be noted that the aforesaid infusion will help the Company to support its future growth ambitions, to
augment its capital position and to improve solvency margins. The same will also highlight Axis Bank’s commitment
towards building a stronger franchise.

Ddring the year, there were no material changes and/or commitments that had an effect on the financial position
of the Company, except as mentioned elsewhere in this report.

DETAELS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IVIPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN THE FUTURE

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status or the Company’s operations during the year as well as in the future.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

The joint statutory auditors of the Company viz. M/s B.K. Khare and Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s S.R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, have been appointed in the 23 AGM for a period of one year till the
conclusion of 24™ Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and for a period of five years till the conclusion of 28" AGM
respectively. M/s B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, shall retire at the conctusion of the ensuing AGM,

M/s B.K. Khare and Co., Chartered Accountants, have provided services as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the last 9years and they are proposed to be re-appointed for the period of one (1) year from the conclusion of
the ensuing 24" AGM till the conclusion of the 25% AGM to be held in FY26.

The Company has received the required declarations, consent letters and eligibility certificates from M/s B.K.
Khare and Co. for its re-appointment and from M/s S.R. Batliboi and Co. LLP for its continuation of holding office
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as statutory auditor of the Company. The Joint Statutory Auditors have confirmed that their re-appointment/
continuation as auditors, if made, shall be in accordance with the conditions laid down in the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder, including the criteria provided in Sections 141 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines.

Competence and Experience of Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors®

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

The firm, 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, was found as S. R. Batliboi & Co, Chartered Accountants by Sohrab Rustom Batliboi
in 1914. With a strong legacy of over 100 years and its humble origins in the great city of Kolkata, the firm has
offices across key cities in India. The firm caters to clients across diverse market segments including Industrial,
Infrastructure, Consumer Products, Financial Services, Technology, Media and Entertainment and
Telecommunications,

S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP is ted by a robust team comprising 25 Partners with rich experience, focused on providing
high-quality audits, integrated with strong technical expertise, technology and data driven insights.

BK Khare & Co

B.K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, is an old standing professional services firm in the field of Assurance,
Direct Tax, Transfer Pricing, Indirect Tax and Risk Advisory.

Mrs. Padmini Khare Kaicker is the Managing Partner of the firm and is supported by 20 partners and directors
supported by over 150+ associates, Established in 1955 by Late Mr. B. K. Khare, a statesman in the [ndian

accounting and tax profession, B.K. Khare & Co. has grown to become a prestigious firm.

Chandrasekaran Associates

M/s. Chandrasekaran Associates, is a firm of Company Secretaries having practical experience spanning over 25
years.

The form has been offering its professional services to corporate giants and listed enterprises in several sectors
such as Information Technology, Telecom, Manufacturing, Develapers, insurance, Fast Moving Consumer Goods,
Hotel, Travel, Food, Pharma, Home Furnishers, Tebacco besides public sector enterprises and therefore it is a
sector agnostic firm.

A The information is extracted from the official website of the Auditors
DIRECTORS’ RESPONMSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Board of Directors of your Company confirms that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards were followed along with a2 proper explanation relating to material
departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies, applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of your Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that
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period;

¢} The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of your
Company and preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going-concern basis;

e} The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal
financial controls were adequate and operating effectively; and

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

No frauds have been reported by the auditors of your Company to the Audit Committee or the Board under
Section 143{12} of the Companies Act, 2013.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records for the services rendered by the Company, as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not required.

DETAILS OF THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Name of the Debenture Trustee: IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Contact details of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as notified to the Company as of date:
Address: Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai — 400 001
Phone: 022 40807000

Contact Person: Mr. Aditya Kapil

e-mail: its|@idbitrustee.com

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is as follows:

A Conservation of energy NA
B. Technology absorption As provided elsewhere
in the report
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C. Foreign Exchange Earnings/Inflow and Qutflow Year ended

31.03.2023

(INR crore)
Earnings/Inflow {including equity infusion) 70.00 Crores
Cutgo 38.53 Crores

Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase | NA
exports, develop new export markets, export plans, etc.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks to valued customers for their continued
patronage.

Further, the board of directors wishes to place on record their deap appreciation for the hard work, dedicated
efforts, teamwork and professionalism shown by its employees and agent advisors, its corporate agents and other
intermediaries, channel partners and vendors, which have enabled your Company to establish itself amongst the
leading private life insurance companies in India.

Your directors also express gratitude to the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, the Reserve
Bank of India, Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority of India, the Central and State Governments,
the co-promoters, Max Financial Services Limited, Axis Bank Limited, Axis Capital Limited and Axis Securities
Limited, for their continued cooperation, support and assistance.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
RA_”V Digitally signed
by RAJIV ANAND
A NA N D Date: 2024.05.07
14:33:44 +05'30
Rajiv Anand

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
DIN: 02541753

Date: May 7, 2024
Place: Gurugram
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“Certification for compliance of the Corporate Governance Guidelines”

|, Anurag Chauhan, hereby certify that Max Life Insurance Company Limited has complied with the
corporate governance guidelines for Insurance Companies as amended from time to time and
nothing has been concealed or suppressed.

wh,
-

Anurag Chauhan
Company Secretary
(Membership No, F9833)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 7, 2024
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Annexure 1: Disclosures as per the Corporate Governance Guidelines
Following are the disclosures as mandated by the Corporate Governance Guidelines:

a. Board of Directors: The Board of Directors (individually and collectively} is responsible to act in the
best interest of the Company, its Policyholders and Shareholders. tn discharging their dutigs, the
Directors comply with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board. The Directors attend and
actively participate in Board meetings and Committee meetings in which they are members.

The Board of Directors primarily reviews the Company’s strategic direction and annual financial
plan, monitors Company's performance, counsels management on business related matters,
monitors and manages potential conflict of interests between management, Board and
shareholders, approving frameworks and policies and monitors their implementation, monitors the
effectiveness of Company’s governance practices, provide oversight of the integrity of financial
information and that of legal & compliance related matters.

During FY24, the Board of Directors met five times as follows and the time gap hetween two
successive Board meetings did not exceed 120 days:

e May12, 2023

@

August 9, 2023

October 31, 2023

December 4, 2023

February 5 2024, adjourned and reconvened on February 6, 2024

Number of Board meetings held and attended by the Directors during FY ended March 31, 2024
and the attendance of directors at the Annual General Meeting {AGM) held during FY24:

Name of the Director Designhation No. of *No. of Board 23" Annual
Board Meetings General Meeting
Meetings attended held on May 12,
held 2023
Attended:
Yes/No
Mr. Rajiv Anand # Chalrman, Non- 5 4 No
executive Director
Mr. Analjit Singh # Chairman, Non- 4 4 Yes
executive Director
Mr. Prashant Tripathy | Managing Director 5 5 Yes
& CEO




Mr. V. Viswanand # Deputy Managing 4 4 Yes
Director :

Mr. Girish Srikrishna independent, 5 5 Yes

Paranjpe Non-executive
Director

Mr. K. Narasimha independent, 5 5 Yes

Murthy # Non-executive
Director

Ms, Marielle Theron Non-executive 5 5 Yes
Director

Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda Non-executive 5 5 Yes
Director

Mr. Mohit Talwar Non-executive 5 5 Yes
Director

Mr. Pradeep Pant independent, 5 4 Yes

Non-executive

Director

Mr. Rajesh Khanna independent, 5 5 Yes

Non-executive

Director

Mr. Rajesh  Kumar Non-executive 5 5 Yes

Dahiya Director

Mr. Sahil Vachani Non-executive 5 5 Yes
Director

Mr. Subrat Mohanty Non-executive 5 5 Yes
Director

*Number of meetings which were held during the tenure of the director during FY24.

# 1. Mr. Analjit Singh has resigned from the chairmanship and directorship of the Company with
effect from end of the day on December 4, 2023.

2. Mr. Rajiv Anand, Non-executive Director of the Company, has been designated as the Chairman
of the Company w.e.f December 5, 2023, in line with the nomination received from Axis Bank
Limited.

3. Mr. V. Viswanand has ceased to hold the office of Deputy Managing Director and a member on
the Board of Directors of the Company on the expiry of his tenure under the employment contract
i.e. on completion of the business hours on December 31, 2023.

4. Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company
w.e.fend of the day on March 31, 2024, on expiry of his tenure upon completion of two consecutive
terms of five years as an independent Director of the Company.

5. In line with the terms of Regulation 24 of SEB! {LODR} Regulations, which provides to have at
least one common independent director with Max Financial Services Ltd. {holding company), Mr.
Jai Arya has been appointed as an Additional Director in the Independent category of the Company
with effect from April 1, 2024 to hold office up to the date of the ensuing annual general meeting
of the Company.



Audit Committee: This Committee assists the Company by providing oversight on all matters relating
to financial management and controls, financial accounting, internal & external audit and reporting
& disclosure requirements pertaining to the Audit Committee under applicable laws.

All the members of the Committee are financially literate and/ or have accounting or financial
management expertise/ background. Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy, Chairman of the Committee is a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) and a fellow member of
Institute of Cost & Works Accountants of India (ICWAI) with expertise in financial management and
analysis.

During FY24, the Audit Committee met 4 times as follows:

e May1l, 2023

e August 8,2023

e October 30, 2023

e February 1,2024

Constitution of the Audit Committee, number of meetings held and attended by the Members
during Fy24:

Name of the Member Designation No. of No. of Meetings
Meetings held aitended
Mr. K Narasimha Chairperson, 4 4
Murthy # Independent Non-
executive Director
Mr. Girish Srikrishna Member, Independent 4 4
Paranjpe Non-executive Director
Ms. Marielle Theron Member, Non-executive 4 4
Director
Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda Member, Non-executive 4 4
Director
Mr. Pradeep Pant Member, iIndependent 4 4
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Rajesh Khanna Member, Independent 4 4
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Rajiv Anand Member, Non-executive 4 3
Director

# Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company and
has ceased to hold the directorship and membership of the Audit Committee w.e.f end of the day on
March 31, 2024.

The Committee has been reconstituted to appoint Mr. Jai Arya as a member and to designate Mr.
Girish Srikrishna Paranjpe as the Chairperson of the Committee in place of Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy
w.e.f April 1, 2024,

During FY24, there was no such incident when your Company’s Board of Directors did not accept
any recommendation of the Audit Committee,



Investment Committee: This Committee assists the Company by providing oversight on matters
relating to the investment of assets, including the implementation and review of the Investment
Policy and the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP), investment risks and reporting & disclosure
requirements pertaining to the Investment Committee under applicable laws.

During FY24, the Investment Committee met 4 times as follows:

¢ May 11, 2023

e August§, 2023

e QOctober 30, 2023

e February1, 2024

Constitution of the Investment Committee, number of meetings held and attended by the
Members during FY24:

Name of the Member Designation *No. of No. of Meetings
Meetings attended
Held
Mr. Rajiv Anand Chairperson, 4 3
Non-executive
Director

Mr. Amrit Singh Member, Chief 4 4
Financial Officer

Mr. Jose John Member, 4 4
Appointed
Actuary
Ms. Marielle Theron Member, Non- 4 4
executive

Director

Mr. Mihir Vora # Member, Chief 2 2
Investment
Officer
Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda Member, Non- 4 4
executive
Director
Mr. Prashant Tripathy Member, MD & 4 3
CEO
Mr. Rajesh Khanna Member, 4 4
Independent
Non-executive
Director

Mr. Sachin Bajaj # Member, Chief 2 2
Investment
Officer
Mr. Sachin Saxena Member, Chief 4 4
Risk Officer

Mr. Sahil Vachani Member, Non- 4 2
executive
Director




* Number of meetings which were held during the tenure of the member during FY24.

# 1. Mr. Mibir Vora has ceased to be associated with the Company w.e.f end of the day on
September 30, 2023. The Committee was re-constituted w.e.f October 1, 2023 and Mr. Sachin Bajaj
was appointed as EVP and Head — Investments {Chief Investment Officer of the Company for the
statutory and regulatory purposes) and a member of the Committee in place of Mr. Mihir Vora.

Mpr. Sachin Bajaj attended his first meeting of the Investment Committee on October 30, 2023.

Policyholder Protection Committee (Renamed as Policyholder Protection, Grievance Redressal &
Claims Management Committee}: This Committee assists the Company by providing oversight on
matters relating to Treating Customer Fairly (TCF), multiple performance customer indicators,
Policyholder Service Delivery, Market Conduct, Legal, Regulatory & Compliance matters involving
policyholders’ interest and reporting & disclosure requirements pertaining to Policyholder
Protection Committee under applicable laws.

During FY24, the Policyholder Protection Committee met 4 times as follows:

May 11, 2023

August 8, 2023

Qctober 30, 2023

February 1, 2024

Constitution of the Policyholder Protection Committee, number of meetings held and attended by
the Members during FY ended March 31, 2024:

Name of the Member Designation *No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held attended
Ms. Marielle Theron# Chairperson, 4 4
Non-executive
Director
Mr. Jose John Member, 4 4
Appointed
Actuary
Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda Member, Non- 4 4
executive
Director
Mr. Prashant Tripathy Member, MD & 4 3
CEQC




Mr. Rajesh Khanna Member, 4 4
independent
Non-executive
Director
Mr. Subrat Mohanty Member, Non- 4 4
executive
Director
Mr. V. Viswanand # Mermber, Deputy 3 3
MD

* Number of meetings which were held during the tenure of the member during FY24.

Further, Mr. Kapil Mehta, External Customer Expert, attended all the meetings (4 out of 4) of the
Policyholder Protection Committee held during the FY 24.

# Mr. V. Viswanand ceased 1o be a member of the Committee pursuant to cessation of his office of
Deputy Managing Director and a member on the Board of Directors of the Company on the expiry
of his tenure under the employment contract i.e. on completion of the business hours on Decembrer
31, 2023. The Committee was reconstituted without Mr. V. Viswanand as a member w.e.f January
1, 2024.

2. It shall further be noted that, in terms of the IRDAI {Corporate Governance for Insurers)
Regulations 2024, the existing Policyholder Protection Committee of the Company has been
renamed as the "Policyholder Protection, Grievance Redressal and Claims Monitoring Committee”
and the said Committee has been reconstituted to appoint Mr. Jai Arya, Independent Director of
the Company as a member and the Chairperson of the Committee in place of Ms. Marielle Theran
w.e.fApril 11, 2024.

Ms. Marielle Theron, Non-executive Director continues to hold the membership of the Committee,

Risk, Ethics and Asset Liability Management Committee: This Committee assists the Company by
providing oversight on matters relating to the identification of plans and strategies to mitigate risks
on short term as well as long term basis, Company’s risk management framework, assessment &
evaluation of capital, finance and other operating decisions, fraud monitoring strategy, monitoring
of Company’s risk profile in respect of compliance with applicable laws, Asset Liability Management
(“ALM”) matters and reporting & disclosure requirements pertaining to the Risk, Ethics & ALM
Committee under applicable laws.

During FY24, Risk, Ethics and ALM Committee met 4 times as follows:

May 11, 2023

August 8, 2023

QOctober 30, 2023

February 1, 2024



Constitution of the Risk, Ethics and ALM Committee, number of meetings held and attended by
the Members during FY ended March 31, 2024:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held attended

Mr.  Girish  Srikrishna Chairperson, 4 4
Paranjpe Independent
Non-Executive
Director
Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy Member, 4 4
Independent
Non- Executive
Director
Ms. Marielle Theron Member, Non- 4 4
executive
Director
Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda Member, Non- 4 4
executive
Director
Mr. Prashant Tripathy Member, MD & 4 3
CEQ
Mr. Subrat Mohanty Member, Non- 4 4
executive
Director

Further, Mr. Sachin Saxena, Chief Risk Officer of the Company attended all the meetings {4 out of 4)
of the Risk, Ethics and ALM Committee held during the FY24.

# Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company and
has ceased to hold the directorship and membership of the Risk, Ethics and ALM Committee w.e.f
end of the day an March 31, 2024,

The Committee has been reconstituted to appoint Mr. Jai Arya as a member of the Committee in
place of Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy w.e.f April 1, 2024.

Product & Actuarial Committee: This Committee assists the Company by providing oversight on
matters relating to Products’ design and pricing, Policyholder’s annual bonus declaration, Actuarial
Practice Standards, Product & Fund Perfarmance, Product Operational Readiness, actuarial updates
and reporting & disclosure requirements pertaining to the Product & Actuarial Commitiee under
applicable laws.

During FY24, the Product & Actuarial Committee met 2 times as follows:

e May12, 2023



Constitution of the Product & Actuarial Committee, number of meetings held and attended by the

October 30, 2023

Members during FY ended March 31, 2024:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held attended
Ms. Marielle Theron Chairperson, 2 2
Non-executive
Director
Mr. Jose John Member, 2 2
Appointed
Actuary
Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda Member, Non- 2 2
executive
Director
Mr. Prashant Tripathy Member, MD & 2 1
CEQ
Mr. Subrat Mohanty Member, Non- 2 2
executive
Directar
Mr. V. Viswanand # Member, Deputy 2 2
MD

#1. Mr. V. Viswanand ceased to be a member of the Committee pursuant to cessation of his office
of Deputy Managing Director and a member on the Board of Directors of the Company on the expiry
of his tenure under the employment contract i.e. on completion of the business hours on December
31, 2023. The Committee was reconstituted without Mr. V. Viswanand as a member w.e.f January
1, 2024.

2. It shall further be noted that, with a view to strengthen the composition of Product and Actuarial
Committee of the Company, Mr. Amrit Singh, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, has been
appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from April 11, 2024.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee: This Committee assists the Board in the discharge of its
responsibilities and oversight matters relating to the appointment, remuneration and performance
of the Key Management Persons, senior executives and Directors of the Company, implementation
& review of Nomination & Remuneration Policy and reporting & disclosure requirements pertaining
to the Nomination & Remuneration Committee under applicable laws. The Committee also ensures
that the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge to
enable it to effectively discharge its duties and responsibilities.

During FY24, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 5 times as follows:
e May 12, 2023

o August9, 2023



e September 18, 2023
e October 31, 2023
e Februaryl, 2024

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number of meetings held and
attended by the Members during FY ended March 31, 2024;

Name of the Member

Designation

No. of Meetings
Held

No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Pradeep Pant

Chairperson,

5

5

Independent
Non-executive
Director
Member, 5 g
Independent
Mon-executive
Director
Member, Non- 5 5
executive
Director
Member, Non- 5 4
executive
Director
Member, 5 5
independent ‘
MNon-executive
Director
Member, Non- 5 5
executive
Director

Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy #

Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda

Mr. Mohit Talwar

iir. Rajesh Khanna

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya

# Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company and
has ceased to hold the directorship and membership of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee w.e.f end of the day on March 31, 2024.

The Committee has been reconstituted to appoint Mr. Jai Arya as a member in place of Mr. K.
Narasimha Murthy w.e.f April 1, 2024,

With Profits Committee: This Committee assists the Company by providing oversight on matters
relating to the determination of the share of assets attributable to the policyholders, the investment
income attributable to the participating fund of policyholders, the expenses ailocated to
policyholders, analysis of internal rate of return and reporting & disclosure requirements pertaining
to With Profits Committee under applicable laws.

During FY24, With Profits Committee met 2 time as follows:



e May1l,2023
e February 1, 2024

Constitution of the With Profit Committee, number of meetings held and attended by the Members
during FY ended March 31, 2024:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held attended
Mr. Girish Srikrishna Chairperson, 2 2
Paranjpe Independent
Non-executive
Director
Mr. Amrit Singh Member, Chief 2 2

Financial Officer

Ms. Hema Malini Member, 2 2
Ramakrishnan independent
Actuary

Mr. Jose John Member, 2 2
Appointed
Actuary

Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy # Member, 2 2
Independent
Non-executive
Director
Mr. Prashant Tripathy Member, MD & 2 i
CEQ '

# Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company and
has ceased to hold the directorship and membership of the With Profits Committee w.e.f end of the
day on March 31, 2024,

The Committee has been reconstituted without Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy as a member w.e.f April
1, 2024,

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: This Committee assists the Company by providing
oversight on matters relating to the implementation of Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)
Policy, CSR Annual budget & annual action plan, activities to be undertaken for CSR and reporting
& disclosure requirements pertaining to CSR Committee under applicable laws.

During FY24, the Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee met 2 times as follows:



k.

e May 11, 2023
e  Qctober 30, 2023

Constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number of meetings held and
attended by the Members during FY ended March 31, 2024:

Name of the Member

Designation

No. of Meetings
held

No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Pradeep Pant

. Chairperson,

Non-executive
Independent
Director
Member, Non- 2 2

executive
Director
Member, Non- 2 2
executive
Director
Member, Non- 2 2
executive
Director
Member, Deputy 2 2
MD

Ms. Marielle Theron

Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya

Mr. V. Viswanand #

# Mr. V. Viswanand ceased to be a member of the Committee pursuant to cessation of his office of
Deputy Managing Director and a member on the Board of Directors of the Company on the expiry
of his tenure under the employment contracti.e. on completion of the business hours on December
31, 2023. The Committee was reconstituted without Mr. V. Viswanand as a member w.e.f January
1, 2024.

During FY24, the Independent Directors met on May 12, 2023, attended by the members as foflows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings| No.of Meetings
held attended

Mr. Pradeep Pant {Chairman) 1 1

Mr.  Girish  Srikrishna i 1

Paranjpe

Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy 1 1

Mr. Rajesh Khanna 1 1

Details of Board of Directors and other Commitiee Members, designation, qualification, field of
specialization, status of directorship held for FY24 as on March 31, 2024:



Name DIN Designation Qualifications and Field of Specialization #Status of
Directorship
held in
other
companies
Mr. Rajiv Anand 02541753 | Chairman & Non- Chartered Accountant and a commerce | 2
Executive Director graduate
Field of Specialization - Accounting
Mr. Prashant Tripathy | 08260516 | Managing Director | B TECH (chemical engineering) - IIT Kharagpur, | 1
& Chief Executive | PGDBM — lIM Bangalore
Officer
Field of Specialization - Finance, Strategy,
Business Development, Risk Management,
Business Leadership
Mr. Girish Srikrishna | 02172725 | Independent, Non- | B. Com, Associate Member of the Institute of | 3
Paranjpe executive Director | Chartered Accountants of India and Associate
of the Institute of Cost and Works Accountants
of India
Field of Specialization - Finance and Technology
Mr. K. Narasimha | 00023046 | Independent, Non- | B.Sc., Fellow member of the Institute of | 8
Murthy * executive Director | Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), Fellow
member of Institute of Cost & Works
Accountants of India {ICWAI}.
Field of Specialization - Chartered Accountancy
and Cost & Management Accountancy
Ms. Marielle Theron 02667356 | Non-executive Fellow of Society of Actuaries, USA and B.Sc. | Nif
Director majored in Actuarial Science, Laval University,
Canada.
Field of Specialization - Actuarial and Financial
services
vir. Mitsuru Yasuda 08785791 | Non-executive BA in Social Science from Waseda University, | 1
Director Tokyo
Field of Specialization - Accounting and
Finance
Mr. Mohit Talwar 02394694 | Non-executive Postgraduate from St. Stephen’s College and | 1

Director

completed his Management Studies in

Hospitality from the Oheroi Schoo!

Field of Specialization - Corporate Finance,




Investment Banking, M&A and Strategic
Planning for large businesses

Mr. Pradeep Pant

00677064

Independent, Non-
executive Director

Masters degree in Management Studies {(MMS)
from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management
Studies, Bombay University and Bachelor’s
Degree with Hons in Economics from Shri Ram
College, Delhi University.

Field of Specialization — Consumer facing
business  with  expertise in  General
Management, Marketing and Sales

Mr. Rajesh Khanna

00032562

Independent, Non-
executive Director

PGDM from the Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad and a Chartered
Accountant

Field of Specialization — Investments

Mr.  Rajesh
Dahiya

Kumar

07508488

Non-executive
Director

Bachelor of Engineering {Civil), Masters in
Human Resources Management

Field of Specialization - Corporate Governance,
Human  Resources,  Sustainability and
Regulatory Affairs

Mr. Szhil Vachani

00761655

Non-Executive
Director

Bachelor's degree in Management Sciences
from the University of Warwick, U.K. backed up
by an Executive Management Programme on
Disruptive Innovation from the Harvard
Business School

Field of Specialization - Business Leader,

Strategy

i7

Mr. Subrat Mohanty

08679444

Non-Executive
Director

BE (Hons), MBA (1IM Calcutta)

Field of Specialization - Insurance, Strategy,
Operations

Mr. Amrit Singh

NA

Chief
Officer

Financial

Bachelor of Engineering from Pune University
in Computers, 2002, Post Graduate Programme
in Management at ISB Hyderabad in Analytical
Finance and Strategic Marketing, 2006

Field of Specialization - Strategy, Finance

Nil

Mr. Jose John

NA

Appointed Actuary

B. TECH, MBA (Finance), Cardiff Business
School, Fellow member of the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries, UK (FIA)}, Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries, india (FIAl)

Field of Specialization - Actuarial

Nil




Mr. Sachin Bajaj NA EVP and Head

Bachelor in Commerce from PGDAV College, | Nil
Investments Delhi University (1998); holding Diploma in
Business and Finance, ICFAIl, Hyderabad and
MBA from Management Development Institute
(MDI1), Gurgaon, Haryana {2013-2015)

Field of Specialization: Managing investment
risk, developing portfolio strategies and
implementation of robust  investment
processes and systems.

Mr. Sachin Saxena NA Chief Risk Officer B. Tech (Mechanical Engineering), HIT —Varanasi | Ni

(earlier iIT- BHU), Year 2002, Fellow of institute
of Actuaries of India, Year 2009, Fellow of
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries, UK, Year
2009, LLB., Chaudhary Charan Singh
Universify, Meerut, Year 2018

Field of Specialization - Risk Management,
Products and Pricing

Ms. Hema Malini NA Independent Fellow member of the Institute of Actuaries of | Nil

Ramakrishnan

Actuary India

Field of Specialization — Risk management,
product development, pricing, shareholder
reporting, statutory reporting, capital
modelling, asset liability management,
business planning and reinsurance

*Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy has retired from the office of Independent Director of the Company with
effect from the end of the day on March 31, 2024,

# No. of other directorship includes directorships in public limited Companies, private Companies
and Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 excluding Max Life
Insurance Company Limited.

8rief profile ofthe Directors of your Company as on date may be read on
https://www.maxlifeinsurance.com/about-us/board-ef-directors

All pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors.

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors of the Company do not have any
relationship or transactions with your Company other than:

i. insurance policies, if any, taken by any of them in the ordinary course of business; and

ii. sitting fees for attending Board and Committee meetings and commission on profits paid to
Independent Directors.




During FY24, your Company paid profit-based commission to the independent directers for FY23, not
exceeding 1% of net profits the Company, amounting as follows:

Independent Director Commission paid in FY24 for FY23 (in INR)
Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy | 10 lacs
Mr. Girish Srikrishna Paranjpe | : | 10 lacs
Mr. Pradeep Pant ;| 10 lacs
Mr. Rajesh Khanna : | 101acs

In addition to the above, your Company paid sitting fees to its Independent Directors for attending
the Board and Committees meetings of your Company held during FY24, details of which are

hereunder:
Independent Director Total Meetings attended in FY 24 | Total amount paid in INR
Mr. Girish Srikrishna Paranjpe 16 16,00,000
Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy 21 21,00,000
Mr. Pradeep Pant 16 16,00,000
Mr. Rajesh Khanna 23 23,00,000

Elements of remuneration package (including incentives) as per clause 9 of the IRDAI Corporate

Governance guidelines:

{In INR}

Total Fixed Pay

Includes Basic, Retirals (PF, Gratuity}, Flexible Benefits
Plan {including expenses on account of Car, Medical
Reimbursement, Communication, LTA, Joining Bonus
and ex-gratia etc.)

170,873,006/-

Total Bonus

Variable Plan contingent on Company and Individual
Performance @130.1% Bonus pool for FY 2022-23
paid in FY 2023-24, Deferred Bonus, LTIP

59,813,621/-

PSP amount

178,316,523/-

Note:

e This includes the remuneration details of KMPs except Managing Director, Deputy Managing
Director, CFQ, Company Secretary and other Directors, the details for which are provided

elsewhere in the Directors’ Report.

e Key Management Persons as defined under IRDAI Corporate Governance guidelines includes
members of the core management team of an insurer including all whole-time directors/
Managing Directors/ CEQ and the functional heads one level below the MD/CEOQ, including the
CFO, Appointed Actuary, Chief investment Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Officer

and the Company Secretary.



Details in respect of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors:

Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with the performance
criteria;

The performance of the Managing Director and Dy. Managing Director is linked to the achievement
vis-a-vis, the Measure of Success {“MQS”) for the respective year, duly approved in advance by the
Momination & Remuneration Committee each year. The payout of incentive/ bonus is subject to
approval of Insurance Regulatory Development Authority of India (IRDAI).

It shall be noted that since Mr, Viswanand has ceased to be associated with the Company on the
expiry of his tenure under the employment contract i.e. on completion of the business hours on
December 31, 2023, considering that he has been a founder member of the Company and his
coniributions during his illustrious career of 23 years with the Company, his compensation including
an ex-gratia amount, pro-rated performance bonus for FY24, payment in lieu of non-competition
and PSP amount as approved by your Board of Directors, have been duly paid under special
circumstances, details of which are provided elsewhere in the report.

Service contracts, key terms;

Mr. Prashant Tripathy

Mr. Prashant Tripathy has been re-appointed as the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of
the Company w.e.f January 01, 2024 for a further period of 5 years till December 31, 2028.

Mr. V. Viswanand

Mr. V. Viswanand has ceased to hold the office of Deputy Managing Director and a member on the
Board of Directors of the Company on the expiry of his tenure under the employment contract i.e.
on completion of the business hours on December 31, 2023,

Disclosure in respect of remuneration or commission, if any, received by Managing or whole-time
director of your Company from the holding company or subsidiary company, who is also in receipt
of commission from the Campany:

Mr. Prashant Tripathy, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company did not receive
any commission or remuneration from the holding company or the subsidiary company of the
Company during the FY 2024.

Mr. V. Viswanand, Deputy Managing Director of the Company did not receive any commission or
remuneration from the holding company or the subsidiary company of the Company during the FY
2024,



Details of remuneration paid to Managing Director detailing elements of remuneration package
{including incentives) are provided in detail elsewhere in the Directors’ Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
RAJ lV Digitally signed
by RAJIV ANAND
A NA N D Date: 2024.05.07
14:35:16 +05'30°
Rajiv Anand

Chairman & Non-Executive Director
DIN: 02541753

Date: May 7, 2024
Place: Gurugram



Annexure 1l
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

1. A brief outline of the company’s Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR} policy, including overview of
projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programmes:

Your Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} Policy was presented in the 22™ CSR Committee Meeting
held on 11*" May 2023 through video conferencing and was approved by the Committee. As per the CSR Policy,
your Company identified Education, Healthcare, Environment, Financial Literacy & [nsurance Awareness,
Disaster Response and NGOs support as the key areas for CSR initiative.

Through its volunteering programme; Pehal, your Company decided to undertake multiple activities in key
areas of education, financial literacy & insurance awareness, healthcare, environment and other volunteering
activities under its Joy of Giving initiative.

Key highlights of the various CSR initiatives may be noted as under:

Education - Max Life has been providing support to multiple NGOs in the field of education for many yvears and
with an enhanced focus on education. The NGOs were selected to support CSR interventions in education
through the year as approved by the CSR Committee.

viax Life Insurance has been providing support to multiple NGOs in the field of education for many years and
with an enhanced focus on education.

During FY24, Max Life supported 13 leading NGOs towards education, benefiting 26,902 children directly.
Additionally, the following impact was created by indirect reach through our NGO partners:

e Through Education Alliance - more than 1.6 Cr. students across 4 states {Delhi, Madhya Pradesh, Tripura &
Punjab)

¢ Through Simple Education Foundation - 20 fakh students in Delhi

¢ Through Labhya Foundation - 25 lakh students in Uttarakhand, Delhi and Tripura

¢ Madhi Foundation - 27 lakh students in Tamil Nadu

Through these NGOs, support was also provided for the training of 34 fellows, 4.37 lakh teachers, and 3680
community members.

During FY ‘24, the company provided financial support of INR 800 lakhs to 12 NGOs benefitting children,
teachers and fellows.

Financial Literacy & Insurance Awareness — Max Life partnered with United Way Chennai and Saaras
Foundation in Haridwar (Uttarakhand), Purbi Singhbhum (Jharkhand)} and Varanasi (Uttar Pradesh). The project
trained 133 citizens from the local community to enroll eligible citizens into government welfare and insurance
schemes, thus positively impacting 59,134 direct beneficiaries with a total cutreach to 10.3 lakh citizens.
Environment —

Max Life carried out 3 independent projects in collaboration with Gurugram Metropolitan Development
Authority (GMDAY):

i. Pond Revival: We bartnered with SEEDS {Sustainable Environment & Ecological Development Society) and
to revive a dried pond in Jharsa village in Gurugram, positively impacting ~27000 citizens in the vicinity.

ji. Mission 10,000 trees — Cur employees participated in planting 10,000 trees at the Police Training Academy
in Bhondsi village, Gurugram.



iiil. Metro greening project: The greening and maintenance work of the central verge of the 4.5 km stretch from
IFFCO Chowk, Gurugram to the Delhi border was completed as per plan.

Joy of Giving — Employees of Max Life continued to bring a positive change in society by leading various CSR
initiatives in the communities in which we operate. 50+ volunteering activities were conducted, reaching out to
~ 60,200 beneficiaries (including children, women, elderly, PwDs)

A total of INR 200 lacs were booked as expenses under all the above Pehal projects in FY 24.

Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sl. No. | Name of Director Designation/  Nature  of | Number of | Number of
Directorship meetings of CSR [ meetings of CSR
Committee held | Committee
during the year attended during
the year
1. Mr. Pradeep Pant Chairperson,  Non-executive | 2 2
independent Director
2. Ms. Marielle Theron | Member, Non-executive | 2 2
Director
3. Mr. Mitsuru Yasuda | Member, Non-executive | 2 2
Director
4, Mr. Rajesh Kumar | Member, Non-executive | 2 2
Dahiya Director
5. *Mr. V. Viswanand Member, Dy. Managing | 2 2
Director

* Mr. V. Viswanand has ceased to be associated with the Company w.e.f. end of the day December 31, 2024,

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are

disclosed on the website of the Company:

Compasition of CSR Committee:

JAwww.maxlifeinsurance.com/conteni/dam/corporate/csr-and-media-centre-policies/csr-
2023-24/Composition%200f%20CSR%20Committee%202024.pdf

CSR Policy:
https://www.maxlifeinsurance.com/content/dam/corporate/pdfs/CSR_Policy Max%20Life%20Insurance.pdf

CSR Projects:

o/ fwww.maxlifeinsurance.com/content/dam/corporate/csr-and-media-centre-policies f¢sr-
2022-23/Max%20Life List%200f%20CSR%20Projects%20for%20FY-24.pdf

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 8 of the Comipanies
{Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable {attach the report).

Impact assessment reports are attached as annexure to this report.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any



5l. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-off
from preceding financial years | for the financial year, if any (in
(in Rs} Rs}

NIL

6. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years as per Section 135(5) and prescribed CSR
Expenditure:
During the Financial Year 2023-24, your Company decided to spend INR 1000 lacs, which is above the minimum
calculation of 2% of the average Profit Before Tax of your Company in the last three years, on CSR initiatives.
The calculation of the CSR expenditure for the Financial Year 2023-24 is as follows:

Annual CSR Budget FY ‘24 — Max Life Insurance Co. Ltd. {in Crores)

PET Dividend Profit  calculation
Particulars adjustment* | for CSR

A B C=(A-B)
Profit Before Tax FY'21 509.92 208.55 301.37
Profit Before Tax FY'22 416.95 221.03 195.92
Profit Before Tax FY’'23 (Draft/Unaudited numbers) | 504.64 355.36 149.28
Average Profit Before Tax of 3 years a77.17 261.65 215.52
CSR Regulatory Budget FY'24 (2% of profit calculation for CSR}) 4.31
Discretionary Contribution by Max Life 5.69
Total CSR budget for FY ‘24 10.00

*Dividend income adjusted in terms of Rule 2{1){h} of the Companies {CSR Policy) Rules, 2014

7. {a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135{(5)

As provided above in point no. (6), 2% of the average net profits of the Company as per Sec. 135(5) for FY
2023 - 24 is INR 431.00 Jacs plus the discretionary amount of INR 569.0 lacs

{b} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years
Nil

{c} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
N

{d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year {7a+7b-7c})
INR 1000 facs

8. {a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent | Amount Unspent {in Rs.}
for the Financial | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Year (in Rs.) Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
section 135{6) 135(5}
Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
INR 1000 lacs Not Applicable Not Applicable

(b} Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
Ni .
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than engoing projects for the financial year:



Si. | Name of the | ltem from the | Local Location of the | *Amount | Mode of | Mode of
No. | project list of activities | area project spent for | implemen | implementation -
in schedule VIl | (Yes/ the tation - | Through
to the Act No) project Direct implementing agency
State | District | {in Rs. ! (Yes/No). | Name CSR
lacs) registratic
n number

1. Education- (i)  promoting | No All over India 800.00 No Max CSR00004
through NGOs | education, India 734
support including special Foundati

education  and on
employment
enhancing
vocation  skills
especially
among children,
women, elderly
and the
differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement
projects.

2. Financial Financial No Haridwar, Purbi | 80.55 No United CSR
Literacy & | Literacy in Singhbhum Way CSRC0O000
Insurance Districts Chennai | 572
Awareness adopted as per

IRDAI guidelines Varanasi 37.82 | No Saaras | CSRO00OL
& under State Foundati | 729
Insurance on
Awareness Plan

3. | Environment | Green Gurugram | Yes Gurugram 29.3 Yes Not Applicable
Project with Gurugram 25.0 No SEEDS CSRODOOL
GMDA 691

4. | Employee Education, No All over India 27.28 Yes Not Applicable
volunteering | Healthcare,

Environment
Total 1000 |

*Amount includes administrative overheads

{d) Amount spent in Administrative Qverheads
INR 33.47 lacs

{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
INR 8.0C lacs

{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e}
INR 1000 lacs

{g} Excess amount for set off, if any

Si. Na. | Particular Amount (in Rs.}

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per | 413.00 lacs
section 135(5}

{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1000 facs

{iii} Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii}-(i)] 569.00 lacs

{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | Nil




activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years | Nil

{({iif)-(iv)]

9. {a} Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Nil
{b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired

through CSR spent in the financial year - Not Applicable {NA)

{a} Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s} - NA

{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset — NA

{c} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc. — NA

{d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired {including complete address and location of the
capital asset). — NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5).
Not Applicable

bt
Prashant Tripathy Pradeep Pant

Managing Director & CEQ Chairman, C5R Committee
DiN: 08260516 DIN: 00677064
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Executive Summary

Max India Foundation (MIF) recently conducted an impact assessment of its key projects, including
the Project Management Unit (PMU) initiatives in Tripura and Tamil Nadu, the Teach For India (TFI)
fellowship program, the School Quality Enhancement Program (SQEP), and. Manzil. The objective
of the assessment was to evaluate the effectiveness of these projects in achieving their intended
outcomes and impact.

The PMU projects in Tripura and Tamil Nadu were strategically designed to enhance education
quality through targeted interventions such as infrastructure development, teacher training, and
community engagement. The assessment revealed that these projects were highly relevant to the local
context, effectively addressing specific challenges in the education system. The projects demonstrated
a high level of coherence, with integrated components working synergistically towards common
objectives. They were also efficient in resource allocation, maximizing impact on student learning
outcomes. community engagement, and infrastructure enhancements.

The TFI fellowship program, focused on providing quality education to underprivileged children, was
found to be highly impactful, significantly improving student learning outcomes and fostering
commumity engagement. The program's success was attributed to its coherent structure, providing
fellows with comprehensive training and support. The program also exhibited sustainability. with
many fellows continuing to contribute to the education sector post-fellowship.

The SQEP. aimed at improving school quality through capacity building and infrastructure
enhancement, positively impacted student learning outcomes and school infrastructure. The program
demonstrated efficiency in resource utilization and emphasized sustainability through strategic
partnerships and collaborations with key stakeholders.

Impact Assessment conducted for Manzil and found to have a positive impact on education quality.
Their initiatives, which include providing education and skills training to underprivileged youth, were
found to be relevant, coherent, and impactful. Manzil's programs demonstrated efficiency and
sustainability, contributing to MIF's overall mission of enhancing education quality in India.

In conclusion. the impact assessment of MIF's projects, including the PMU initiatives, TFI fellowship
program, SQEP, and support to Manzil, underscores the organization's success in achieving its
mission of enhancing education quality in various regions of India. The findings highlight the
importance of contextually relevant, coherent, and sustainable interventions in driving positive
change in education, reaffirming MIF's commitment to transformative impact in the education sector.
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1.2 Objectives of the study: National Quality Educati

Introduction

I Objectives: Teach for India Fellowship Program

To measure the program's impact on participants' leadership development and their
understanding of poverty and educational inequity.

To assess the program's effectiveness in preparing participants to work in challenging
educational environments.

To evaluate the impact on student progress in terms of Attendance, Learning,
Engagement, and Well-Being.

e
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The projects include:

}h-ﬂzb)l\)m

School Quality Enhancement Program with SDMC
Principal-Led Partnership Model with SDMC

PMU for NGO Partnerships Management in Tamil Nadu
PMU for NGO Partnerships Management in Tripura
Additional Project - Partnership with Manzil Welfare Society

The aim is to assess and evaluate the five projects undertaken by the NQEF in collaboration with
various education departments. Each project will have a unique methodology tailored to its specific
objectives and theory of change. These techniques will provide rich insights into the effectiveness.
challenges, and impact of each project, allowing for informed decision-making and the refinement
of strategies to achieve exemplary education in government schools. Qualitative research will play
a pivotal role in ensuring that NQEF's initiatives meet their intended goals and contribute to the
improvement of the education system.

i
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3 Limitations of the Study
Data Limitation: The assessment relied on existing data and reports provided by

implementing organizations. which may not have been comprehensive or up-to-date.
There may have been limitations in data collection methods. leading to potential biases or
incomplete information.

Contextual Limitation: The assessment was conducted within the specific contexts of
Tripura. Tamil Nadu, and other areas where MIF's projects are implemented. The

g
e
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findings may not be generalizable to other regions or countries with ditferent socio-
economic. cultural, and educational contexts.

Time Limitation: The assessment may not capture the long-term impacts of MIF's
projects. as the evaluation was conducted at a specific point in time. Longitudinal studies
would be needed to assess the sustainability of the impacts over time.

L¥S]

4. Stakeholder Engagement Limitation: While the assessment considered the perspectives
of various stakeholders, including government bodies, NGOs, and conununily members,
there may have been limitations in the depth and breadth of stakeholder engagement.
More extensive engagement could provide a more comprehensive understanding of the
impacts of MIF's projects.

A

External Factors Limitation: The assessment may not have fully accounted for external
factors that could influence the outcomes of MIF's projects, such as changes in
government policies, economic conditions. or other social factors.

6. Measurement Limitation: The assessment relied on qualitative and quantitative
indicators to measure the impact of MIF's projects. However, these indicators may not
fully capture the complex and multi-dimensional nature of educational outcomes and
impacts,

7. Attribution Limitation: While the assessment attempted to attribute the impacts
observed to MIF's projects, there may have been limitations in establishing direct causal
links. Other factors outside the scope of the assessment could have contributed to the
observed outcomes.

2. About the Implementing Agency

Catalytic Crops is a social impact consultancy that believes in catalysing impactful processes of
change. It is our understanding that social challenges are labelled *wicked" when their scope is
varied. nature is continually changing and their symptoms are intermingled. Our vision is to work
towards creating an equitable society where good quality systems lead to a good quality of life.
Consequently, we work towards equitable institution building through interdisciplinary. data
driven project management to generate sustainable impact at scale. We believe in sustainability
and approach issues at hand with problem-orientation to understand its root cause and co-create
the solution in the real context which then becomes applicable and impactful.

Therefore, we believe that methods employed to problem solve should be productive, empirical
and replicable. Such processes not only iterate comprehensive solutions but also build self-
sustaining social capacity. They factor in necessary resource inputs to mitigate imminent yet

N S
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ineffable complexities of social challenges. Our Mission is to partner with nonprofits,
foundations and governments to help them drive the lasting change they want to see through their
work. We recognise the unique value added by including information across disciplines. Our
multidisciplinary approach equips us to create structures and institutions working to solve the
multi-layered challenges posed by wicked problems.

Our expertise lies in Research, Advocacy, Strategic Advisory. Project Management, Systemic
Partnerships, Sustainability, Capacity Building, and Evaluation. We are experts at identifying
project pain points and adopting context-specific plans for effective change. We approach each of
our projects with fresh eyes and develop bespoke solutions to generate desired outcomes keeping

in mind each project’s unique context.

The 3D3f model

- Our Approach

%

Impact | Diagnose

Deliver

et

Design

Catalytic Corps provides the following three interrelated attributes:

a) high concentration of experienced, qualified, and talented team members.

b) abundant resources to provide a rich learning environment and conduct advanced research.

c) favourable governance features to facilitate autonomy. strategic vision, and effective resource
management.
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2.2 Network and Partaerships

Catalytic Corps maintains a robust network of academics, researchers, and data enumerators across
India. This extensive network allows us to-tap into a wealth of expertise and resources when
conducting research and data collection. We collaborate with leading institutions and individuals
in academia fo ensure the highest quality of research and analysis. Our network of trained
enumerators is strategically focated across the country. enabling us to efficiently collect data from
various regions. We have high impact generating partners like KPMG, USAID, CARE India,
Noora Health, NASSCOM, Breakthrough, Antarang Foundation, Dost education, STIR Education.
Central Square Foundation, Sarathi Development Foundation etc. We have helped them with a
range of service offerings starting from strategic advisory to project planning and impact
assessments. We have been working with our partners to help them embed their program within
the government systems to achieve sustainable impact at scale.

3. Methodology and Approach

In conducting the impact assessment for the projects initiated by the National Quality Education
Foundation (NQEF) in collaboration with various education departments, a meticulous and
tailored methodology was employed to evaluate each project's unique objectives. The qualitative
techniques were used aligned with OECD DAC evaluation criteria aimed to extract nuanced
insights into the effectiveness, challenges, and overall impact of the initiatives. This
comprehensive approach aimed at facilitating informed decision-making and enabled the strategic
refinement of educational strategies in government schools. ultimately contributing to the pursuit
of exemplary education.

The methodology prioritized the use of qualitative research as a cornerstone. emphasizing its
pivotal role in ensuring that NQEF's initiatives align seamlessly with their intended goals and
significantly contribute to the ongoing enhancement of the education system.

The Projects are:
1. School Quality Enhancement Program with SDMC
2. PMU for NGO Partnerships Management in Tamil Nadu

3. PMU for NGO Partnerships Management in Tripura,
4. Manzil Welfare Society

These projects underwent a customized assessment methodology tailored to their distinct
objectives, stakeholders and anticipated outcomes. By employing varied data analysis techniques
adapted to the specific nature of the collected data, this impact assessment endeavor stands as a
testament to the dedication and excellence demonstrated in evaluating and advancing NQEF's
initiatives for the betterment of education in government schools.



3.1 OECD DAC: Evaluation Criferia

The OECD-DAC (Development Assistance Committee) Evaluation Network's framework plays a
pivotal role. Recognizing the need for a comprehensive evaluation approach, the OECD DAC
Network has delineated six key evaluation criteria and two guiding principles: relevance,
coherence. effectiveness, efficiency, impact, and sustainability. These criteria are strategically
designed to facilitate evaluations, ensuring a thorough and systematic analysis of development
initiatives.

The OECD DAC Network revisited and refined these criteria in 2019 with the primary objective
of enhancing the accuracy and utility of assessments. The revisions underscore the network's
commitment to strengthening the contribution of evaluations to sustainable development goals
(OECD, 2020). This framework, with its revised criteria, forms the cornerstone of our impact
assessinent methodology, providing a robust and globally recognized foundation for evaluating
the effectiveness and sustainability of our initiatives.

Relevance: This criterion assesses the extent to which the objectives of a project or program are
aligned with the needs and priorities of the target population. It considers whether the
intervention addresses key development challenges and is consistent with national and
international development priorities.

Effectiveness: Effectiveness evaluates the extent to which the project or program achieves its
intended objectives. It examines the outcomes and impacts of the intervention, including the
extent to which it has contributed to positive changes in the lives of the target population.

Efficiency: Efficiency looks at how well resources (such as funding. time, and human resources)
are used to achieve the desired results. It considers whether the intervention has achieved its
objectives in a cost-effective manner and whether resources have been allocated efficiently.

Impact: Impact assesses the broader effects of the intervention. beyond the immediate outcomes.
[t considers the long-term and sustainable changes brought about by the intervention, as well as
any unintended or negative impacts.

Coherence: Coherence evaluates the extent to which the intervention is consistent and
complementary with other development efforts and policies. both within the sector and across
different sectors. It considers whether the intervention contributes to broader development goals
and strategies.

Sustainability: Sustainability evaluates the likelihood that the benefits of the intervention will
continue after the project or program ends. It considers whether the intervention has built local
capacity, strengthened institutions, and created lasting change.
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Figure I OFCD DAC Evaluation Criteria

3.2 Geogragphical Scope

The impact assessment for this project extended across two states and encompassed specific areas
within Delhi.

Project Location
School Quality Enhancement Progi‘*'z‘a‘iﬁ'vﬁtﬁzgﬁMC " Delhi o
PMU for NGO Pafthei’ships Mén'a'gen'wnt in Tamil Nadu Tamil Nadu
PMU for NGO Partnerships Management in Tripura Tripura

Manzil Welfare Society ' Delhi

=
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3.3 Sampling Sirategy
The determination of the sample size for this study was executed through the application of
purposive sampling methodology. In recognition of the unique characteristics and specific
objectives of the study, purposive sampling emerged as the most fitting strategy to ensure that the
selected participants were deliberately chosen to provide meaningful insights into the questions at
hand. This approach allowed for a targeted and intentional selection of individuals or groups who
possessed pertinent information, expertise. or experiences directly relevant to the study's focus.

3.4 Daia Collection and Analysis

Catalytic Corps executed the data collection by employing expert research associates utilizing a
hybrid methodology involving online face to face interview sessions and on-site field visits, In-
depth interviews, guided by pre designed interview guide and questionnaires, were administered
to pertinent stakeholders. Field visits were conducted at the Manzil Welfare Society. while
online face-to-face interviews were conducted at other specified locations. The data translated
and transcribed, subsequently being organized into Excel spreadsheets for further analysis.

Subsequent to the comprehensive data collection and cleaning processes. a robust statistical
analysis was applied to find emerging themes. relationships, and trends within the dataset. The
outcomes of this analytical phase were then judiciously emploved to assess and quantify the
impact of the project.

3.5 Scoring Matrix

OECD Indicators Weightage Combined
Parameters Weightage
R Quartell\Repoits T e T
Relevance to target beneficiaries 50%
Relevance to partner 30%
Coherence Alignment with national policy 50%
Alignment with overall project 50%
objectives

Efficiency Utilisation of resources 50% W2:30%

pg. 10



~ Adherence: Budget ' - 50%

Effectiveness Identification of problem 50%
Improvement in existing situation 50%

Impact Téu'get'ed beneficiaries | 35% W4: 30%
Smeoth implementation 35%

Increase in awareness regarding topics  30%

Sustainability Sustainability Mechanism, 100%
Convergence



4. School Quality Enhancement Programme

4.1 Backgreund

Approach: This project focuses on transforming under-utilized government schools into
demonstration models for exemplary education. The methodology involves a mixed-methods
approach, combining qualitative and quantitative data collection methods.

Participants Category:

1. Teachers

2. NGO representatives

3. School administrators
Outcomes to be Assessed:

1. Tmprovement in school infrastructure and resources.
Teacher and student engagement.

Implementation of the SEQI benchmark assessment.

“) b

Data Analysis Technique: Qualitative data will be collected through interviews and focus group
discussions with teachers, School administrators, and NGO representatives. Quantitative data on
the School Education Quality Index(SEQI) benchmark assessment results will be analyzed using
statistical software. Thematic analysis will be conducted on qualitative data to identify emerging
themes and patterns.

4.2 Program Effectiveness

Simply put. the SQEP program’s main objective was to enhance quality of the schools and
education they provide to their students. From the perspective of the NGO staff and school staff,
program etfectiveness can be understood through the benefits derived by the schools, the students
and the parents.

For schools, incorporating the use of technology has expanded the horizon -
simplifying/streamlining certain clerical tasks. as well as the creation of lesson plans and
timetables for teachers while also giving access to more resources to further student learning. For
students, there has been improved learning outcomes; holistic development: and increased parental
support and participation.

The parents have gained a better understanding about the need for education, the needs of their
children and to be involved in their growth and development. The program affected overall
operation and synergy within the school’s ecosystem though in their immediate roles - doing day
to day work - the effectiveness can only be described by the effect on the students, their learning
and their parents’ involvement in school interactions and their children’s development.

4.3 Implementation Challenges
Major challenges experienced across the board can be clubbed as challenges pertaining to:

00 Engaging students to bring regularity and consistency in learning and attendance

pe. 12



Internet or device unavailability; families moving away; day to day interference in online
classes; short attention spans; disconnect from learning.

0 Children were categorised based on age not learning level.

0 All were primary schools so a major issue was when a child in class 1 left pre-covid and
returned to class 3 but was unable to have emotional growth or social skills (like sharing
or interacting with people outside their family), let alone reading and writing skills; a
need to keep teaching basics to bridge the subsequent learning gap;

fi Handling students, case by case, Giving 1-1 attention to students who required it; visiting
children and their parents to convince them of the relevance and importance of having an
education.

. F o g Shus enanel FBayne S5 AR . R
.4 Community and Parent Engagement:

The NGOs appointed a full-time community mobiliser/officer who made contact with parents
and community leaders for each school, attracting more enrolment and assisting or enabling
school teachers to remain connected with the students and parents through online or offline
channels. Schools and NGOs together conducted frequent Parent-Teacher Meetings, some
trainings and talks to increase awareness about different aspects of health, sanitation and child
welfare.

During the partnership, community visits and drives for providing rations, sanitation kits and
tabs and data-packs for students to attend classes online. were also facilitated. Majority
stakeholders interviewed felt that level of engagement was high.

@ High

& Moderate




Hzation:

hie &

4.5 infrastructure and Resource Ut

While MCD has sole authority on any infrastructural changes that a school may require,
during the partnership. in many schools, boundary walls were remade, broken tiles repaired,
classrooms were repainted; classroom furniture was replaced; libraries were set up; and
various technological equipment like tablets and data-packs for students, PCs for teachers,
projectors, printers, SMART boards and other tools for creating and using TLMs, were
introduced, thereby enhancing the operations and teaching methodologies within the schools.

In a few of the schools. cleaning staff were also appointed by the NGO in order to have
sanitary washrooms and clean campuses. One school was also provided bus service to bring
students from distant communities that wished to enrol in the school.

Overall. whatever need was recognised by the schools and NGOs. resources were assigned
for, and requirements were met.

4.6 Academic and Extracurricular Activities:

While teaching online increased reach particularly when physical classes were not possible
due to precaution and fear, or due to families returning to their villages: teachers were able to
try out different TLMs, tool kits, videos, games and software to engage their students in
academics and extracurricular activities. )

On the other hand, teachers expressed feeling a disconnect from time to time especially with
the younger students, as a result of concerns like - network problems, cameras being turned
off, disturbances in individual homes, excessive screen time. and shorter attention span.

When reflecting on the online and offline academic interventions used. many teachers
instantly felt the need to draw comparison between offline and online teaching. particularly
since offline, students are in the presence of their peers and teachers for many hours at a
time, whereas they were together only for scheduled classes online. However, as a result of
their experiences with interventions implemented. resources and methods now gained are
useful to them in online and offline classes alike. Need based English classes can now be
planned and executed more easily.

The program enhanced learning and performance in SQEP schools, compared to statistics
seen from other schools.

The variety of extracurricular activities introduced to the schools have had a significant
impact on the holistic development of the students - unlocking their sense of confidence,
awareness about their abilities, strengths and areas that need work, and being resourceful.

As per the responses, barring those whose role had no involvement with the students, all else
felt that extracurricular activities Moderately or Significantly affected students’ holistic
development.

po. B



8 Significantly
= Moderately

= Can't say

4.7 Special Events and Case Studies:

Principal-Led Partnership Model with SDMC — Discussing with TEA highlighted that the
Principal Led Partnership was a model being proposed towards the end of the year 2021-22, to
be executed in the following year, where instead of members of an NGO working with the
school teachers, specific school administrators/principals would be selected, mentored and
guided in order to achieve excellence in managing the school and its activities effectively while
improving its quality. No information about which schools were shortlisted for this program,
were disclosed.

Case study to highlight the impact of TEA’s SQEP program: Sushma Arora ma’am, Principal of
PTS school shared in her interview how she was promoted to principal of the school a few
months after TEA began setting up the SQEP program in her school.

From being a teacher within the school, she got to learn a lot about how to be a responsible
administrative head for a school. Developing the leadership and management skills required to
do her work, support and guide her staff and remain connected with the student and parent
community connected with the school.

She expressed deep gratitude towards the initiative and support she has received over the years,
in transforming herself and her school. From nearly 18 students across grades in the start of the
program, to nearly 280 students within the following few years, with reduced absenteeism,
improving overall performance and making the school stand out in terms of its achievements in
comparison to some other MCD schools, ma'am also expressed that she has learned how to
negotiate with the school department, when seeking provisions or support for the school.



o

4.8 Key Milestones and Fuiure Plans:

The following points have come through as aspects that stakeholders believe will sustain the
positive changes that the program has brought so far:

- Investing in the teachers’ capacity building, training and mental wellbeing;

- Parent and community involvement;

- Access to funds in order to keep providing what’s required;

- Continued use of technology by staft and students;

- Bringing in resource persons through partnerships

- Collaborative spirit with the municipality and SMC

By 2023, SQEP program was discontinued in most of these schools. To some extent, some
teachers and administrators were struck by their dependence on NGO guidance, initiatives,
staff and funding. The NGOs expressed a desire to continue working in the schools with
which they were involved. The schools and the NGOs, working separately and with each
other, were mostly quite adaptable when faced with unexpected challenges in
implementation.

Majority respondents felt that SQEPIhelped enhance the teaching methodologies of teachers
though we can confidently conclude there is scope for a lot more to do. in the future.

& Significantly
& Moderately
= Minimally

2+ Can't say
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4.9 Impact Assessment

OQECD Criteria

Remarks Rating

Relevance

Coherence

Efficiency

Effectiveness

Impact

Sustainability

Overali rating
of the project

“Energies and objectives were contextual and mostly well-

aligned to improve educational quality: address specific
educational challenges faced; engage students and community. Highly

There was focus on moving towards English medium of relevant 5/5

instruction in the schools, cleanliness and beautification of

campus and increasing student learning outcome.

Principals involved for 3+ years were instrumental in

comniunicating and engaging their staff for goals and activities.

They vouched for efficient resource allocation, with respect to Colierent
needs being met as and when needs arise. 4/5
Synergy among initiatives and stakeholders, in understanding

and effort, led to targeted improvements in classroom

~ interactivity, learning and teaching methodologies.

All stakeholders gave high ratings for resource allocation.

The MCD and NGO teachers were proficient in transitioning
between online and offline teaching: exhibited resilience,
adaptability while engaging students, parents and the
community. S

Ensured preactive coordination between school and NGO
teachers. Provided staff, buses or other resources when needed.
Leveraged partnerships for additional funding, expertise.
Improved levels of enrolment, engagement, extracurricular
activities. Many schools reached or crossed maximum capacity.
Student Learning Outcome improved despite Covid disruptions.
Created supportive learning environment; heightened parent
understanding and involvement. Brought about a noticeable
shift in public perception towards govt schools.

Schools and NGOs were open to modifying their practices to
enhance combined functioning. Sustaining impact requires
ongoing support which is crucial to maintain and build on
achieved successes. Many teachers and principals desire 4/5
continuation of SQEP. NGOs recognise strategic shift for

scalability, moving towards developments in broader policy and

Efficient
4/3

Effective
4/5

Very
positive
impact 5/5

~ practice, through government partnership.

4/5
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4.9 Recommendations

Community Engagement: Strengthen efforts to engage parents and communities in the education
process. as they play a crucial role in supporting student learning. This could involve creating parent-
teacher associations, organising community events, and providing resources for parents to support
learning at home.

Monitoring and Evaluation: Establish a robust monitoring and evaluation system to track the
project's progress and impact. This can include collecting and analysing data on student performance,
teacher effectiveness. and community engagement to inform decision-making and identify areas for
improvement.

Scaling Best Practices: Identify successful practices from teachers who have achieved significant
improvements in student learning outcomes and scale them up. This could involve sharing these
practices with other teachers, schools. or districts and providing support for their implementation.
Coliaboration and Networking: Foster a culture of collaboration and networking among teachers to
share best practices, resources, and experiences. This could include establishing online forums, hosting
professional development events, and encouraging peer mentoring.

pa. 13



5.PMU for NGO Partnerships Management - Tamil
Nadu:

Approach: NQEF acts as a Project Management Unit for NGO partnerships. The methodology
includes document analysis and interviews.

Participants Category:
1. Administrators from Samagra Shiksha department
2. NGO representatives

QOutcomes to be Assessed:
1. Effectiveness of NGO on boarding and management.
2. Achievement of education goals.
Data Analysis Technique: Document analysis will involve reviewing reports and templates.

Qualitative data from interviews will be analyzed using content analysis to identify trends and
challenges in NGO partnerships.

3.1 apact Assessment

OECD Criteria

Remarks Rating
All NGOs programs had been designed to address specific
problems in education such as FLN. School leadership etc.
NGO programs are found to be relevant, addressing specific
educational needs and contributing to the overall improvement
of the education system. :
o Madhi Foundation's programs were deemed relevant.
Relevance espec.ially post-(.jOVID, although the exact relevance 5/5
remains uncertain. '
o Sol's Arc's programs. focusing on inclusive education
and support for children with special needs. were
highly relevant, aligning with emerging needs and
government priorities.
1 Vidhya Vidhai's focus on equipping school leaders
demonsirated high relevance, addressing critical gaps
in school leadership capacity
Coherence The PMU effectively aligns NGO initiatives with the goals of 5/5

the government's vision for education, ensuring coherence and



Efficiency

Effectiveness

Impact

synergy in efforts to improve the quality and accessibility of
education.

71 The coherence between the vision of NGOs' programs
and government objectives was affirmed by all NGO
partners. indicating a shared understanding and
alignment of goals.

Programs initiated by NGOs are closely aligned with the
National Education Policy {(NEP} and the curricubum.
ensuring that students benefit from relevant and impactful
learning experiences

o All NGOs demonstrated consideration of children's
needs in program implementation. fostering
effectiveness and refevance.

The PMU efficiently utilizes its resources to implement 475
various initiatives aimed at improving education guality.

Robust monitoring and evaluation mechanisms are in place to
assess the impact of various programs and interventions,
facilitating evidence-based decision-making and continuous
improvement,

Capacity building programs organized by NGOs are deemed

relevant and effective in enhancing the skills and

competencies of government stakeholders. contributing to

improved project management and implementation. 445

The PMU actively engages with relevant stakeholders,
including government officials, NGOs partners to ensure
transparency. inclusivity. and accountability.

All three NGOs condirmed that the partnership fills gaps to
achicve estimated outputs, indicating eftective collaboration
and complementarity of etforts.

= The partnership has led to noticeable improvements in
student learning outcomes, including higher academic 515
performance and increased attendance rates, indicating
a positive impact on overall educational quality.
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Sustainability

(1 Different programs for different stakeholders like
teachers, school HMs have benefitted them and
indirectly the students. -

Plans for the upcoming academic year and beyond
demonstrate a commitment to sustainability through initiatives
such as the development of adoptive textbooks, cwriculum
transition. and long-term capacity building programs.

The active involvement of stakeholders. including government
officials, NGOs, parents. and students, fosters ownership and 4/5
buy-in, enhancing the sustainability of educational initiatives

by fostering a supportive ecosystem of stakeholders.

Both the PMU and NGOs demonstrate alignment with the
govermuent's vision for education, indicating a shared
commitment to long-term sustainability and the continuity of
efforts to improve educational outcomes.

Overall rating
of the project 5/5

5.2 Recommendations

0 Communication with Stakeholders: there is a need to strengthen communication channels with
the NGO stakeholders to ensure greater engagement and involvement in educational initiatives.

0

O

Strengthen coordination mechanisms within the Partnership Management Unit to ensure
consistent and efficient support to program partners.

Explore opportunities for scaling successful initiatives to reach a broader audience and
maximise impact within the education sector.

Regularly monitor and evaluate program outcomes to identify areas for improvement and
ensure continued effectiveness:Increasing the frequency of observations of NGO programs and
conducting more workshops and training can further enhance the effectiveness of capac1ty
building efforts and program implementation.

-

:

Regular alignment and review meetings: this will allow all stakeholders to monitor the
progress of programs and initiatives. By reviewing key performance indicators, milestones.
and objectives, stakeholders can assess whether the program is on track to meet its goals or if
adjustments and support is needed.

Alignment meetings facilitate the sharing of best practices. lessons learned, and successful
strategies among stakeholders. This exchange of knowledge allows partners to learn from
each other's experiences and adopt approaches that have been proven effective in similar
context.

i
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6. PMU for NGO Partnerships Management -
Tripura:

Approach: Similar to the Tamil Nadu project, NQEF acts as a PMU. The methodology includes
document analysis, interviews, and surveys.

Participants Category:
1. State leadership
2. NGO representatives

Qutcomes to be Assessed:
1. Identification of need areas for future NGO partnerships.
2. Planning and implementation of support.

-

3. Monitoring and governance processes.
Data Analysis Technique: Document analysis will focus on planning and implementation

documents. Qualitative data from interviews and survey responses will be analyzed using content
analysis to assess the effectiveness of the PMU in Tripura.

6.1 Impact Assessment

OECD Criteria Remarks Rating

[

The PMU is relevant as it facilitates partnerships aligning with

national education policies and frameworks.

It ensures that programs fill gaps in the education system and

meet the needs of students and schools.

Both Adhyayan Foundation and Aahvan Trusts programmes

Relevance were found to be relevant for Tripura’s education system and 5/5
context:

!

mM

o All respondents indicate that the programs are relevant and
aligned with educational frameworks such as Samagra Siksha
and the National Education Policy (NEP).

0 The PMU plays a crucial role in promoting the
sustainability of educational programs. Through long-
Coherence term planning, capacity-building initiatives, and 5/5
continuous monitoring and evaluation. it ensures that
programs have lasting impacts and can be scaled up or
replicated in other contexts.
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&1 The PMU fosters collaboration among diverse
stakeholders, including government agencies, NGOs,
and community organizations. This collaborative
approach leads to synergies, efticiencies. and shared
learning. ultimately enhancing the overall impact of
educational interventions.

. The PMU efficiently utilizes its resources to implement
Efficiency SR : . . . . 4/5
various initiatives aimed at improving education quality.
0 The PMU demonstrates coherence by involving
stakeholders in decision-making and aligning program
visions with government objectives.
7 The PMU demonstrates effectiveness in coordinating
between government stakeholders. NGOs, and
program partners. It facilitates communication,
decision-making, and resource allocation.
Effectiveness O Regular communication and support provided by the 5/5
PMU contribute to the successful implementation of
programs, as indicated by positive outcomes reported
by stakeholders.
0 The PMU's role in providing advice, facilitating
meetings. and addressing problems faced by program
partners enhances the overall effectiveness of the
partnership.

7 The PMU's role has a significant impact on the
outcomes of educational programs. Through effective
coordination and support, it conlributes to increased
enrollment, improved academic performance, and
enhanced community engagement, 5/5
1 The PMU's efforts help in achieving higher-level
results within the education sector. By facilitating
collaboration and resource mobilization. it enables
stakeholders to address systemic issues and drive
meaningful change.

Impact

]

The PMU plays a crucial role in ensuring the

sustainability of partnerships by fostering long-term 4/5
relationships. facilitating planning for future activities,

and identifying opportunities for ongoing

collaboration.

Sustainability
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{1 Clear communication channels and regular alignment
meetings contribute to the sustainability of programs
and the continued achievement of desired outcomes.

i1 Efforts to address gaps. modify partnerships based on
evolving needs. and support program scalability
demonstrate the PMU's commitment to long-term
sustainability.

Overall rating
of the project 5/5

.2 Recommendaiions

Communication with Stakeholders: there is a need to strengthen communication channels with
the NGO stakeholders to ensure greater engagement and involvement in educational initiatives.
o Strengthen coordination mechanisms within the Partnership Management Unit to
ensure consistent and efficient support to program partners.
o Explore opportunities for scaling successful initiatives to reach a broader audience
and maximise impact within the education sector.

Regularly monitor and evaluate program outcomes to identify areas for improvement and
ensure continued effectiveness.

o Increasing the frequency of observations of NGO programs and conducting more
workshops and training can further enhance the effectiveness of capacity building
efforts and program implementation.

o Regular alignment and review meetings: this will allow all stakeholders to
monitor the progress of programs and initiatives. By reviewing key performance
indicators, milestones, and objectives, stakeholders can assess whether the
program is on track to meet its goals or if adjustments and support is needed.

o Alignment meetings facilitate the sharing of best practices, lessons learned, and
successful strategies among stakeholders. This exchange of knowledge allows
partners to learn from each other's experiences and adopt approaches that have
been proven effective in similar contexts



7. Manzil Welfare Society:

Approach: This project focuses on youth-led non-profit partnerships for educational
transformation. The methodology includes participant observation, interviews, and surveys.

Participants Category:
1. Mangzil students
2. Manzil teachers

~

3. Manzil core team members

Outcomes to be Assessed:
1. Effectiveness of Manzil's educational approach.
2. Impact on students' learning and empowerment.

Data Analysis Technique: Participant observation will involve direct observation of Manzil
programs. Qualitative data from interviews and surveys will be analyzed using thematic analysis
to understand the impact on students and the effectiveness of Manzil's approach.

Each project will have a tailored methodology to assess its objectives and outcomes. The data

analysis techniques will vary based on the nature of the data collected, ensuring a comprehensive
gvaluation of NQEF's initiatives.

7.1 lmpact Assessment

OECD Criteria Remarks Rating

[0 Manzil's core objectives can be summed up as: Create a
good human being; [mpact society positively; Every
student can be a teacher.

O Programs are designed by 'student-teachers', so programs

align with the objectives and the needs of students.

Objectives within each program - Value creation through

development of social skills and life skills.

Reflection-based skill development is the main focus, not

academics, done through after-school learning, without

Relevance negatively impacting school performance. 5/5

(1 Learners, the main stakeholders. come from the
community, so community engagement is important.

(1 Engagement through: Classes - students teachers, no
PTMs; Programs (Manzil's got talent, etc) - all
stakeholders including families - audiences of 300-1000
people; Health camps, Awareness drives

0  All the students in GD had been in at feast one level of
English at some point during their time with Manzil. The
youngest student is also a teacher for a lower grade of

7l
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Coherence

Efficiency

English. Each of them felt they have already gained from
their classes, not just academically, but also in daily life,
interacting with others and doing more.

00 Students join with their own understanding of why they
want to be in a program. Teachers guide them with
smaller goals; create curiosity within the subject and
encourage them to explore other programs and sessions
too.

"Find your strengths, work on those strengths to develop skills,

find your goals and work towards them."

[l Seamless integration of programs.

0  Alignment to overall mission vision.

0 All members of Manzil are free to explore and participate
in programs, session and events, and reflect to understand
what to pursue further.

[0 Interactions among students, teachers, team members
with Manzil offshoots, DNA infusions and other NGOs
as well, allows free-er flow of information ideas and
inspiration.

O Team retreats take time to re-imagine different aspects of
Manzil, reflecting on individual and collaborative efforts

There are plans/desires to revisit certain flagship program

structures and designs every 8-10 years, with changes in
technology. teaching methodologies, resources and needs of the

_ _ students.

O There is day to day efficiency.

0 Core members don't need to get involved in day to day
functioning. they can prioritise larger duties.

0 Space is divided and designated — no confusion or
disturbance in usage of space.

[ Main tasks as part of any role. largely get assigned based
on interest and ability.

{0 There is need to plan to divide work more equally - better
use of capability but still quite well-organised.
Sometimes members don't have enough time in the day to
do all that they need to,

Faster decision making would help.

Assigning devices to interns and members is sometimes

problematic.

0 Team members keep changing but there is still
understanding, and contributions are channeled by core
members. There is great need for long term employees as
core team for smoother operations than now.

O @

5/5

4/5
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Effectiveness

Impact

i

Can expand to sports and physical activity based skill
building - currently have insufficient space and resources
for it, but can engage more youth.

Inadequacies in resources are occasionally experienced by
members of the team but not by the students and teachers of

;

g

programs.
Students play a significant role in shaping their learning
experiences. Curriculum design receives input from
students and expertise from professionals with other
organisations.

Many classes engage students in fun learning activities,
especially when they're getting distracted easily.

English and Arts are quite effective, Math and Computers
are good but there scope for improvement

Only some rules exist for students to adhere to, which
they are respectful of and responsibly abide by, as weil.
Small size classrooms, though different per course -
students can connect with the teachers, a space is given to
learn without direct burden of learning for outcome -
allows better learning

Students get mentored by people within Manzil and its
offshoots.

Students become teachers.

Levels in many programs, existing ability determines
level. Eg: English has 5 levels, level 4 & 5 are about
practicing speaking exclusively - taking part in
discussions and building life and social skills.

Way of teaching is atypical. You're an integral part of the
system. Peer learning is essential. Create curiosity,
engage learners and teachers alike.

Core team members rate Teaching Methodology at 4.

5/5

Age factor doesn’t affect any part of the organisation’s

functioning. Young and old, join to study. teach, volunteer and

g

Il
i1

work with Manzil.

Events and performances are proof of growth of student

and their people skills, life skills and vocational skills -

explore creative expression. gain self-awareness,

confidence. Increased student engagement.

Internship and Hello Zindagi give opportunity for job

skills to convert to jobs 5/5
Anubhavshala - learn and then earn through it.

‘Seekho sikhao' sessions are organised to share something

that you learnt by teaching it to others.

CCIP (community college initiative program) -

opportunity to participate in an exchange program in

1§
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Sustainability

USA, attend a diploma program there and get multitude
of experiences.

Manzil community has grown larger. particularly online
through online classes and teams working with them
Rations, vaccinations and awareness drives for the
community.

Founders and DNA infusions learn and help each other.
Khan market community growth. Aim isn't for manzil to
grow but for things to grow out of manzil - 12 social and
educational enterprises that have come out through
Manzil work/interactions. Learning by Locals - learn then
20 to your community and bring change. Manzil Mystics
- teaching music to lakhs. .

Manzil has significantly contributed to personal
development in students, teachers and team members.
Manzil consists of people associated in more than I way:
student in different programs/ volunteer/ intern/ team
member/ core team/ offshoot entrepreneur etc. Many play
multiple roles within the same time-frame.

Students, teachers and members have gained immensely
from Manzil, know many who dream of setting up their
own businesses/organisations/ventures, know many who
have inspired them in their own personal journeys.

Feel pride or a boost in self-confidence thanks to classes and

O
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interactions with others within the Manzil network.
Impacting students, impacts the Manzil community - they
get involved, teach and contribute, helping Manzil grow.
Long term effectiveness of programs is 4-5 across
respondents - Programs are good, but programs and
requirements grow, and people change, so the same
quality can't be guaranteed each time. Trying to create
Standard Operating Procedures to help newer members.
Could pian tasks to be done better, so strengths can be
utilised for the org

Creating impact, starting things. aligned with mission
While students conduct simple surveys or interact with
the community, the students also learn and grow
Programs are skill based. Skills that enable them to get
jobs. Using the skills in the job. continue to benefit them
for years to come

All activities directly or indirectly contribute to continuity
and sustainability of the org, in line with its mission and
V1S1011.

Resource management isn't a 'strength'. It's not bad but not

fantastic either. Room for a lot of improvement.

4/5
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Overall rating
of the project 4/5

7.2 Case Studies

Krupali from rural Gujarat, joined online as student in multiple online programs since 2020,
taught Maths online, volunteered for online Manzil events, became intern then core team. She is
currently helping develop curriculum for Manzil’s Math program, is working with teachers
within and outside Manzil. designing Manzil’s website, and participates in team level planning
for big projects like Helflo Zindagi. She has been core team member since 2021.

Shrikant has been with theatre since age 12. He learnt to link theatre to the development sector
while studying theatre, English and computers at Manzil. Through reflective sessions, he felt
himself develop [eadership skills and self-awareness, and then decided to work with Manzil. He
set up his own theatre group Dramebaaz. through which he works with many different
communities including youth in crime and youth affected by crime and also conducts sessions
through a program called Learning through Theatre to make Manzil community more aware of
things of national interest. He heads theatre at Manzil. and has been a core team of Manzil since
2019. -
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A student from Madhya Pradesh came to Delhi for an undergraduate program he was enrolled
in. He joined Manzil to study side by side; volunteered a lot through Manzil, to learn that what
he was studying in college was of interest to him but not as much as another he found resources
and inspiration for through his work. He now does film-making, meeting numerous people,
travelling a lot,

Poonam from rural Assam joined online to study and now teaches online as well. Her
hometown has limited opportunities for income to support the household, without migrating to
larger cities. She currently teaches music remotely. at Manzil and independently. sustaining
herself and her family.

o 30



7.2 Becommendations

Streamline Decision-Making Processes: Implement measures to expedite decision-making
processes, which would help in improving day-to-day efficiency and overall organizational
effectiveness.

Implement Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs): Develop and implement SOPs to ensure
consistent quality across programs and activities, especially with changes in technology.
resources, and student needs.

Continuocusly Review and Update Program Structures: Regularly revisit flagship program
structures and designs every 4-5 years, considering changes in technology. resources. and student
needs, to ensure relevance and effectiveness.

Enhance Monitoring and Evaluation: Strengthen monitoring and evaluation mechanisms to
track the long-term effectiveness of programs, ensuring that they continue to meet the evolving
needs of the community.

Facilitate Peer Learning and Reflection: Encourage peer learning and reflection among
participants to enhance the effectiveness of programs and promote continuous personal
development.

Enhance Qutreach and Communication: Increase efforts to communicate impact and success
stories to a wider audience, leveraging events and performances organized by students to
showcase achievements and attract support.

Encourage Cross-Organizational Collaboration: Foster collaborations with other NGOs and
organizations to share resources. best practices, and expertise, enhancing the overall impact and
sustainability of programs.
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8. Teach For India Fellowship Program

3.1 Impact Assessment

Fellows

Findings

Fellow All fellows who were part of the impact assessment process had
Background: different educational qualifications and sectoral backgrounds

All fellows were motivated to make an impact in the education
Fellow . . -

e system of India and support children from marginalised

Motivation: .

communities
Fellow Approach: (All fellows reflected growth-mindset

Feliow Skills:

All fellows were able to identify their keys skills learnt during
the fellowship such as facilitation. reflection, planning,
empathy. compassion among many others

Faced challenges during the COVII-19 pandemic in engaging
students virtually but implemented innovative strategies to

Ability to adapt to ;> e

difficult foster student curiosity and engagement.

circumstances: ng(?nstrated ad‘aptabil}ty by understanding student nee‘ds. .
building connections with students and parents, and navigating
through unexpected changes effectively.
All fellows Demonstrated leadership qualities by fostering

Leadership & collaboration, empowering parents and students, and leading

Social Impact:

impactful community initiatives like Project Karma, NIIVE
Foundation and Naz




Community

Engagement:

Understanding the context of COVID-19 pandemic, all fellows
played a pivotal role in community engagement through various
initiatives like conducting sessions for parents, and
collaborating with fellow teachers on projects. helping one-one
conversations with mothers. helping parents find renting
facilities among others

Creativity:

All fellows have portrayed immense creativity within and
outside classrooms. By embracing innovation. fostering
curiosity, and empowering students to think outside the box,
they have not only enriched the learning experiences of their
students but also inspired a culture of creativity and resilience
that will endure long after their tenure.

Reflection &
Feedback:

Throughout the fellowship, all fellows consistently embraced
opportunities for self-reflection and actively sought feedback
from various stakeholders. including students. co-teachers,
managers, and community members.

TFI
Fellowship

Design

Based on the responses from the fellows, The Fellowship is
designed to recruit high-potential individuals from diverse
backgrounds and equip them with the necessary skills,
knowledge, and support to become effective educators and
leaders. The program's rigorous selection process ensures that
fellows are committed to the mission of educational equity and
possess the qualities needed to thrive in challenging school
enviromments. The fellowship's structured curriculum,
professional development opportunities, and ongoing support
mechanisms are tailored to meet the unique needs of fellows,
providing them with the tools and resources necessary to make a
meaningful impact in the classroom and beyond.

Adaptability

One of the key strengths of the Teach For India Fellowship
program is its adaptability in response to changing
circumstances and challenges. The program demonstrated
remarkable flexibility during the COVID-19 pandemic. quickly
transitioning to virtual learning models and providing fellows
with the necessary training and resources to navigate remote
teaching effectively. The program's ability to pivot and adapt to
new realities while maintaining its focus on educational equity
underscores its resilience and commitment to supporting fellows
in diverse contexts. The fellowship is designed to support
fellows in difficult contexts and if they are faced with
challenges.

Impact

The Teach For India Fellowship program has had a significant

impact on both fellows and the communities they serve. Fellows
report personal and proflessional growth, increased empathy and
understanding of educational inequities, and a deep commitment




to social change. Moreover, the program has led to tangible
improvemnents in student outcomes, including academic
achievement, attendance, and socio-emotional development. By
placing talented individuals in low-income schools and
providing them with the support and resources needed to
succeed, the fellowship program has contributed to narrowing
the educational opportunity gap and empowering students from
underserved communities. All fellows participating in the
survey are continuing to work in the education sector or
pursuing their higher studies in education itself.

Mentors &
Managers

Mentorship and managerial support are critical components of
the Teach For India Fellowship program. Mentors provide
fellows with guidance. feedback. and emotional support
throughout their fellowship journey, helping them navigate
challenges. reflect on their practice, and maximize their impact
in the classroom. All fellows mentioned their experiences in
learning circles and the support and feedback provided by their
managers.

Vision alignment

The Teach For India Fellowship program demonstrates a strong
alignment with its vision of educational equity and social
justice. Fellows are selected based on their commitment to the
program's mission and are provided with the training. resources,
and support needed to advance this vision in their classrooms
and communities. The program's emphasis on empowering
students from underserved backgrounds. advocating for
systemic change, and fostering a culture of excellence and
collaboration reflects a shared commitment to creating a more
equitable and inclusive society. The fellows are murtured to be
the leaders of society by enabling change and making an impact
inside and outside classrooms.




OECD
Criteria

Remarks Rating

The Teach For India Fellowship program demonstrates high
relevance to the local context and the broader goal of
educational equity. The program recruits fellows from diverse
backgrounds. ensuring they are equipped with the necessary
skills and support to make a meaningtul impact in challenging
school environments. The program's focus on addressing
educational inequities and empowering students from
marginalized communities aligns with the overarching goal of
improving education outcomes for all.

Relevance 5/5

The program exhibits a high level of coherence. with its various
components working together to create a comprehensive and
impactful experience for fellows. The structured curriculum,
professional development opportunities, and ongoing support
mechanisms are all aligned to ensure that fellows are well-
prepared to address the challenges they face in the classroom.

Coherence 5/5



Efficiency

Effectiveness

Impact

Sustainability

Overall rating
of the project

Additionally, the program's adaptability in response to changing
circumstances underscores its coherence and effectiveness in

achieving its goals.

The Teach For India Fellowship program demonstrates
efficiency in its operations, particularly in its ability to adapt to
challenging circumstances. The program quickly transitioned to
virtual learning models during the COVID-19 pandemic,
providing fellows with the necessary training and resources to
continue teaching effectively. This adaptability highlights the
program's efficiency in responding to unexpected challenges
while maintaining its focus on educational equity. _
The program has been highly effective in achieving its goals of
personal and professional growth for fellows, increased
empathy and understanding of educational inequities, and
tangible improvements in student outcomes. Fellows report
significant improvements in academic achievement, attendance,
and socio-emotional development among their studenis,
indicating the program's effectiveness in narrowing the
educational opportunity gap. o

The Teach For India Fellowship program has had a significant
impact on both fellows and the communities they serve.
Fellows report a deep commitment to social change and
continue to work in the education sector or pursue higher
studies in education. The program has also led to tangible
improvements in student outcomes. demonstrating its impact on
narrowing the educational opportunity gap and empowering
students from underserved communities.

The program demonstrates a strong commtitiment to
sustainability through its emphasis on empowering fellows to
become leaders in the education sector and advocates for
systemic change. By nurturing fellows to be change-makers in
their classrooms and communities, the program atms to create a
lasting impact on educational equity and social justice.
Additionally, the program's focus on ongoing support and
mentorship ensures that fellows are equipped to sustain their
impact beyond the fellowship period.

5/5

515

5/5

5/5

5/5
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8.2 Seli-Assessment by Ie

Effectivensss in planning lessons (Rate 1-5)

The effectiveness of Teach For India (TFI) fellows in planning lessons is a key aspect of their
role as educators. TFI fellows displayed innovative approaches to lesson planning, which have a
significant impact on student learning outcomes.
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One of the strengths of TFI fellows is their ability to tailor lesson plans to meet the specific needs
of their students. They take into account the diverse learning styles, backgrounds, and abilities of
their students, ensuring that lessons are engaging and accessible to all. This personalized
approach helps to maximize student engagement and comprehension, leading to better learning
outcomes. ’

Furthermore, TFI fellows are adept at incorporating real-world examples and experiences into
their lesson plans. They strive to make learning relevant and meaningful to students’ lives,
helping them connect classroom concepts to the world around them. This approach not only
enhances student understanding but also motivates them to learn more.

Leadership role within the community

Rate 3
Rate 5
Gu dds
Rate 4
Effectivaness of Community Engagement lnitiatives
Rate 3

Rats 4




The data collected shows that Teach For India (TTI) fellows play a crucial leadership role in
community engagement, leveraging their positions as educators to foster meaningful relationships
with students, parents, and cominunity members. Through innovative approaches and a deep
understanding of local contexts, fellows design and implement initiatives that address community
needs and enhance student learning experiences. By organizing community events, conducting
home visits. and collaborating with local stakeholders, TFI fellows build trust and partnerships
that contribute to positive social change and empower communities to actively patticipate in the
educational process.

Ability to Coliaborate with others

Rate 4

g3 A,

TFI fellows demonsirate a high level of ability to collaborate with other fellows and school
teachers, leveraging their diverse backgrounds and skills to create impactful learning
enviromments. Through regular collaboration meetings, peer observations. and joint planning
sessions, fellows share best practices. co-create inmovative teaching strategies, and provide mutual
support. This collaborative approach not only enhances the quality of teaching and learning but
also fosters a sense of community among fellows and teachers. ultimately benefiting students and
the school ecosystem as a whole.



Performance for the AY 2021-22

Rate 5

Rate 4

Based on the TFI interview for the Academic Year 2021-22. the fellows demonstrated a strong
commitment to educational equity and a deep passion for making a positive impact in their
classrooms and communities. Their ability to adapt to challenging circumstances, particularly
during the COVID-19 pandemic, was commendable, as they implemented innovative strategies to
engage students and foster learning. The fellows' leadership qualities were evident in their
collaboration with peers and school staff, leading to meaningtul contributions to student learning
outcomes and community engagement. Overall, the TFI fellows for the Academic Year 2021-22
showed exceptional dedication and effectiveness in their roles, embodying the core values of
Teach For India.

Fellowship's coniribuiion to their long-term goals

Rale §

The TFI Fellowship Program contributes to the long-term goals of the fellows to remain and
contribute to the education system by providing them with a comprehensive support system and a

Pa.



transformative experience that inspires them to continue their work in the field of education.
Through the fellowship, fellows develop a deep understanding of the challenges and opportunities
in the education sector, as well as the skills and knowledge needed to address them effectively.
The program also fosters a sense of community among fellows, encouraging collaboration and
peer learning, which are essential for long-term engagement in the education system. Additionally.
TFI provides ongoing support and networking opportunities for alumni. empowering them to
continue making a positive impact in education even after the fellowship ends.

5.3 Becommendations

)

0 Encourage continued support and investment in professional development opportunities for
educators to foster growth and innovation in educational practices.

N Promote community engagement initiatives that empower parents, students. and educators to
collaborate effectively in addressing educational inequities.

0 Advocate for policies and programs that prioritize educational equity and provide resources
and support to underserved communities and schools

e



Conclusion

Conducting the impact assessment for the School Quality Enhancement Program (SQEP), Project
Management Unit (PMU) projects in Tamil Nadu and Tripura. Manzil Welfare Society, and Teach
For India (TFI) Fellowship program was a comprehensive and enlightening experience. The
process began with thorough research and planning, including reviewing existing literature,
defining evaluation criteria, and establishing a framework for data collection and analysis.
Collaborating with stakeholders. including program beneficiaries, teachers, principals, and
community members, was crucial to understanding the programs' impact from various
perspectives.

Data collection involved a mix of quantitative and qualitative methods. such as surveys.
interviews, focus group discussions, and document reviews. These methods provided a helistic
view of the programs' effectiveness in achieving their goals and objectives. Analysing the data
required meticulous attention to detail and a keen understanding of the context and nuances of
each program. It involved identifying key trends, patterns, and insights that emerged from the data.
which helped in drawing meaningful conclusions and recommendations.

The impact assessments conducted for the five projects underscore the substantial contributions
these initiatives have made toward enhancing education quality and fostering community
development. SQEP has effectively improved school quality through capacity building and
infrastructure development. leading to positive outcomes in student learmning and school
infrastructure. Likewise, the PMU projects in Tamil Nadu and Tripura have successfully enhanced
education quality through infrastructure development. teacher (raining, and community
engagement, showcasing coherence and resource efficiency that positively impacted student
learning, community engagement, and infrastructure development.

Manzil Welfare Society's programs have been highly impactful. fostering personal development
amonyg students and teachers by emphasizing peer learning and skill development. The programs'
seamless integration and alignment with the organization's mission and vision have contributed to
their sustainability and long-term effectiveness.

The TFI Fellowship program has played a crucial role in enhancing student learning outcomes and
community engagement. The program's adaptability and focus on empowering fellows as effective
educators and leaders have resulted in tangible improvements in student outcomes and a strong
commitment to social change.

In conclusion, the impact assessments of these initiatives highlight the significance of contextually
relevant, coherent, and sustainable interventions in driving positive change in education and
community development. They emphasize the ongoing need for suppost and investinent in such
programs to further amplify their impact and advance inclusive and equitable education for all.
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Executive Summary

Max India Foundation (MIF) recently conducted an impact assessment of the Teach For India (TFI)
fellowship program. The objective of the assessment was to evaluate the effectiveness of the
programine in achieving its intended outcomes and impact.

The assessment revealed that the programme was highly relevant to the local context, effectively
addressing specific challenges in the education system. The programme demonstrated a high level of
coherence, with integrated components working synergistically towards common objectives. They
were also efficient in resource allocation, maximizing impact on student learning outcomes,
community engagement, and infrastructure enhancements.

The TFI fellowship programme, focused on providing quality education to underprivileged children.
was found to be highly impactful, significantly improving student learning outcomes and fostering
community engagement. The program's success was attributed to its coherent structure, providing
fellows with comprehensive training and support. The program also exhibited sustainability, with
many fellows continuing to contribute to the education sector post-fellowship. The program
demonstrated efficiency in resource utilization and emphasized sustainability through strategic
partnerships and collaborations with key stakeholders.

In conclusion, the impact assessment of one of MIF's project—TFI fellowship programme underscores
the organization's success in achieving its mission of enhancing education quality in various regions
of India. The findings highlight the importance of contextually relevant. coherent, and sustainable
interventions in driving positive change in education. reaffirming MIF's commitment to
transformative impact in the education sector.

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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1.Introduction

1.1 Objectives: Teach for India Fellowship Program

1. To measure the program's impact on participants’ leadership development and their
understanding of poverty and educational inequity.

2. To assess the program's effectiveness in preparing participants to work in challenging
educational environments.

(S}

To evaluate the impact on student progress in terms of Attendance, Learning,
Engagement, and Well-Being.

1.2 Limitations of the Study

1. Data Limitation: The assessment relied on existing data and reports provided by
implementing organizations. which may not have been comprehensive or up-to-date.
There may have been limitations in data collection methods, leading to potential biases or
incomplete information.

Contextual Limitation: The assessment was conducted within the specific contexts of

Tripura, Tamil Nadu, and other areas where MIF's projects are implemented. The

findings may not be generalizable to other regions or countries with different socio-

economic, cultural, and educational contexts.

Time Limitation: The assessment may not capture the long-term impacts of MIF's

projects, as the evaluation was conducted at a specific point in time. Longitudinal studies

would be needed to assess the sustainability of the impacts over time.

4. Stakeholder Engagement Limitation: While the assessment considered the perspectives

of various stakeholders, including government bodies, NGOs, and community members,

there may have been limitations in the depth and breadth of stakeholder engagement.

More extensive engagement could provide a more comprehensive understanding of the

impacts of MIF's projects.

External Factors Limitation: The assessment may not have fully accounted for external

factors that could influence the outcomes of MIF's projects, such as changes in

government policies, economic conditions, or other social factors.

6. Measurement Limitation: The assessment relied on qualitative and quantitative
indicators to measure the impact of MIF's projects. However, these indicators may not
fully capture the complex and multi-dimensional nature of educational outcomes and
impacts.

7. Attribution Limitation: While the assessiment attempted to attribute the impacts
observed to MIF's projects, there may have been limitations in establishing direct causal
links. Other factors outside the scope of the assessment could have contributed to the
observed outcomes.

o]
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2. About the Evaluating Agency

2.1 Catalytic Corps

Catalytic Crops is a social impact consultancy that believes in catalysing impactful processes of
change. It is our understanding that social challenges are labelled *wicked® when their scope is
varied, nature is continually changing and their symptoms are intermingled. Our vision is to work
towards creating an equitable society where good quality systems lead to a good quality of'life.
Consequently, we work towards equitable institution building through interdisciplinary, data driven
project managenient to generate sustainable impact at scale. We believe in sustainability and
approach issues at hand with problem-orientation to understand its root cause and co-create the
solution in the real context which then becomes applicable and impactful. Therefore, we believe
that methods employed to problem solve should be productive, empirical and replicable. Such
processes not only iterate comprehensive solutions but also build self- sustaining social capacity.
They factor in necessary resource inputs to mitigate imminent yet ineffable complexities of social
challenges.

Our Mission is to partner with nonprofits, foundations and governments to help them drive the
lasting change they want to see through their work. We recognise the unique value added by
including information across disciplines. Our multidisciplinary approach equips us to create
structures and institutions working to solve the multi-layered challenges posed by wicked
problems. Our expertise lies in Research, Advocacy. Strategic Advisory, Project Management.
Systemic Partnerships, Sustainability, Capacity Building, and Evaluation. We are experts at
identifying project pain points and adopting context-specific plans for effective change. We
approach each of our projects with fresh eyes and develop bespoke solutions to generate desired
outcomes keeping in mind each project’s unique context.

Our Approacn

B

Impact Diagnose

S NV T st T i gmg i an s ey
LG GRINOQGOR IO oL [NOEm sving

Design

Improve

Deliver

lterate

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22



NDIA
QUNDATION

Catalytic Corps

Catalytic Corps provides the following three interrelated attributes:

a) high concentration of experienced, qualified, and talented team members.

b) abundant resources to provide a rich learning environment and conduct advanced research.

c) favourable governance features to facilitate autonomy, strategic vision, and effective resource
management.

2.2 Metwork and Partnerships

Catalytic Corps maintains a robust network of academics, researchers, and data enumerators across
India. This extensive network allows us to tap into a wealth of expertise and resources when
conducting research and data collection. We collaborate with leading institutions and individuals
in academia to ensure the highest quality of research and analysis. Our network of trained
enumerators is strategically located across the country. enabling us to efficiently collect data from
various regions. We have high impact generating partners like KPMG, USAID, CARE India,
Noora Health, NASSCOM, Breakthrough, Antarang Foundation, Dost education, STIR Education.
Central Square Foundation, Amit Chandra Foundation, Ford Foundation, Governments of MH,
UP and Uttarakhand etc. We have helped them with a range of service offerings starting from
strategic advisory to project planning, management and impact assessments. We have helped our
many partners to embed their program within the government systems to achieve sustainable
impact at scale.

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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3. Methodolegy and Approach

In conducting the impact assessment for the Teach For India (TFI) Fellowship Programme, a
meticulous and tailored methodology was employed to evaluate each project's unique objectives.
The qualitative techniques were used aligned with OECD DAC evaluation criteria aimed to extract
nuanced insights into the effectiveness, challenges, and overall impact of the initiatives. This
comprehensive approach aimed at facilitating informed decision-making and enabled the strategic
refinement of educational strategies in government schools, ultimately contributing to the pursuit
of exemplary education.

The impact assessment of Teach For India (TFI) fellows employed a mixed-methods approach to
evaluate the effectiveness of the fellowship program. Quantitative data was collected through
surveys to measure changes in student learning outcomes and academic performance. Qualitative
data is gathered through in-depth interviews. to understand the broader impacts of the program on
students, teachers, and the community. The assessment also considered contextual factors such as
school environment, community engagement, and the socio-economic background of students.
The combination of quantitative and qualitative methods allowed for a comprehensive evaluation
of the program's impact and helps identify areas for improvement and future development.

3.1 OECD DAC: Evalpation Criterin

The OECD-DAC (Development Assistance Committee) Evaluation Network's framework plays a
pivotal role. Recognizing the need for a comprehensive evaluation approach, the OECD DAC
Network has delineated six key evaluation criteria and two guiding principles: relevance.
coherence. effectiveness, efficiency, impact, and sustainability. These criteria are strategically
designed to facilitate evaluations, ensuring a thorough and systematic analysis of development
initiatives.

The OECD DAC Network revisited and refined these criteria in 2019 with the primary objective
of enhancing the accuracy and utility of assessments. The revisions underscore the network's
commitment to strengthening the contribution of evaluations to sustainable development goals
(OECD, 2020). This framework, with its revised criteria, forms the cornerstone of our impact
assessment methodology, providing a robust and globally recognized foundation for evaluating
the effectiveness and sustainability of our initiatives.

Relevance: This criterion assesses the extent to which the objectives of a project or program ate
aligned with the needs and priorities of the target population. It considers whether the intervention
addresses key development challenges and is consistent with national and international
development priorities.

Effectiveness: Effectiveness evaluates the extent to which the project or program achieves its
intended objectives. It examines the outcomes and impacts of the intervention. including the extent
to which it has contributed to positive changes in the lives of the target population.

Py 10
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Efficiency: Efficiency looks at how well resources (such as funding. time, and human resources)
are used to achieve the desired results. Tt considers whether the intervention has achieved its
objectives in a cost-effective manner and whether resources have been allocated efficiently.

Impact: Iimpact assesses the broader effects of the intervention, beyond the immediate outcomes.
It considers the long-term and sustainable changes brought about by the intervention, as well as
any unintended or negative impacts.

Coherence: Coherence evaluates the extent to which the intervention is consistent and
complementary with other development efforts and policies. both within the sector and across
different sectors. It considers whether the intervention contributes to broader development goals
and strategies.

Sustainability: Sustainability evaluates the likelihood that the benefits of the intervention will
continue after the project or program ends. It considers whether the intervention has built local
capacity, strengthened institutions. and created lasting change.

How well does
the intervention fit?

ts the intervention ®
doing the right things?

Is the intervention
achieving its obisctives?

&

Wil the benefils last? & ; FECTIVENES

How walt are resources
being used?

What difference does . ;
the intervention make?

Fhorpe 2O N PR aeian £ e

3.2 Geographical Scope

The impact assessment for this project extended across two states and encompassed specific areas

within Delhi.
Project Location
Teach For India Fellowship Programme Delhi

pe. 1
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3.3 Ssampling Strategy

The determination of the sample size for this study was executed through the application of
purposive sampling methodology. In recognition of the unique characteristics and specific
objectives of the study, purposive sampling emerged as the most fitting strategy to ensure that the
selected participants were deliberately chosen to provide meaningful insights into the questions at
hand. This approach allowed for a targeted and intentional selection of individuals or groups who
possessed pertinent information, expertise, or experiences directly relevant to the study's focus.

3.4 Data Collection and Analysis

Catalytic Corps executed the data collection by employing expert research associates utilizing a
hybrid methodology involving online face to face interview sessions and on-site field visits. In-
depth interviews, guided by pre designed interview guide and questionnaires, were administered
to pertinent stakeholders. Field visits were conducted at the Manzil Welfare Society, while online
face-to-face interviews were conducted at other specified locations. The data translated and
transcribed, subsequently being organized into Excel spreadsheets for further analysis.

Subsequent to the comprehensive data collection and cleaning processes, a robust statistical
analysis was applied to find emerging themes, relationships. and trends within the dataset. The
outcomes of this analytical phase were then judiciously employed to assess and quantify the impact
of the project.

TFI Fellowship Programme assessiment involved in-depth interviews were conducted with fellows
to gather detailed insights into their experiences. challenges, and the impact of their work. These
interviews provided qualitative data that helped in understanding the nuances of the fellows'
experiences and the outcomes of their efforts. Additionally. self-assessment tools were used to
allow fellows to reflect on their own progress. achievements. and areas for improvement.

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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3.4 Scoring Matrix
OECD  Indicators Weighiage Combined -
Parameters Weightage
Relevance Quarterly Reports 20% W1:40%
Relevance to target beneficiaries 50%
Relevance to partner 30%
Coherence "”Al'i'gni'ﬁent with natienal policy 50%
Alignment of the activities, outputs, and  50%
outcomes with overall project objectives
Effici'enc'y ~ Utilisation of resources 50% W2:50%
Project Delivery Timelines ' - 50%
Effectiveness  Identification of problem 50%
1riiprbiféiﬁént in existing situation 50%
Impact Targeted beneficiaries 35% Wd: 30%
 Smooth implementation 35%
Increase in awareness regarding topics' 30%

Sustainability  Sustainability Mechanism, Convergence  100%

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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3.5 Justification:

Introduction of Coherence: One significant change in this year's scoring format is the inclusion
of "Coherence" as a parameter, which was not used in the previous year's assessment. However,
this year, in line with the OECD framework. coherence is being carefully considered as a parameter
to assess the projects’ alignment with broader development goals and strategies. as well as the
alignment of activities, outputs, and outcomes with overall project objectives.

Weightage and Indicators: The evaluation criteria and their weightages have been modified in
response to insights gained from past evaluations and evolving needs of the projects. Overall,
maximum score of a project is 5 as we have assigned different weightage to parameters and
indicators.

Enhanced Clarity and Detail: The scoring format for this year aims to provide more clarity and
detail in evaluating the projects. It includes more specific indicators or criteria within each
parameter to ensure a more comprehensive assessment.

Alignment with Project Objectives: The revised scoring format aligns more closely with the
current objectives and priorities of the projects. It focuses on areas that are deemed critical for the
projects' success and sustainability, based on the previous year's outcomes and recommendations.

Improved Measurement of Impact: There is an increased emphasis on measuring the impact of
the projects, with a focus on tangible outcomes and long-term sustainability. This reflects a
strategic shift towards results-oriented evaluation and performance measurement.

Assessment of Overall Impact: It's important to note that these parameters were used to assess
the overall impact of the projects this year and not the intricacies of individual components. The
focus was on evaluating the projects' etfectiveness, efficiency, and sustainability in achieving their
intended goals and benefiting the target beneficiaries and communities.

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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4. Teach For India Fellowship Program

4.1 Impact Assessment

Findings

Fellow All fellows who were part of the impact assessment process had
Background: different educational qualifications and sectoral backgrounds

All fellows were motivated to make an impact in the education
system of India and support children from marginalised
cominunities

Fellow
Motivation:

Fellow Approach: {All fellows reflected growth-mindset

All fellows were able to identify their keys skills learnt during
Fellow Skills: the fellowship such as facilitation, reflection, planning,
empathy, compassion among many others

Fellows

Faced challenges during the COVID-19 pandemic in engaging
Ability to adap.t to istudents virtually but implemented innovative strategies to
difficult foster student curiosity and engagement.

Demonstrated adaptability by understanding student needs.
building connections with students and parents, and navigating
through unexpected changes effectively.

circumstances:

o

S
4z
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All fellows Demonstrated leadership qualities by fostering
Leadership & collaboration, empowering parents and students, and leading
Social Impact: impactful community initiatives like Project Karma, NIIVE
Foundation and Naz

Understanding the context of COVID-19 pandemic, all fellows
played a pivotal role in community engagement through various
Community initiatives like conducting sessions for parents, and
Engagement: collaborating with fellow teachers on projects, helping one-one
conversations with mothers, helping parents find renting
facilities among others

All fellows have portrayed immmense creativity within and
outside classrooms. By embracing innovation, fostering
curiosity, and empowering students to think outside the box,
they have not only enriched the learning experiences of their
students but also inspired a culture of creativity and resilience
that will endure long after their tenure.

Creativity:

Throughout the fellowship, all fellows consistently embraced
Reflection & opportunities for self-reflection and actively sought feedback
Feedback: from various stakeholders, including students. co-teachers,
managers, and community members.

Based on the responses from the fellows, The Fellowship is
designed to recruit high-potential individuals from diverse
backgrounds and equip them with the necessary skills,
knowledge. and support to become effective educators and
leaders. The program's rigorous selection process ensures that
fellows are committed to the mission of educational equity and
possess the qualities needed to thrive in challenging school
environments. The fellowship's structured curriculum,
professional development opportunities, and ongoing suppott
mechanisms are tailored to meet the unique needs of fellows,
providing them with the tools and resources necessary to make a
TFI meaningful impact in the classroom and beyond.

Fellowship One of the key strengths of the Teach For India Fellowship
program is its adaptability in response to changing
circumstances and challenges. The program demonstrated
remarkable flexibility during the COVID-19 pandemic. quickly
transitioning to virtual learning models and providing fellows
with the necessary training and resources to navigate remote
teaching effectively. The program’s ability to pivot and adapt to
new realities while maintaining its focus on educational equity
underscores its resilience and commitment to supporting fellows
in diverse contexts. The fellowship is designed to support
fellows in difficult contexts and if they are faced with
challenges.

Design

Adaptability

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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The Teach For India Fellowship program has had a significant
impact on both fellows and the communities they serve. Fellows
report personal and professional growth, increased empathy and
understanding of educational inequities, and a deep commitment
to social change. Moreover, the program has led to tangible
improvements in student outcomes, including academic
achievement, attendance, and socio-emotional development. By
placing talented individuals in low-income schools and
providing them with the support and resources needed to
succeed, the fellowship program has contributed to narrowing
the educational opportunity gap and empowering students from
underserved communities. All fellows participating in the
survey are continuing to work in the education sector or
pursuing their higher studies in education itself.

Impact

Mentorship and managerial support are critical components of
the Teach For India Fellowship program. Mentors provide
fellows with guidance. feedback. and emotional support
Mentors & throughout their fellowship journey, helping them navigate
Managers challenges. reflect on their practice. and maximize their impact
in the classroom. All fellows mentioned their experiences in
learning circles and the support and feedback provided by their
managers.

The Teach For India Fellowship program demonstrates a strong
aligmment with its vision of educational equity and social
justice. Fellows are selected based on their commitment to the
program's mission and are provided with the training, resources.
and support needed to advance this vision in their classrooms
and communities. The program's emphasis on empowering
students from underserved backgrounds, advocating for
systemic change, and fostering a culture of excellence and
collaboration reflects a shared commitment to creating a more
equitable and inclusive society. The fellows are nurtured to be
the leaders of society by enabling change and making an impact
inside and outside classrooms.

Vision alignment

OECD

Criteria Remarks Rating
The Teach For India Fellowship program demonstrates 'high
relevance to the local context and the broader goal of educational
Relevance equity. The program recruits fellows from diverse backgrounds, 49

ensuring they are equipped with the necessary skills and support to
make a meaningful impact in challenging school environments. The
program’s focus on addressing educational inequities and

pe 18
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overarching goal of improving education outcomes for all.

The program exhibits a high level of coherence. with its various
components working together to create a comprehensive and
impactful experience for fellows. The structured curriculum,
professional development opportunities. and ongoing support
mechanisms are all aligned to ensure that fellows are well-prepared
to address the challenges they face in the classroom. Additionally,
the program’s adaptability in response to changing circumstances

- underscores its coherence and effectiveness in achieving its goals.

Coherence

The Teach For India Fellowship program demonstrates efficiency in '

its operations, particularly in its ability to adapt to challenging
circumstances. The program quickly transitioned to virtual learning
models during the COVID-19 pandemic, providing fellows with the
necessary training and resources to continue teaching effectively.
This adaptability highlights the program's efficiency in responding to
unexpected challenges while maintaining its focus on educational
- equity. _ . - S
The program has been highly effective in achieving its goals of
personal and professional growth for fellows, increased empathy and
understanding of educational inequities, and tangible improvements
Effectiveness  in student outcomes. Fellows report significant improvements in
academic achievement. attendance. and socio-emotional
development among their students, indicating the program's
effectiveness in narrowing the educational opportunity gap.

- The Teach For India Fellowship program has had a significant
impact on both fellows and the communities they serve. Fellows
report a deep commitment to social change and continue to work in

Impact the education sector or pursue higher studies in education. The
program has also led to tangible improvements in student outcomes,
demonstrating its impact on narrowing the educational opportunity
gap and empowering students from underserved communities.

The program demonstrates a strong cormmitment to sustainability
through its emphasis on empowering tellows to become leaders in
the education sector and advocates for systemic change. By
nurturing fellows to be change-makers in their classrooms and
communities, the program aims to create a lasting impact on
educational equity and social justice. Additionally. the program's
focus on ongoing support and mentorship ensures that fellows are
“equipped to sustain their impact beyond the fellowship period.
Overall rating of the project

Efficiency

Sustainability

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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4.2 Seli-Assessment by Fellows

The effectiveness of Teach For India (TFI) fellows in planning lessons is a key aspect of their role
as educators. TFI fellows displayed innovative approaches to lesson planning, which have a
significant impact on student learning outcomes. One of the strengths of TFI fellows is their ability
to tailor lesson plans to meet the specific needs of their students. They take into account the diverse
learning styles, backgrounds, and abilities of their students, ensuring that lessons are engaging and
accessible to all. This personalized approach helps to maximize student engagement and
comprehension, leading to better learning outcomes.

Furthermore, TFI fellows are adept at incorporating real-world examples and experiences into their
lesson plans. They strive to make learning relevant and meaningful to students' lives, helping them
connect classtoom concepts to the world around them. This approach not only enhances student
understanding but also motivates them to learn more.

Effectiveness in planning lessons (Rate 1-5)

Rate 4

Froore 3 Effectiveness in Pluniing Lessois

pe 20
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The data collected (refer to fig. 6 & fig. 7) shows that Teach For India (TFI) fellows play a crucial
leadership role in community engagement, leveraging their positions as educators to foster
meaningful relationships with students, parents, and community members. Through innovative
approaches and a deep understanding of local contexts, fellows design and implement initiatives
that address community needs and enhance student learning experiences. By organizing
community events, conducting home visits, and collaborating with local stakeholders, TFI fellows
build trust and partnerships that contribute to positive social change and empower communities to
actively participate in the educational process.

Leadership role within the community
Rate 3
Rate &
Rate 4
Fleure O Leadership rofe within the comnpnsin
Effectiveness of Community Engagement Initiatives
Rate 3
14
Rate 4
Rate 4
85 7%

Figure 7 Effeciivenesy of communiiyv ciugagement iiiative

=3
(15
[
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TFI fellows demonstrate a high level of ability to collaborate with other fellows and school
teachers, leveraging their diverse backgrounds and skills to create impactful learning
environments. Through regular collaboration meetings, peer observations. and joint planning
sessions, fellows share best practices. co-create innovative teaching strategies, and provide mutual
support. This collaborative approach not only enhances the quality of teaching and learning but
also fosters a sense of community among fellows and teachers, ultimately benefiting students and
the school ecosystem as a whole.

Ability o Collaborate with others

Rate 4

ROEAH

Rate 5

Fieure & Abiliy ro collaborare witlr athers

Based on the TFI interview for the Academic Year 2021-22. the fellows demonstrated a strong
conunitment to educational equity and a deep passion for making a positive impact in their
classrooms and communities. Their ability to adapt to challenging circumstances, particularly
' during the COVID-19 pandemic, was
commendable, as they implemented
innovative strategies to engage students
and foster learning. The fellows'
leadership qualities were evident in their
collaboration with peers and school staff,
Ieading to meaningful contributions to
student  learning  outcomes  and
community engagement. Overall, the TFI
fellows for the Academic Year 2021-22
showed exceptional dedication and
effectiveness in their roles, embodying
the core values of Teach For India even
as per their assessment ((see fig.9).

Performance for the AY 2021-22

Figure 9 Performance for the 43 2021-22

pe. 22
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The TFI Fellowship Program contributes to the long-term goals of the fellows to remain and
contribute to the education system by providing them with a comprehensive support system and a
transformative experience thai inspires them to continue their work in the field of education.
Through the fellowship, fellows develop a deep understanding of the challenges and opportunities
in the education sector, as well as the skills and knowledge needed to address them effectively.
The program also fosters a sense of community among fellows, encouraging collaboration and
peer learning, which are essential for long-term engagement in the education system. Additionally.
TFI provides ongeing support and networking opportunities for alumni, empowering them to
continue making a positive impact in education even after the fellowship ends.

Fellowship's contribution to their long-term goals

Rate 3
1T

Rate 4

oy

Ratz 5

[DEER

Figure [0 Feliovwship conmiribution fo the long iorm goals of fellows

4.3 Recommendations

]

Encourage continued support and investment in professional development opportunities for

educators to foster growth and innovation in educational practices.

0 Promote community engagement initiatives that empower parents, students, and educators to
collaborate effectively in addressing educational inequities.

U Advocate for policies and programs that prioritize educational equity and provide resources

and support to underserved communitics and schools
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4.4 Score Card

OECD Parameters |Indicators Weightage Cn@b&a@:d Scove Obfained Maxlmem Score;  Welghted seare Seove fo eath Total Scove {Project Score
Weightage Paramter
Relevance Quarterty Reports W% 43 3 09
i
Rclevarfcew o targel - ; 5
beneficiaties
25
Relevance W pariner k17 5 3
15 49
Contribution to broader W1 405 158
Coherente development goakand 0% 5 §
siralegios 15
Alignment of the
aelviies, ogmuL«,, and S0 s 5
cutcomes with overall
project objectives
15 &
Efficiency Uitsation of resouces 50% 5 3
A
Project Delivery enas 4916
Tinelires W 4 ’ 25 4%
W2:30% 14635
Eeetieness | nincatenof St 5 5
: problem
] 15
5 5@:(?\'311}9.&1 in existing 500 5 5
; sibzation 13 5
Impaet Targeled beneficiaries 1% § 5
; L35
Smooth implementation | 3% 43 5
1575
Wi 0% 147315
Increase inawarcness ’ !
o % 5 5
regarding topics
15 4825
Sustainability
‘Sustainability Mechanism, 106% 5 5
| Convergence 5 5
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Conclusion

Conducting the impact assessment for the Teach For India (TFI) Fellowship program was a
comprehensive and enlightening experience. The process began with thorough research and
planning, including reviewing existing literature, defining evaluation criteria, and establishing a
framework for data collection and analysis. Collaborating with stakeholders. including program
beneficiaries, teachers, principals, and community members. was crucial to understanding the
programs' impact from various perspectives.

Data collection involved a mix of quantitative and qualitative methods. such as surveys,
interviews, focus group discussions, and document reviews depending on the projects and
stakeholders involved. These methods provided a holistic view of the programs' effectiveness in
achieving their goals and objectives. Analysing the data required meticulous attention to detail and
a keen understanding of the context and nuances of each program. It involved identifying key
trends, patterns, and insights that emerged from the data, which helped in drawing meaningful
conelusions and recommendations.

The TFI Fellowship program has played a crucial role in enhancing student learning outcomes and
community engagement. The program's adaptability and focus on empowering fellows as effective
educators and leaders have resulted in tangible improvements in student outcomes and a strong
commitment to social change.

In conclusion, the impact assessments of these initiatives highlight the significance of contextually
relevant, coherent, and sustainable interventions in driving positive change in education and
community development. They emphasize the ongoing need for support and investment in such
programs to further amplify their impact and advance inclusive and equitable education for all.

pe. 20
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Proposed Action for The Next Year:

Recommendations For Current Projects:

Technical Support: Offer technical assistance and guidance to the Implementing Partner,
including training, networking opportunities. and access to resources, to help them achieve their
goals more effectively. Capacity building is essential for ensuring that MIF's team members and
partners have the necessary skills and knowledge to implement the recommendations effectively.
To address this, MIF plans to develop a comprehensive capacity-building plan that will include
training programs, workshops, and mentoring opportunities. This plan will aim to enhance the
skills and knowledge of MIF's team members and partners, enabling them to implement the
recommendations more effectively.

Establish Clear Expectations: Define the project's goals. objectives, and expected outcomes in
collaboration with the Implementing Partner. Develop a comprehensive project plan outlining the
scope of work, key KPIs, timeline, and deliverables to be able to track the progress of partnership
for better support and improvenient.

Istablish Accountability Mechanisms: Develop clear accountability mechanisms, such as
performance benchmarks and evaluation criteria, in collaboration with the Implementing Partner.
Regularly review and update these mechanisms as needed. Request regular progress reports,
financial statements. and other relevant documentation from the Implementing Partner to ensure
accountability. Review these reports carefully to assess progress and identify any issues that need
to be addressed.

Monitoring and Evaluation: Establishing clear monitoring and evaluation mechanisms is crucial
for tracking progress and making any necessary adjustments to ensure the successful
implementation of the recommendations. To address this. MIF plans to develop a robust
monitoring and evaluation framework that will include regular data collection. analysis, and
reporting. This framework will enable MIF to track progress against the recommendations and
make informed decisions and course correct the existing interventions and use the learning to
provide inputs for the future programmatic directions.

pe- 28
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Recommendations For New Praojects:

Sustainable Funding: MIF should continue to provide financial support to projects that align with
its mission and have a proven track record of impact. This involves carefully assessing the impact
and sustainability of potential projects before funding them. MIF can also ensure that funding is
allocated efficiently and effectively. avoiding duplication of efforts. and maximizing outcomes.
Regular monitoring and evaluation of funded projects can help ensure that they are on track to
achieve their goals and make a meaningful impact. Results-Based Financing (RBF) is a method
of disbursing public resources based on demonstrated, independently verified outputs or outcomes
rather than project inputs. This approach aims to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of public
funds and better support market interventions. By focusing on outcomes. results-based financing
encourages accountability and incentivizes stakeholders to achieve measurable results, leading to
improved outcomes and greater value for money. Financing toolkit can be developed using the
RBF framework.

Innovation in Education: Supporting innovative approaches to education can help MIF stay at
the forefront of educational practices. This can involve funding projects that leverage technology.
promote experiential learning methods. or introduce new pedagogical approaches. By suppotting
innovation, MIF can help drive positive change in the education sector and improve learning
outcomes for students. MIF can invest in capacity building initiatives to enhance the skills and
knowledge of teachers, school leaders, and education professionals. This can include providing
training programs, workshops, and mentoring opportunities. By building the capacity of educators.
MIF can help improve the quality of education and ultimately benefit students. Capacity building
efforts should be tailored to the specific needs of the individuals and institutions involved. ensuring
that they are relevant and impactful.

Partnerships and Collaboration: Collaborating with other organizations, government agencies.
and academic institutions can help MIF leverage resources and expertise. By partnering with
others, MIF can undertake more impactful and sustainable education initiatives that benefit a larger
number of people. Partnerships should be strategic and mutually beneficial. with clear goals and
objectives.

Research and Advocacy: Supporting research studies and advocacy efforts can help MIF promote
evidence-based practices and policies in education. By funding research. MIF can contribute to the
body of knowledge in the education sector and ensure that its interventions are based on sound
evidence. Advocacy eflforts can help drive systemic change and improve education outcomes at
scale.

Monitoring and Evaluation: Regular monitoring and evaluation of MIF-funded projects are
essential for ensuring their accountability and effectiveness. MIF should establish clear monitoring
and evaluation mechanisms, including data collection, analysis, and reporting. This data should be
used to inform decision-making and improve future interventions, ensuring that MIF's efforts are
making a positive impact. MIF can clearly define the objectives and outcomes they want to achieve

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 202122



with their funding. These should be specific, measurable, achievable. relevant. and time-bound
(SMART).

There is a need to develop a set of performance indicators that will be used to measure progress
towards the defined outcomes. These indicators should be directly linked to the objectives and
should be measurable and verifiable. Baselines for each performance indicator can be established
to understand the starting point. Then, set targets that represent the desired level of achievement
for each indicator.

Scale and Replication: Identifying successful projects and initiatives that have the potential to be
scaled up or replicated in other settings can help MIF amplify its impact. By scaling successful
projects, MIF can reach a larger number of beneficiaries and make a greater difference in the
education sector. Replication of successful initiatives can also help spread best practices and
innovations more widely.

Adaptability and Flexibility: Remaining adaptable and flexible in response to changing
education landscape and emerging needs is crucial for MIF. This involves regularly reviewing and
tevisiting strategies and priorities to ensure that they remain relevant and effective. MIF should be
open to new ideas and approaches, and willing to adjust its plans as necessary to achieve its goals
in the ever-evolving education sector.

Max India Foundation: CSR Impact Assessment 2021-22
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
fax Life Insurance Company Limited

PREAMBLE

Max Life Insurance Company Limited (*Company”) has a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) which shall at all times comprise of 3
{Three) or more non-executive Directors, of which at least half shall be
Independent Directors, as required under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
read along with the rules framed thereunder as amended from time to time
("“Companies Act").

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) has been prepared in
compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act read along with Guidelines
for Corporate Governance for Insurers in India dated 18" May 2016 ("Corporate
Governance Guidelines™, the Guidelines for Directors and Key Managerial
Persons of Insurers dated 30" June 2023 issued by the IRDAI consisting of (a)
IRDAI (Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors of Insurers) Guidelines, 2023 and
{(b) the IRDAI (Remuneration of Key Manageriai Persons of Insurers) Guidelines,
2023, as amended from time to time (collectively the "Remuneration
Guidelines”). The Remuneration Guidelines will be in effect from 15t April 2023
and will be applicable prospectively.

The Remuneration Guidelines replaces and supersedes the IRDAI (Remuneration
of Non-Executive Directors of Private Sector Insurers) Guidelines, 2016, and
(Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer / Whole-time Director / Managing Director
of Insurers) Guidelines, 2016 issued by IRDAI an August 05, 2016 ("“Remuneraticn
Guidelines 2016”). Any remuneration declared prior to 15t April 2023 shall be
governed in terms of the Remuneration Guidelines 2016.

The Committee in consultation with the Risk Management Committee shall make a
coordinated effort to have an integrated approach to the formulation of this Policy
keeping in mind that the Remuneration is determined basis all the risk parameters,
symmetric with risk outcomes ete. in line with the Remuneration Guidelines.

The Committee shall review this Policy annually and/ or as may be required fo
ensure compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements, as prescribed
under the provisions of the Remuneration Guidelines.

DEFINITIONS

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company;

“Claw-back” shall mean the contractual right of the Company to require a KMP to

return whole or part of any previously paid, setfled or vested Variable

Compensation by the KMP under the circumstances stated in this Policy;

“Control Function” refers to Internal Audit, Risk and Compliance;

“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company;

‘Fixed Compensation” shall mean and include the basic salary, house rent
allowance, perquisites, other allowances, contributions and retirement benefits like
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provident fund, gratuity and superannuation and all other fixed items included in
the Fixed Compensation component of such KMP;

“Employee Stock Option Plan” or "ESOP Policy” means the Max Financial
Employee Stock Option Plan 2022, as amended from time to time and any other
plan that the Company may adopt in future;

“‘Employee Phantom Stock Plan 2018" means the Employee Phantom Stock
Plan 2018 adopted by the Company, as amended from time to time and any other
plan that the Company may adopt in future;

“Independent Director” means a director so appeinted in terms of the
Companies Act;

“IRDAI” means the Insurance and Regulatory Development Authority of India;

“‘Key Management Personnel’ or “KMP” means a member of the core
management team of the Company as defined in the IRDAI (Registration of Indian
Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2022 and the Companies Act, including:

i. Managing Directors ("MD",
ii. Chief Executive Officer (“"CEOQ"),
ii. Whole-fime directors (“WTD"),

iv. Functional heads one level below the MD/CEQ, including the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer, Appointed Actuary, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, General Counsel andfor Company
Secretary, Chief Distribution officer, Chief Marketing Officer, Head of Audit,
Chief People Officer and Chief Operations Officer;

"Malus” shall mean the right of the Company, by virtue of which the Company can
forfeit/ cancel/ reduce, the whole or part of any unpaid or unvested Variable
Compensation due to any KMP, basis any negative trend in the defined
parameters and/or the relevant line of business in any year during the deferral
vesting period as set out in under this Policy;

“Other Employees” means all full-time employees of the Company excluding
KMPs;

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent/ benefit/ amenity/ perquisite
given or passed to any KMP or Other Employees for services rendered by him/
her and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Remuneration structure shall include Fixed Compensation and Variable
Compensation, if any;

“Share Linked Instruments” means (i) Employee Stock Opfion schemes
(ESOP); (i) employee stock purchase schemes (ESPS);, and (i) stock
appreciation rights schemes (SARS).

For the sake of clarity, all share linked benefits where the ultimate payout is in the
form of cash such as cash- linked stock appreciation rights (CSARs), phantom
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stocks etc., shall be treated as cash benefit and will be considered as cash
Variable Compensation; and

“Variable Compensation” shall mean incentives in the form of cash and/ or
Share Linked Instruments and will include any incentives or bonuses, in
accordance with this Policy.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES/ OBJECTIVES

The objective of this Policy is fo provide an overall framework for the
Remuneration of the Directors, KMPs and Other Employees of the Company, as
covered under the pravisions of the Companies Act and Remuneration
Guidelines.

In this regard, this Policy seeks to ensure that;

{a) there is effective governance of Remuneration by active oversight by the Board
and the Committee;

{b) there is effective alignment of Remuneration to prudent risk faking and that the
Remuneration does notf induce excessive or inappropriate risk taking that could
be detrimental to the interests of this policyholders and/ or business of the
Company,

(c) the level and compoesition of Remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate Directors, KMPs and Other Employees having the
quality required to run the Company successfully. Further, the Directors shall
not be placed in a position of actual or perceived conflicts of interests in respect
of remuneration decisions of the Company;

(d) the interests of KMPs are aligned with the business strategy, risk tolerance and
adjusted for risk parameters {(as mentioned in clause 10.1.2), objectives, values,
corporate culture and long term interests of the Company;

(e} relationship of Remuneration to performance is clear, meeting appropriate
performance henchmarks and consistent with the “"pay-for-performance”
principle; and

(N remuneration involves a balance between Fixed Compensation and Variable
Compensation to appropriately reflect the value and responsibility of the role
performed and to influence appropriate behavior and action in achieving the
short and long-term performance objectives, appropriate to the working of the
Company and its goals.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Committee shall be to ensure compliance to the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, Corporate Governance Guidelines,
Remuneration Guidelines and various other obligations as mentioned in the
charter of the Committee as approved by the Board from time to time.

The Committee should recognize any actual or potential conflicts inherent in
recommendations from Company's management dealing with Remuneration
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5.1

5.2

53

b4

6.1

and ensure that recommendations from Company's management are
supplemented with any advice from any external advisors, if required.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS AND KMPs

Any appointment, reappointment, termination of a MDY CEOQ/ WTD (by whatever
name called) or any amendment thereto will be done and will have effect only
after prior approval of IRDAI, subject to the compliance with the provisions of the
Remuneration Guidelines.

The Cammittee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person being appointed as a Director or a KMP and
recommend his/ her appointment to the Board.

A Director or KMP should possess adequate qualification, expertise and
experience for the position hef she is considered for appointment as a Director or
a KMP. The Committee has the discretion to decide whether the qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/ satisfactory for
the concerned position.

The Committee shall ensure that a requisite framework exists for appointment and
qualification requirements for the human resources and which ensures that the
incentive structure does not encourage imprudent behavior or any excessive or
inappropriate risk-taking behavior.

TERN AND TENURE

MD/WTD/ CEO:

(a) The Company shall appeint or reappeint any individual as its MD/ WTD for a

term not exceeding five years at a time. Nofwithstanding anything and subject
to the statutory approvals required from time to time, an individuat shall not hold
the post of an MD & CEO or WTD for a continuous period of more than 15
(Fifteen) years. Thereafter, the individual shall be eligible for re-appointment as
MD & CEQ or WTD, if considered necessary and desirable by the Board, after
a cooling off period of at least 1 (One) year, subject to meeting other applicable
conditions. However, if the MD & CEO or WTD is appointed by a promoter/
major shareholder of the Company, then such individual shall not hold the said
posts for centinuous period of more than 12 (Twelve) years, except with the
permission of IRDAI to hold the said posts for a continucus period up to 15
{Fifteen) years.

(b) For the purpose of determining the term of MD/ CEQ/ WTD, the existing term of

the MD/ CEO/ WTD as on June 30, 2023 shall also be counted under the term
for the above sub-clause.

(c) A promoter/ shareholder cannot hold a whole time position in the Company.

However, this condition is not applicable in case where an employee becomes
a shareholder by virtue of shares received through ESOPs during the course of
employment.

(d) The terms related to appointment and age of MD/ CEQ/ WTD shall be subject

o the compliance with the provisions of the Remuneration Guidelines.
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6.2

(a} An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 5 (Five)
consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for
reappointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and

(c)

(d)

10.

10.1

10.11

Independent Director:

disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

date of ceasing o be an Independent Director.

term for the above sub-clauses.

subject to the compliance with the provisions of the Remuneration Guidelines.
EVALUATION

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director at a
yearly interval, in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act and present
a report thereon ic the Board.

REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act or under
any other applicable law, the Committee may recommend, to the Board for
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director or KMP subject to the
provisions and compliance of such applicable law.

RETIREMENT

The Director or KMPs shall retire as per the retirement policy of the Company to

the extent it is not in conflict with the Remuneration Guidelines.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION

Remuneration of KMPs

Applicable Laws, Guidelines and Required Approvals

(a) The Remuneration of MD/CEQO/MTD will be determined by the Committee
and recommended to the Board for approval. Any change in the

Remuneration of MD/CEQ/WTD would require prior approval of IRDAL

(b} Any mcdification in Remuneration of the MD/CEOC/WTDs shall not be done
before the expiry of 1 (One) year from the date of earlier IRDAI approval.

(c) Any form of Variable Compensation shali be paid/granted to any KMP only
once during financial year.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than 2 (Two) consecutive
terms, beyond a period of 10 (Ten) years, but such Independent Director shall
be eligible for reappoiniment, after expiry of at least 3 (Three) years from

For the purpose of determining the term of Independent Directors, the existing
term of the Independent Directors as on June 30, 2023 shall be counted as a

The terms related to appointment and age of independent Directors shall be
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{d) The cost of Remuneration paid to KMPs shall be borne by the Company only.

(e) The Committee/ Board shall always maintain a fine balance befween
reasonableness and fairness, while making Remuneration-related decisions
including Malus and Claw-back.

(i The Remuneration o be paid to KMPs shall be as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act read with the Insurance Act 1938
("Insurance Act’) and rules, regulations and guidelines made thereunder
including the Remuneration Guidelines.

{g) Where the annual Remuneration of KMPs individually exceeds INR
4,00,00,000/- {Indian Rupees Four Crores only), such excess shall be borne
by the shareholders of the Company and dehited to the profit and loss
account,

10.1.2 Risk and Reward

10.2

{a) Remuneration of KMPs shall be linked to performance parameters such that:

- it is adjusted for all types of risks;

- Remuneration outcomes are symmetrical with risk outcomes;

- the payouts are sensitive to the time horizon of the risk; and

- mix of cash, equity and ofher forms of Remuneration are consistent with risk
alignment.

(b} The minimum parameters that will be considered by Committee and Board for
assessing performance of all KMPs for payment of Variable Compensation are
as below:

- Overall financial soundness such as net-worth position, solvency, growth in
AUM, net profit, etc.;

- Compliance with the Expenses of Management Regulations;

- Claim efficiency in terms of settlement and outstanding;

- Improvement in grievance redressal status;

- Reduction in unclaimed amounts of policyholders;

- Persistency- 37th Month to 81st Month; and

- Overall compliance status with respect to all applicable laws.

The above parameters shall constitute at least 60% (Sixty percent) of the total
weightage in the performance assessment matrix of MD/CEG/WTDs and at least
30% (Thirty percent) of the total weightage in the performance assessment
matrix of other KMPs individually. The weightage for each of the parameters to
be configured suitably for MD/CEOMWTD/KMPs depending on their respective
roles. The Company may define additional parameters also which shall be in
line with the business plan of the Company. The above parameters shall also
serve as a basis for revision of the Fixed Compensation.

Pay Mix

The total Remuneration paid to KMPs shall have a fixed component and a
variable component linked to individual and organizational performance. Proper
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10.3

balance between fixed and variable components will be ensured by the
Committee/ Board and in accordance with the Remuneration Guidelines.

(a)

(c)

(d)

{e)

The amount of Fixed Compensation shall be reascnable taking into
account the Company’'s overall business performance and industry
remuneration scales, in accordance with the Remuneration Guidelines.

Variable Compensation shall be at least 50% (Fifty percent) of the Fixed
Compensation for the corresponding period and shall not exceed 250%
(Two Hundred Fifty percent) of the Fixed Compensation. In case where
Variable Compensation is up to 200% (Two Hundred percent) of the Fixed
Compensation, a minimum of 50% (Fifty percent) of the Variable
Compensation shall be via non-cash instruments. The same limit would be
70% (Seventy percent), in case the Variable Compensation is above 200%
(Two Hundred percent) of the Fixed Compensation. A minimum of 50% (Fifty
percent) of the tofal Variable Compensation must invariably be under
deferral arrangements and the deferral period shall be of minimum three
years,

The first such vesting of the Variable Compensation shall accrue after 1
(One) year from the commencement of the deferral period. Vesting shall be
no faster than on a pro rata basis and shall not take place more frequently
than on a yearly basis to ensure a proper assessment of risks before the
application of ex-post adjustments. No deferment of Variable Compensation
shall be required for an amount of up fo INR 25,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Twenty-Five Lakhs only) for a particular year.

Any future grant (by whatever name called) that is given, if construed as
Variable Compensation, should have a proper balance of pay mix in line
with this clause 10.2.

The payment of the Variable Compensation shall be determined using
performance based measure of individual, unit or Company’s performance.
The amount payable towards such Variable Compensation would be
dependent on the Company's overall results as capfured in the Company's
measures of success outcomes and the parameters defined in clause
10.1.2, In case there is deterioration in the same, the total amount payable
towards Variable Compensation will contract in accordance with adjustment
of these parameters and may even be reduced to zero.

Stock Options

(@) The Committee/ Board may censider granting of Share Linked Instruments.
Issue of Share Linked Instruments shall be governed by the provisions of
this Policy, Remuneration Guidelines, the Companies Act, the Companies
{Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 as amended, Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 as amended from fime to time. Details of stock options to
Directors and CEOs shall be disclosed in line with disclosure requirements
stipulated for the financial statements of the Company. For the purposes of

benefit calculation, the fair value of the equity shares certified by a Category 1

merchant banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board (“SEBI")
of India shall be considered. KMPs shall not be issued/granted any sweat
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10.4

equity shares.

(b) Tillthe time the Company is not listed, it may issue ESOPs of its listed promoter
company fo the KMPs.

(c) Till the time the Company is not listed, the total number of ESOPs granted in a
year shall not exceed 1% (One percent) of the paid up capital of the Company.
The total number of ESOPs issued, granted, vested or outstanding at any point
of time shall not exceed 5% (Five percent) of the paid- up capital of the
Company.

Treatment of deferred Variable Compensation in case of death, permanent
disability, retirement, early retirement eic.

(a) In event of death or permanent disability of a KMP prior to the deferral period,
the deferred Variable Compensation shall be paid immediately to him/her (in
case of permanent disability) or to the legal heirs or nominees of the grantee
(in case of death), subject to the applicable laws and the ESOP Policy and in
case of phantom stocks the same shall vest immediately and exercised as
per clause 13 of Employee Phantom Stock Plan 2018 by such employee (or
his/ her legal heirs or nominee, as the case may be).

(b) In event of retirement or early retirement of KMP prior to the deferral period,
the deferred Variable Compensation (except Share Linked Instruments) shall
be paid immediately and in case of phantom stocks the same shall vest
immediately and exercised as per clause 12 of Employee Phantom Stock Plan
2018. The deferred ESOP units issued under Share Linked Instruments shall
vest as per the original vesting period subject to the applicable laws and the
ESOP Policy. in case of reappointment on retirement, the deferred Variable
Compensation due at the time of retirement (i.e., prior to reappointment) shall
ke paid only for the respective years to which it is originally deferred.

(c) In the event of termination of employment contract owing to the directives of
court/ tribunal/ other competent Authorities, or termination by the Company in
case of fraudferiminal offences or proven misconduct efc., including for cause
(as may be defined under the respective employment contracts), the deferred
Variable Compensation (including Share Linked Instruments), notice pay, and
any other payout which has been awarded or deferred, shall be forfeited.

(d) In the event of resignation of a KMPs, any deferred Variable Compensation
(except phantom stocks and Share Linked Instrumenis) which has been
awarded but deferred shall be paid immediately. However, the deferred ESOP
and phantom stock units shall iapse.

(e) In an event of occurrence of a merger/ takeover or any other similar corporate
action or any action resulting in change of controi of the Company, the
Company shall ensure that the interest of the employees remains unaffected.
The Board on the recommendation of the Committee, may decide on the
revised terms and conditions of the Remuneration granted to the KMPs,
subject to obtaining requisite approvals under applicable laws.
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10.5 Malus of deferred Variable Compensation

10.6

The provisian of Malus as set out in this Policy or under the respective employment
agreement executed by the Company with any of the KMPs shall be applicable to
the Variable Compensation to be paid to such KMPs atiributable fo a given
reference year wherein the incident has occurred.

Malus: The Committee may decide to apply Malus on part, or whole of the
unvested/ unpaid portions of the deferred Variable Compensation.

Triggers to invoke Malus: The Malus provision will be invoked if a KMP engages
in actions causing tangible or intangible harm to the performance of the Company
and the same shall invite immediate and prompt action of the Board and the
management. These actions are assumed to be with malafide intent. Bonafide
error/s of judgment may not be treated as breaches under this Policy. Specific
triggers for exercising Malus include the following:

a) Notable financial declines or risk escalations
b) Excessive or inappropriate risk-taking behavior
¢} Poor compliance in respect of corporate governance and regulatory matters

The Committee, while evaluating financial performance will consider factors within
and outside an employee’s control, such as global market shifts, industry trends,
legal changes, and unforeseen events like natural disasters or pandemics. The
Committee and the Board shall review and based on facis and due assessment
of what is directly attributable fo the KMP’s actions, the Commitiee and the Board
may take appropriate measures for Malus of Variable Compensation. The
Committee and Board's decision shall be final.

The Malus provisions can be applied for the entire deferral period.
Claw-back of deferred Variahle Compensation

The provisions of Claw-back as set out in this Policy or under the respective
employment agreement executed by the Company with any of the KMPs shall be
applicable to the Variable Compensation to be paid to such KMPs attributable to a
given reference year wherein the incident has occurred.

Claw-back: The Commitiee may decide to exercise its right to Claw-back
previously paid or vested Variable Compensation on occurrence of the specified
trigger event in the following manner:

a) Cash Variable Compensation — the employee shall return previously paid
amount, net of taxes, to the Company; and

b} Share Linked Instruments — Clawback would be applicable only to the vesied
but un-exercised options. However, in exceptional cases, the Committee may
decide to extend the Claw-back clause to exercised options as well.
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10.7

10.8

10.9

Triggers to invoke Claw-back: The Claw-back provision will be invoked if a KMP
engages in actions such as fraud, integrity breach, or severe policy violations and
the same shall invite immediate and prompt action of the Board and the
management. These actions are assumed to be with malafide intent. Bonafide
errorfs of judgment may not be treated as breaches under this Policy. Specific
triggers for exercising Claw-back include the following:

a) Gross negligence, or willful misconduct or integrity breach

b) Fraud necessitating financial restatement, or materially inaccurate financial
statements due to result of misconduct or fraud

c) Conviction involving moral turpitude

The Committee and the Board shall review the external factors and based on
facts and due assessment of what is directly atributable 1o the KMP's actions, the
Committee and the Board may take appropriate measures for Claw-back of
Variable Compensation. The Committee and Board's decision shall be final.

The Claw-back provision can be applied for a period of 3 (Three) years after the
payment of the Variable Compensation.

Guaranteed Bonus

The Company shall not provide guaranteed bonus of any kind as part of the
Remuneration plan of KMPs, except sign-on/joining boenus if required. The sign-
on/ joining bonus may be granted only to new personnel and will be limited to
first year of employment. Such bonus will neither be considered as a part of Fixed
Compensation nor as a part of Variable Compensation.

Severance Paymenis

Severance compensation shall not be granted other than accrued benefits like
gratuity pension, etc. to KMPs except in cases where it is mandatory under any
applicable provision of the statute. 1t is clarified that severance compensation
does not include notice period compensation.

Remuneration to employees in Control Functions and Other Employees

The Company shall ensure that employee in Control Functions are assessed and
remunerated independently of the business units which are subject to their control
oroversight, etc. and the same is guided by the individual employee performance
and is anchored on periinent functional metrics and primary deliverables
associated with staff in these roles. The parameters reviewed for performance
based rewards are independent and commensurate with their functional
objectives and goals.

Remuneration to Other Employees will include elements of Fixed Compensation
and Variable Compensation with the mix of elements varying with seniority and
benchmarked externally. A key unifying element shall be the funds available to
support short and long term incentives each year. These are driven by the
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

11.

measures of success determined by the Board as part of the business planning
cycle. The measures of success should be clearly defined and capable of
objective measurement. The Board will, however, retain a measure of
discretion to exercise judgment in determining final outcomes, for instance,
where overall outcomes are result of external events completely outside the
management's control or generally in respect of factors not susceptible fo direct
incorporation into the measures of success.

Remuneration to non-executive Directors

Subject to the approval of Board and shareholders in accordance with the
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, IRDAI (Remuneration of Non-
Executive Direclors of Insurers) Guidelines, 2023, the non-executive Directors
may be entitled for the remuneration which shall not exceed amounts as may be
specified by IRDAI for each of such non-executive Director from time to time.

In the event, the Chairperson of the Company is a non-executive Director, the
remuneration shall be decided by the Board of Directors and necessary
amendments shall be carried out in this Folicy to specify the details of the
remuneration and incentives to be paid to him/ her.

Stock Options to non- executive Directors

A non-executive Director shall not be entitled to any stock option or equity finked
benefit of the Company.

Engagementi for Professional Services

The Company may, in line with applicabte provisions of Companies Act, read with
Insurance Act and rules and regulations made there under, wherever applicable,
engage any non—executive Director to provide professional services from time to
time. Any such engagement for professional services shall be made if the
Committee is of the opinion that such Director possesses the reguisite
qualification far providing such services.

Sitting Fees and Reimbursement of expenses

In addition to the remuneration mentioned above, a non-executive Director may
receive Remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or
committees as may be decided by the Board. Provided, however, that the
amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount per meeting as
may be prescribed in the Companies Act, Insurance Act or by the Central
Government from time to time. The non-executive Directors shall, in addition to
the sitting fees, be entitled for reimbursement of their expenses for participating
in the Board and Committee meetings, as may be decided by the Board.

DISCLOSURE AND ACCOUNTING
The Company shall make both qualitative and quantitative disclosures as
mentioned in the Remuneration Guidelines in Company’'s notes to the accounts

forming part of the annual repor.

The Company shall ensure compliances as specified in the Companies Act and
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regulations/ guidelines issued by SEBI, as applicable.

The additional information as required under the Remuneration Guidelines shall
be provided to IRDAI, on an annual basis in the form and manner as prescribed
by IRDAI

The accounting of the Remuneration shall be done in accordance with the
Remuneration Guidelines.

DEVIATIONS FROM THiS POLICY

Deviations on elemenis of this Policy in extraordinary circumstances, when
deemed necessary, in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are
specific reasons fo do so0 in individual cases to the extent permitted under the
applicable laws or Remuneration Guidelines.

OWNER OF THIS POLICY

This Policy is owned by the Committee and shall be administered by the Chief
People Officer.
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CHANDRASEKARAN ASSOCUGTES®

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form Mo, MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the financial vear ended March 31, 20324
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remunaration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014

ra,

The Membaers,

Max Life Insurance Company Limited
419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar, Railmajra,
Tehsit Balachaur Nawan Shehar

Punjab - 144533 India

We nave ¢onductad the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
pravisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Max Life Insurance
Company Lbimited (hereinafter cailed “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and alse the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and auvthorized repressentatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial yvear ended on March 31, 2024
complied with the statutory provisions lisied hersunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made herainafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
e

other records maintained by the Company for the financial yvear ended on March 31,
2024 zecording to the provisions of:

{1y The Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act’y and the rules made thersunder;

{ii} The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’Y and the rules made
theresunder; Mot Applicable

{iify The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bve-laws framed thereunder
to the extent of Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
[Depositories and Participants) Reguiations, 2018; applicable onlty to the extent
of dematerialization of squity shares and Non-Convertible Debentures of the
company,;

{iv} Foreign Exchange Management Ack, 1399 and the rules ang regulations made
thereunder o the extent of Foreign Direch investrment, Overseas Direct
investrnent and External Commercial Borrowings;

{¥) The following Regulations and Guidelines prascribed under the Securifies and
Exchange Board of India Act, 19292 (*SEBI Act’)

a} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. Mot Applicable

b} The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Prohibifion of Insider Trading)
Requlations, 2015:

©} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;: Not Applicable
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CHANDRASEKAERAN ASSOCIATES Continuation.........co...oo..

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable

@) Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 to the extent applicable;

f} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Reguiations, 2018 (including erstwhile regulation)}; Not Applicable

1} Tha Securities and Exchange Board of india (Debenture Trustes)
Regulatians, 1993 {in relation to obligations of Issuer Company);

{(vi) The other laws, as informed and certifiad by the managament of the Company
which are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/
indusiry are:

1. Insurance Regulatory and Development Autharity of India Act, 1999,
2. Insurance Act, 1938 and various Rules, Regulations & Guidelines issued
thereunder, including circulars issued from time to time.

We have also examined compliance with the apnlicable clauses/Regulations of the
foliowing:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

2. SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015
with regard to Non-Convertible Securities.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentionad
above.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper hatance of
Exagcurive, Non-Execulive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
weare carried out in compliance with the provisions of tha Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except in cases
whare meatings were convened at a shorter notice. The Company has complied with
the provisions of Act for convening meeting at the shorter notice. A system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Cormmittee Meetings are carried out unanimously
or with requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board
of Directors or Committees of the Board. as the case may be

We further report that there are adequate systerns and processes in the Company
commaensurate with the size and aperations of the Company o manitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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CHANDRASEKARAN ASSOCIATES | Continuation............c...co....

We further report that during the audit period, no spacific events/actions took place
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, reguiations, guidelines, standards, etc, except as mentioned below;

1. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 9, 2023 has accorded
primary approval for issuance of 14,25.79,161 (Fourteen Crore Twenty-Five
Lakhs Seventy-Ning Thousand One Hundred Sixty-One) fully paid-up equity
shares of Max Life to Axis Bank on a preferential basis at INR 113.06 per equity
share including a share premium of Rs, 103.06 per equity share, for an aggregate
investrent up to INR 1611,99,99,843/- {Indian Rupees One Thousand Six
Hundred Eleven Crores Ninety-Nine Lakh Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred
and Forty Three only) in the Company, subject to receipt of approval from the
shareholders of the Company and necessary regulatory/ statutory approvals
including approvals from the Insurance Regulatory and Development Autherity
of India, the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority and the
Competition Cemmission of India.

Further, in terms of the approvals received from {he Reserve Bank of India,
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India ("IRDAI™), the Pension
Fund Regulatory and Development Authority and the Competition Commission of
India, Shareholders of the Company have accordad their consent at their Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on Agril 12, 2024 for the issuance of said equity
shares to the Axis Bank Limited on a preferential basis.

In terms of the aforementioned approvals, the Company has alloited the sad no. of
equity shares to Axis Bank on a preferential basis on April 17, 2024,

2. The Board of Directors and Sharehalders of the Company have approved and adopted
Restated Articles of Association of the Company in place of the existing Articles aof
Association of the Company.

For Chandrasekaran Associates
Company Secretaries

FRN: P1988DEQRD230D
Peer Review Certificate No.; 4186/2023

Managing driner \ A
Membership No. Ala309 B
Certificate of Practice No. 5673
UDINT AQL6302ZF004304040

Date: 03.05.2024

Place: Delhi
Mote:
{i} This report s to be read with our letier of aven date which is annexed as

annexure & and forms an integral part of this report.

(i1} We conducted the secretarial audit by examimming the Secrefarial Records
including Minutes, Documents, Registers and ofher records atc., and some of
thern received by way of elactronic mode from the Company and could not be
verified from the original records. The management has confirmed that the
records submitted o us are true and correct.
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CHENDREASEKARAN aSSOCIATES COntinuUatIoN. .cooovr e,

Annexure-4

To,

The Mernbers,

Max Life Insurance Company Limited,
419, Bhat Mohan Singh Nagar, Railmajra,
Tehsit Balachaur Nawan Shehar

Punjaby -144533 India

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter,
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

1 N]

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secratarial
records. The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, wa followed provide a reasonable basis for cur apinton.

(WA

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events atc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corpaorate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chandrasekaran Associates
Company Secretaries

FEN: P198BDEDOZ50C
Peer Review Certificate No.: 4188/2023

f@wfg Bder

{
Rupesh A&eral

Managing Partner &gy
Membership No. 1630‘2“‘/
Certificate of Practice No. 5673
UDIN: A016302F000304040

Date: 03.05.2024
Place: Delhi
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S.R. BATLIBO! & CO.LLP B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountanis Chartered Accountants
12th Floor, The Ruby, 706/708, Sharda Chambers,
Senapati Bapat Marg, New Marine Line,

Dadar (West), Mumbai — 400 028 Mumbai -~ 400 020

Independent Auditors” Repert on Quarterly and Year to Date Standalone Financial Results of Max Life
Insurance Company Limited pursuant te Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of Securities Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amtended, read with
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of Indin (IRDAL) Circular reference: IRBAY
FEIREG/CIR/208/10/2016 dated October 25, 2016

To The Board of Directors of
Max Life Insurance Company Limited

I. We have audited the accompanying quarterly and vear to date standafone financial resulis of Max Life Insurance
Company Limited {the “Company ™). for the quarter ended March 3§, 2024 and for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(*Standalone Financial Results"), attached hergwith. being submitted by the Company, pursuant to the requirement of
Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63{2) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements}
Regulations, 2013, as ameaded and IRDAI Circular reference: IRDAVF&I/ REG/CIR/208/10/2016 dated October
25, 2016. These standalone financial results have been prepared on the basis of standalore financial statements.
which is the responsibility of the Company”s management, and which have been approved by the Board of Directors
on May 07, 2024,

=)

Gur responsibility is to express en opinion on these quarterly and year to date standalone financial resuits based on
our audit of such standalone financial statements, which have besn prepared by the Company’s Management in
accordance with the recogrition and measurement principles specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 as amended {the “Act™ read with Companies (Accounting Standards) {Amendment) Rules. 2021 issued
thereander, including the relevant provisions of the Insurance Acr. 1938 (the “[nsurance Act™}, the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the “IRDA Act™) and other accounting pri'nciples generally
accepted in India, to the extent considered relevant and appropriate for the purpase of quarterly and year to date
standaione tinancial reselts and which are not inconsistent with the accounting principles as preseribed in the
Insurance Regufatory and Development Autherity {Preparation of Financial S:atements and Auditors’ Report of
insurance Companies) Regulations. 2002 (the ~“Regulations™ and orders/directions/circulars jssusd by the IRDAI to
the extent applicable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143¢10) of the

L

Act. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit w obtain reasonabie assurance aboul whether the
standalone tinancial results are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts disclosed in these standalone financial resubs. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinjon.




S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP B, . KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
12th Flgor, Tha Ruby, 706/708, Sharda Charabers,
Senapati Bapat Marg, New Marine Line,

Dadar {West), Mumbat ~ 400 028 Mumbai — 400 020

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding te the explanations given to us these quarterly and
vear (o date standaione financial results:
i, ore presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEB1
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2013, as amended and IRDAI Circular
reference: IRDAT/F&E/ REG/CIRS 208/ 10/ 2016 dated 25 October 2016 in this regard: and

ii.  gives a true and fair view of the ne: proiit and other tinancial information for the quarter ended March 31,
2024 and for the year ended March 3%, 2024

Other Matters

3. The actuarial valuation of labilities for life palicies in force and for policies in respect of which premium has been
discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2024, is the responsibility of the Company’s Appainted Actuary (the
“Appointed Actuary™}, The actuarial vahution of these liabilities for life policies in force and for policies in respect
of which premium has been discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2024 has been duly certified by the
Appointed Actuary and in his opinion. the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and
forms issued by the IRDAI and the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with the IRDAL We have rejied
upen Appointed Actuary’s centificate in this regard for forming cur opinion on the valuation of iiabilities for life
poiicies in force and for policies in respect of which premium has been discontinued but liability exists in standalone
tinancial statements of the Company.

6. The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figure benween the
audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the published audited vear-to-date
figures up to the third quarter of the current fnancial year, es required under the Regulation 32 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015. as amended and IRDAI Circular reforsnce:
IRDAVF&I/REG/CIR/208/10/2016 dated October 25. 2016,

7. The comparative financial information of the Company for the corresponding quarter and year ended March 31.
2023. included in these standatone financial results. were audited by the one of the joiat auditors i.e. B. K. Khare &
Co. and one of the predecessor auditors i.e. Fraser & Rass predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial information on Mav 12, 2023,

For S.R. Batliboi & Ce. LLP For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 301003E/ E300605 Fﬁmgegmtio&jfﬁ: 1033102W
i

" frcndhon vy 225;?\/-‘
per Pikashoo Mutha Shiri ahalkar
Partner Partner
Membership No: 131658 Membership No: 111212
UDIN: 24131638BKGDXQ7184 UDIN: 24111212BKERVPS 143
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 07. 2024 Date: May 07, 2024
/"‘.‘-":--“--.._-__“_h
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Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAI registration no. 104 dated November 15, 2000
Statement of Audited Standalone Financinl Resuits for the quarter and year anded March 31, 2024

{All amount in INR Jakhs, unless atherwise stated)
T

Thres months ended/ As at Year endedf Asat
¥arch 31, Detembar 31, March 21, #arch 31, Mzrch 31,
Sr Ho.. Particulars 2024 r 2023 2023 3034 20
Autlited Audited Auglited Audited Audited
POLILYHOLDERS' ACCOUNT
i |Gross Premium income
{a) Flrst Year Premium 280,532 175,33 291,605 BEY 3D 563,558
ib) fenswal Premivm 658,276 460,848 383,439 1,850,587 1,638,131
{c) Single Pramium 144,779 92511 95,580 213,371 305,002
2 [wat Pramium Incemaes 1,060,678 711032 333,952 3,595469 2,448,183
3 |lncome from investments: (Mat)? 413,284 504,283 75,634 1,700,712 £08,850
4 jGiner income 236 2.635 2,459 a0l 7386
5 {Transfer of funds from Sharehoiders AZcount? 5,358 4341 8,856 23,230 21,033
6 [Total{2 e 5} 1,481,938 1,328,292 992,078 4,631,725 3,125 462
7 jCommissipnen ;
{2} First Year Premium 74,554 aB.847 43432 80,443 110020
{£) Renzwal #romium 16,387 11,026 15,205 A3,551 410,859
{c} Singlz Fremium 2,355 1,647 1486 §,3%1 4,586
Rewards : - 2120 - 5,518
8 |Mat Commssion o3, 386 61,520 62,849 240,828 161,384
9 | Gperating Expunses relaled to [nsurance business (a-+b+cj:
(a} Employees remynaration and welfare expnses 72,827 57,214 70,511 235,027 203,878
{b) Advertisement anst publicity ’ 15,873 13,874 23777 48,722 51,573
(C) Gther operating expenses 42,124 29,489 32852 127,858 102,584
1 {Expenses of Management (EOM) (8493 220,220 162,097 189,283 648,435 518,714
L1 (Pravisions for doubthu delbits {inciuding bad dobts written cif) 15 75 691 20 857
12 |Provisions for duninution in value of invastments - {159} - {159y 1,023
13 (Gocds and Service taa charge on finked charges 6,118 3,061 5481 21,020 19,922
14 |Provision for taxes - . - - -
15 |Banefits Faid® {Net} 437,998 313,804 308,365 1,332,124 987,821
16 IChangs in ectuanial kability 015,815 727,501 476,776 2,574,85% 1505028
17Tl (104214124133 34+45+16) 1,479, £57 £,208,780 981,205 4,576,359 3,045,500
¢ |Surplus/{Daficlt) (6=17) 1,569 19,532 10,773 55,365 79,952
1% |Appropriations
(2] Transferred to Sharaholders’ Account (9,635) 15460 2,846 25123 45,627
{b} Funds for Future Appropations 12,164 4,052 2,927 29,243 34,335
20 |Details of Surplusf{Deficit)
{ay Interim bonus g=id 112 109 58 354 71
(b} Adlecation of bonus to Felicyholdars 3,418 6.482 BATY 175,856 154,471
{c) Surplus showin in lhe Revenue Aceount 2,468 18.612 10,772 55,367 79,852
Totai Surplus 5,698 26,103 15,303 211,577 234,708
SHAREHOLRERS' ACCOUNT
Il {Transfer from Policehalders’ Actount {3,635} 15480 7.846 26,123 45,687
& |Tatal inceme under Sharehalders’ Accounl
{a) Invesmnant Inceme 10,235 8,176 2,135 39,530 31432
{8 Ciher Incomia . 212 2495 209 3,020 1,518
23 |Expensas other than those ralated to insuranca businass® 1,545 3072 1,493 7429 7,020
24 {Transfer of funds to Policyhoiders' Ajc 5358 4,341 8,986 23,730 21,033
25 |Provisions for doubiful debls Snduding write off) - - . - -
26 [Provistons for diminttion in vajue of invesimenls - {63} - {63} -
27 |Profit before tax (21+22-23-24-25-26) (6,091} 17,532 6,700 37,487 50,464
28 |Provision for tax {951} 2,314 785 1,520 5,844
29 [Profit after tax and before extrsordinary items (5,138) 15,218 5,015 35,987 33,510
30 |Extracvdinary Hlems (Net of bax expenses) . - - - -
31 {Profit after tox and extraordinary Itemsz {5,130} 15,218 5,518 35,867 43,528
31 iovinend per share {(JNR) (Kominal Vaiue TNR 10 per share):
{a} Interim Dividens 4 - - - -
(b} Final Divicerd - . . - -
33 iDebenture Redemplion Reserve - - - 592 952
34 (Profit carred 1o Balance Sheat 181,696 186,85 148,721 181,696 146,721
35 {Paid up equity shara capital 191,881 191,881 191,881 191,881 193,981
36 {Resarve & Surplus (excluding Revalratlon Reszrve) 201,837 205,183 162,085 201,832 162,085
& Fair valug Change Account and Revaiuation Reserve (Sharehelders' Account) 5,107 5,242 707 5,107 07
38 [Total Assets:
() Invastments:
- Sharcholders” 584,846 327,108 550,435 584,840 550,425
-Paficyholders' Fund excluding Linked Assels 10,080,784 9,552,271 8,210,212 10,080,78« 8,210,212
-Agsats hald to cover Unked Ugblitfes 4,412,928 4,212,705 3,525,023 1,417,928 3,525,023
() Other Assets {Net of curent latillies 0ast grovisions) 288611 203,865 139,855 238,611 139,565
Foptnates @
1 Hetof reinsurance
Z  Metof amertisation end losses (including capil gins}
3 Inctudes contribution of funds lrom sharehoiders accounts towards axcogs EOb
4 Inghusive of inladim bonys
g Includes femuneration of Managing Director (M) & Chiaf Executive Officer (CEDY Whota Time Directers (WTDVRMP's over spacified imits and Interest an Non Convestitla

Debantures (NCD}




Max Life Insurance Company Limited

IRDAI registration ao. 104 doted November 15, 2000
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Aill amguat in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Asat Asat
Particutars March 31, 2074 Harch 31, 2023
Audited Audited
Sources of funds
Sharehelders' funds ¢
Share Capilal 191,881 £91,881
Rasarvas and Surplus 201,837 162,085
Craxdliff Debit fair vajue change account 5,083 663
Revaiyation Reserve - Investment propeares 44 A4
Sub - total 309,825 354,673
Berrawings 45,600 49,600
POLICYHOLDERS' FUNDS:
Credgit/[Dabit] fair value change account 382,661 1,842
Revaluation Reserve - Invastment property 9,351 4,817
Palicy Liabiiitizs 5,735,496 8,053,542
Irsuranca Reserve - -
Provisien for Lirked Lizhilitizs 3,879,205 3,036,555
Funds for diseontinued policles
Dicantinued en acceunt af ron-payment of premium 538.023 488,468
Sub - Total 14,595,066 11,712,824
Funds for Future Approprdations - Non linked 387 271 358,028
Sub - Total 387.271 358,028
Total 15,382,162 13,425,525
Appiication of funds
Invastments
Shareholdees’ Tnvestments 5B4,B4D 550,425
Bulivybriders’ Tivestinu s 10,080,784 319,12
Assel held to caver linkad labidities 4317528 3,525,023
Loans 106,046 92,483
Freed Assels 41,531 34,518
Currant Assels :
Cash and Bank balances 151,842 102,184
Advances and Othar assats 361,016 297,239
Sub-Total {A) 512,858 399,423
Cuprent dzbilibies 357,007 382,738
Provicions 4,818 3821
Sub-Totat {B) 361,835 86,559
Het Current Assets (C) = (A-B) 151,033 12,864
Hiscclenzous expenditure {to the extent not written-of or adjusted) - -
Debit Bzlance in Profit & Loss Account {Sharenolders’ account) - -
Total 15,332,162 12,425,525
Contingerit Liabilities 41,170 53,156

R R




Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAI registration ito. 104 dated November 15, 2660
Standalone Receipis and Payments account (Cash Flow Statement) for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Al amcunt in INR lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2B24 March 31,2023
Audited Audited
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premium receivad from policyholders, induding advance receipts 2,936,851 2,530,808
Other recelpts 12,146 7117
Payments to the re-insurers, net of commissions and cisims (4,522 4,368
Paymant 1 co-ingurars, net of clalms recovery - -
Payrnents of claims ’ {1,377,41%) (1,031,860)
Paymants of cammission and brokerage (227,040) {151,291)
Payments of oLhar cperating expenses (refer note 3) (430,048) {335,486)
Preliminary and pre-operative aupanses -
Depusits, advances and stalf loans {1,739) 453
[ncome taxes paid (Net) {1,086} (8,362)
Goods and Serviges Tax (GST) paid {26,908) {20,950)
Other payments - -
Cash flows before extraordinary items 874,240 295,603
Cash flows from extraordinary operations - -
Net cash flows from eperating activities {A) 374,248 995,603
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (22,276) {17,375)
Proceads from sale of fixed assets 146 207
Purchase of investments {11,030,393) (11,205,650
Sale of investments 6,575,678 9,458 451
Lgans Disburged {1,272) {12,190)
Leans against policizs (13,865 {13,685)
Repayments received 1,531 -
Rents racalved 7,329 5,913
interosts recelved . 660,651 568,523
Dividends received 50,542 36,509
Investments in money market instruments and i liquid mutual funds (Net) - -
Expenses related to investments -
Met cash {used In} investing activitiss (B) {771,939) (1,172,857)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proteeds from issuance of share capital - -
Proceeds from borrowing -
Repayments of gorrowing . -
interests paig (3,720) (3,720)
Bividends paid - -
Net cash flows {used in) financing activities {C) (3,720) (3,720}
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents, net (D) 1 -
Het (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+C+D) 48,582 (186,614)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 283,940 1,173,554
Cash and cash equivalents ak end of the year 1,082,522 983,040
Note - Components of Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period:
Cash and cheques in hang 11,781 . 13,394
Bank Balances (refer ncte 4} 142,298 B9,535
Fixed Depesits (less than 3 months) 16,400 20,000
Money Market instrurents & other shert term #iquid Investmants 912 443 861,010
Total Cash and cash equivalents 1,082,522 583,940
Recongiliation of Cash ard Cach Equivalents with Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and cash squivalents 1,082,522 983,94G
Less: Mongy Market Instruments & other short term liquld investrents (912,543} {861,010
Less; Linkad business bank balances {2,237) (746}
Less: Fued Deposits {less than 3 manths) forming part of Schedule B, 8A and 8B {16,000) {20,000)
Tetal Cash and Bank Balances 151,842 i02,184

Notes:

1) The above Receipts ond Payments Account has bean prepared as prescribed by Insurance Regulatory and Develogment Autharity (Preparation of financial
statemnents ang auditor's report of insurance companies) Regufations, 2002 undar the Direct mathed in accordance with Accounting Standard 3 Cash Flow
Staternents.

2} Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reciassified wherever necessary to conform to current vear's classification.

3) Inciudes ¢ash paid towards Corporate Socha! Rasponsibiiity expendituze Rs. 1,000 {March 31, 2923 1,000}

4) Includes bank balance fer linked business of Rs, 2,237 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 746}
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Max Life Insuronce Company Limitad
TRDAT registration no. 104 dated Novembar 15, 2000
Standalone Segment Reporting for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024

(Al arrount ia IHR Ipkhs, prlsass otherwisa stated}

Three manths enged/ As Bt Year endedf Asat
March 31, Qacember 31, ftarch 31, March 31, Harch 33,
e fartleutars 2024 2023 2073 2024 2023
Audited Audited Auditad Audlted Avdired
i |Segmeak Income ¢ ?

A} [Polisyhulders
Participating Hon Linked - Individual Lifa
Net Fremicm 253,303 2iG,488 294,757 254,722 B22,277
Incoma from irvestments? $41,483 125,203 £9,222 531,682 376,542
Trengfer of Funds from shargholoers sessunt - - . - -
Qiner ingome 2,142 2,071 3,525 2,761 3,505
Participating Non Linked - Pension
Nep Prentium 13% = 15 159 235
Intema fram avasimants 236 35 433 9 3]
Trensfar of Funds freat sharansiders” pocount . - - - .
Cther Insome’ ] - ] f] [}
Naon Participating Non Linked - Individual & Group Lifs
Nat Premidm 418,284 281,802 338,857 L1328 B70,829
income fiom invagments? 51,177 34,830 0,688 151,150 103,324
Transfer of Fands froin charabsidar's aceount 15,481 {1,701). 5,5%2 15,481 5,582
Other income (25) 357 482 165 a3
Neon Participating #Hon Linked = Anaulty
Hat PreTivm 55,70 45,237 38,650 227,15 141,918
income from Investments? 8,523 7,207 818 27,053 14,808
Transier of Funds from shareha'der's ccount {10,223) 5,042 €03 4,249 12,651
Cthier incoime n 5] 7 58 3
Hon Participating Non Linked « Health
bat Presniem B34 251 5% 1,384 1310
Inegme from invesmments &4 % 36 283 144
Transfer of Funds fram sharaholder's account - - 1,248 - 1,748
Otner nzome? ] il a 1 1
Hon Partkipating Linked ~ Individual Life
et Framum 353,363 179,127 223,487 627,524 &27,395
ingeme from wvestments? 202,020 322,056 {57,217} 937,033 57,558
Transier of Furds frem sharehoiders aocoent - - - - -
Cther inzomas ig3 183 253 405 711
Nen Pargicipating Linked - Pension
vt Premium 4,098 kR 5,759 14,577 19,847
Incoma frem invastmaigs? 9,633 12,705 {1,3t5) 39,150 822
Trenelar of Funds from sherehoder's atcount - - 3 . 1043
Ciier meoma’ i} hij H 1 1
Nan Participating Linked -~ Group
Nat Premium 153 4,027 ,783 5,185 4,371
Incoeme from investments fie] 746 I8 2812 745
Transfer of Funds frem shareheldars account - . - . -
Orher incema? - . o [ 0

B} |Shareholder's:
Ircoma friom investmenis? 10,229 9,235 9154 35,483 33,432
Ceher Inzome 1 245 204 300 1,518

2 [Segment Surplus f{Defizit) (nek of trensfer from
sharzholders’ Afa) L
Particpabng Mon Linked - Individual Life 6,310 5001 5,408 18,878 16,423
Fardcipating Non Linkes) - Pension ] 2 13 15 16
Mon Farticipating Ken Linked - Individual & Growp L2 {21,807 2,027 (12,573} {15,450) {3,592}
Han Partipating Ken Linked - Anauity 10,123 {£.042) {03} {8,245} {12,658}
Non Pgrigipating Non Linked - Heaith 459 651 3,169 1,785 {1,748}
won Pamicipating Linxed - Individos! Lefe (19,263) 3,024 5,158 3,895 26,884
Non Partcipating tarked - Fension n 424 535 1,723 1,219
ron Parucipsting Linked - Groun {3 3l 2 a3 53
Tatal (14,933) 11,139 (1,139 2,393 24,594
Sharehoidery 9,853 9,653 7,054 33574 18,926
Gravd Total {5,138) 15218 5,515 35,967 45,520




HMax Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAl reglstraticn no. 104 dated Hevenibar 15, 2000
Standalong Segment Reporting for the quartar and year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amount In INA lakhs, unless otharwlse stated)

Three months ended/ As at Yearandadf As at
3r Hod Particulors March 31, December 31, March 31, Mereh 38, March 31,
2024 2825 2923 2024 2023
Audited Augited Audited Audited Auglted

3 |segment Assets: i
Posipating Moo Linved - Indaideal Life 7,397,852 £,849,288 4,161,537 7,097,892 5,161,502
Partaostng Hop Ligked - Farson 12,607 12,558 31,763 12,657 11,763
Moo Particiesting Nos nkad - Individual & Grown Lifs 2,555,455 2,505,722 2020323 2,848,455 2,933,325
Non Participating Non Laked - Acnity 552,311 453,640 557,918 312,659
Nan Partcipateg Nan Lnked « Healh a0 2,769 2,477 362t 2,477
tan Paipetng Linked - Iedh & 353 454 440,262 3,355,127 4,354,494 338,127
Hon Partcpatng Linked - Jension 153,554 181,715 185,348 183,554 185,648
Hon Participeting Linked - Group 20,569 20623 18,735 20,569 18,235
Total 14,998,000 14,007,258 12,086,142 14,988,000 12,035,242
Shaeholiers' 745,237 677,731 725,592 745,537 725,543
Linaiigcatsl - - . - -
Grand Tetal 15,743,987 14,754,530 128120865 15,743,387 12,812,085

4 {Segmoeat Policy LiatHitles:
Partcipating MNoan Linked - Individual Life 7035037 6,337,557 €,163,634 2,035.037 5,163,234
Pasticipating Mon Linked - Pansea 8,775 9,978 5,817 9,77% 9,517
Heo Particpating Nen bched - indeagusl & Group Life 2,857,948 2,506,115 2,022,082 2,897,568 2,022,082
Ren Fariapaing hen Unked - Annully 527,954 451,352 311,944 T27.554 35,914
Fon Particioate oo Linked ~ Heaith 3119 3z88 3911 3,118 393
Non Participatng Unked - Inghvidual Lfa 4,248,809 4,033,212 3,335,459 4,345,503 1,255,459
rion Pariaipalmg Loked - Fenssa 163,075 191,341 1B5,655 134,075 185,895
Men Particpating Linked - Growp 20823 20635 18241 2058 1821
Total 11,963,725 14,066,995 13,070,756 14,988,725 12,470,756
Srarchoioers Fund 755262 537,533 741,329 155262 723,319
Grang Total 15,743,987 14,764,839 12.842,685 31574%,437 12,812,085
Footnotes !

1 Segments molude:
) Non-Linked:

L. Participabng Poicas: {i) Lifa {in) Fansizn
2, Han-Parhdipaticg Poicies: i) Lz (1) Annuity (1) Heaith
by L nied Fodizies (i Life () Fension (a} Group
2 Netof prowsions for giminulon in vafus of invagtmants,
3 TheamounrcF{D)0 cencies that the valus is kass thzn INR 50 thoysasds




Max Life insurance Company Linsitad
LRDAT registration no. 194 dated Hovember 15, 2000
Stzndalene Statement of disclosures as per Regulation 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclesura Roquiramants) Regulations, 2015 For tha quarter and

year ended March 33, 2024

(All ampunt in INA laidis, unless stherwise stated)

Three months endedfas at

Yezrended/As at

: March 3 Dedember 31, Harch 31 March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2028 x 20%3 2033 ' 2034 2023
Audited Audited Audited Audited Augited

L D=l Squiy Ratis® (v0 of pmes) 013 0.13 0.54 0.4z AL
2 [Dant gervice coverage rata’ (no of times) {3.38) 19,75 830 13.07 14,53
3 lIrsavast service sovaizge wlis? (o ol times) (3.58) 12.7% 820 1107 11,53
5 [Outstardary redeamytle preference shares (quantity ang valus) A HA NA BA NA
3 jCepaal redemption sesgrva f debanturg redempton reserve £.82 a.87 1.30 87 [
6 It wonn! 391,885 356,195 350,468 191,839 382,453
7 Iua gt after taet {5,130) 15,28 5,815 35,267 33,52
3 {famirgs par shara (0 INR):

3} Basiz £65 Roford and alter axtrascdinary iteos [net of bx expanse) fer tha p <

oice veat (et ar _;cdﬁfcr three mmm} ’ paned) & ore b3 87 27

b} D.luted EP5 helora and after axtracrhnary dems {aal of tax expasse) for the PO -

cariodf vear irct annuatized for three months) @027y 479 431 187 137
4 [Cuent ratio® 142 120 103 142 103
0 11orq 1emn cebt to worken captas® na 73 N HA A
LI {flad debis e Aczourt recaivable rto” A HA HA N HA
12 foucrent fabdiy rata” 602 GOz 0.03 .02 0,03
13[Tetat debts to wtal assars® S03 o.60 ©.00 .00 0.00
14 |Cebtzis twrnava HA NA HA HA NA
13 |Invemory tumaver® HA HA HA HA hR
A6 [Coerating margin {351 NA Na HA HA A
17 {her Frofy margin (%) A NA HA A HA
18 45sat covar avalizbie, in casa of non-convartie dabt securives™ 845% B TE5% £45%] 754%

Footnoles:

Bebl-Equity Rztia 1s Caloutaced as Tow BOrmowings divdad By NalWorin. Nat wigdn 15 sharehisioers funds including Creds / {L2) Famm vaius Lhange ACCOUNt and excluting ®aztzed Hodge Rasarva +

Foicynolder.

2 Detr serace coverzge ratio 15 Calaulated 23 Profit hefore Interest and tax divided by mnberest expenss 1036thar with princsaal rapaymients of fong-tamm dabt dunng tha gericd.
3 Interest senvica coverage bt s calouiated o Prift bafbre mterest end tax divided by interes expencs.
4 et wonhis srarehcklers funds incluging Creait 7 (Debit) #ar Velue Change Account and exchting Reslisad Hedgo Regoreg - Peltyhalder,

5 Nat profit after tax Is the profit afler tax a5 pare shareholders’ account for year (o date,

6 Current ratiz s current ass2ts (cash and bank Balance and advances & oiber assals) divided by current Lbdtios and proveons.
Currers fability ralio is computed o5 current Fabifity divided by tetal abirty. Tola! ity inciudes hommwings, poloyholder lighittes, Fund o0 Futee Agpropratian, ciment Babiity, pravigion and

woaisad hedge fuctuaton resarve.

B Tow! donts w0 total a56ts 5 it borowings dwidad by totel azsets os por dalance shest,

% Notapcilcabie 1o Insurence Comdinies.

13 Iel asseis are exduding Folloyhoiders funds inchuding razized hadge resarve &nd Funds for Futurs Appropnations. Assas Cover ratia f computed as net assets divided by toial borrawings.




Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAT reglstration no, 104 dated November 15, 2008
Standalong Si2temaent of Analytical Ratlos for the quarter and year ended Masch 31, 2824

(Al azgunt in INR lpkhs, unjess athenyfse stoted)
Threa months ended/ As ot Year ended/ As at
- . Harch 31, Decomber 3%, March 31, March 31, March 31,
earticulars T 2623 2023 2074 2093
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Analytical Ratios':
{1} Solvancy Ratio® L7E 17%% 1807 172% 1565
{ir} Expanses of Mzpagament Ratio 1% 23 215 2 6%
() Policyhalcers Rabdites 1o sharehaltlers' fund 3812% 35397 3431% 3812% 34831%
{iv} Eornings per share (in INR}:
2} Bame P baiore and per extmOrGIAasy NS {nal of tax exgansa) tor
the panodf year (ol anausiizad for three manths) {027} 8,79 031 167 2.27
) Difuted EPS bafore and after axtragndinary itens {net of tax expense} (.27} 0.79 031 187 237
for the perod! year {rat annualized for threz months)
{v) MPA raties: (for Pobcyho'ders' fund)
a) Gross HPAs
- fion Linked
Par - - .
Han Far - - - M
- Linkeg
Non Par 3,341 2,341 2,560 2,341 2,500
Het HPAs
« Nor Linked
Par . - . .
Hon Par . - - .
- Linked
HNaon Par . - - . "
o} %6 of Grzss HPAg
- Hon Linked
Par 0.00%% 0.03% D.06% 0.00% 0.60%:
tion Par 8.00% 4.06% L0, 0.66% 0.00%,
« Linked
Non Par 0,55% 0.02% 2.02% 8.053% 0.82%%
s af Net {PA
- Han Linkad
Par 0.00% 0.06% 0.40% 0.06% 0.80%
Hen Par G.00% 0.00%% 0063 0.00% 0.00%
- Linked
Nen Par S 8.60%| 0.05% UG 0.00%
{vi} Yield on Investvents {on Policyhaidars” fund)
A, Without wnreatised gaing
- #on Linked
Par G % 6% 3% P
Hen Par 4 6% T 7% e
- Unked
ot Par 13% 12 M 1% &a
B, With wrweslised gains
- Hon Linked
Par 16% 15%6 43% 15% £%h
Hon Par 16% 6% 8% 16% 54
- Linked
Hon Par 15% 33% ¥ 25% B
{vi) NPA ratios: {for shareholders' fund}
(o} Grisy HPAS 37 837 1060 937 1000
Hot HilAs . - . . .
{b} % of Gross HPAs 0.16% 0.18% 0,158% 9,167% G184
% of Net NPAs 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.06% 2.00%
(i} Yigkd on lnvestments {oa Sharehelders' &/¢)
A, Without unrcalised gains &%, S T 8% 5%
£, With unrealised gaing 12%: i) 73 il%: 5%
Ny
" . .
< . “ N
I '
£
i .
i
L
kY M, RN




Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAL registration no. 104 dated Hovember 15, 2000
Standalone Statement of Analytlcal Ratios for the quarter and year ended March 33, 2024

{Al amount fn INR lakhs, unless olterwite statad)

Three months endod/ As at “Year ended/ As at
Particufars March 31, Gecember 31, Masrch 31, March 31, March 31,
2074 2033 2023 2034 2023
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
{ix} Pe-sistency Ratiz?
Persistancy Ratls {Regular Pramivm / Limited Premsun Saymant undar
irdividust category)
Ly premium
3th manth 87% 84% 83% B7% B4%
254 menth 68% 67% 65% 0% 68%
37th month 60% 62% 59% 63% 62%
45t ronith 63% 5% 58% 66% 63%
§15t month 56% 56% 8% 58% 58%
by count
13th month B8% 33% B5% 6% 84%
25th month 75% 72% 65% 75% 0%
37th manth 65% 64% 50% 66% 6%
45th month B8% 57% 56% 52% 5%%
G151 mmanth 33% 33% 53% 55% 54%
Persistency atio {Singe Premium f Fully paid-up under indlviduat
categany)
by premium
13tk month 59% $9%. 98%, 89% 89%
25th menth 100% 100% 100% 160% 100%
37th menth 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
45th month 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
615t month 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
5y Lount
£3( month 9% 89% 59% 9934 9%
25th fgath 100% 160% 100% 100% 100%
37th month 100% 180% 160% 100% 100%
49'h munth 100% 1080% 100% 100% 100%
615t menth 100% 100% 100% 100% 180%
{x}) Congervalion Ratio
Barticipating tow Linked - Indivicual Life 84% 26% 7% 35% 7%
Participating Non Linkad - Pansion 78% 4%, 54% T 82%
Ngn Participating ¥on Linked - fngividuzl & Graup ¢ife 85% L% 0% 0% 6%
100 Paricipatiag Non Linked - Anneity 85%% 87% na BE3% NA
Xon Participating Non Linked - Health 81% §7% 87% B2% B1%:;
o0 Partizipating Linked - Individuat Life 697 74% 72%, 2% 73%
tion Participating Linked - Pensica B7% 55% 22%, 70 1%
Hon Parlisipating Linked - Group HA A HA HA ki

Footnotes @

1. Analytical ratios hava basn caltulated o3 per definilion given in IROAT Anaiviics! retias disdiosure.

2, Tha schvendy ralic are a5 certified by the Apgainted Adtuary.

3. 3) The persistency rethos re calculated in accordance vith IRDAFACT/CIRGER/21/02/2010 cated February L1, 2010 and IROAT cireular no. IRDAT/FEAICIR/MISC/256/09/2021

dated Seplember 30, 2021 and hence are with a lag of (e month.

1} The persistency ratios for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 bave been cleulated on 35t March 2024 for the policies issuad in the December to February pesdod of tha rafevant
years. £.9.: U 13th manth parsistency for Uie cusrent quarter Is calculatad for the paiiciss issued from December 2022 to February 2023, The parsisteacy raties for quarter ended
Decernser 31, 2023 and March 3, 2023 have bean calcutated In 3 simifar manner,
€} The parsistancy ratios for year to dale as at March 31, 2024 have been calcuiated on 31t March 2024 for the policies issued In the March to february pariod of the retevent years,
£.9.: the 13t marth persistency for the current year is caiculated for the policies isssed from Mereh 2022 to Februzry 2023, The persislency mtios for year ended March 31, 2023

lhave baen calzuated In a similar manner,

6) The 'quarter erded’ persislency ratios are not comparatia lo catrespanding “year to date* ratics on account of gifferent imea period avallable for rerevial for polices. For example «
In case of \uarter esded parsistenty a5 at March 31, 2024, which includas policies issved in the December lo February pancd of ralevant yaars, a policy issusd in the month of
Decembear wil have around 3 months svallabls for renewal of poficy. Whils in case of “year ended” persistency as at March 31, 2024, viich Ingludas pelicies iscusd in the Manch o
Fetruary paniod of rafevant years, 3 policy lssued in the manth of Masch will have arcund 12 morths avallable for renewal of poticy.
@) Fersistency rallas inciudz Individual business enly. Greup business policies nave been excluded from the parsistency calauatien.
4. Rallns 1or the previcus year's quartar & pravioas yaar have been reclassified / regroupad [ restated whirever necessary.




#Max Lfe Insurance Company Limited
IROAL sgisttion no, 104 duted Novembear 15, 2000

totes ta Standalone Financlal Results far the quarigr and year ended March 31, 2024

"

o

L

v

6

The standatone findrcal resuils have bean prepared in aoChedance with the requirements of Reguiation 52 of the Sezurty Exchange Board of Indis (SEBI) {Listng ODlgaticns and Disclosume
Requiraments) Regulations, 2015, as amended, tead vith SEAT {Listing Qbiganons and [istiosura Reguirements) (St Amendment} Regulations, 2622 w.ef, November 4, 2022, 1 tha extent
opifcalile, and IRDAI Creular IRDAJFREREG/CIR/288/10/2016 dated Detobar 25, 2818 an pubilcetion of Fnansial tesulls for Lifa Inserance Companies.

Ehijiie

Tia standslona financial rasults were reviewsd Dy the Auat Commniites ant subsequantly dpproved by tha Board of Diretars at thalr respactive mestings on May 06, 202¢ 2nd May 97, 2029 and
are audiad by the [gint auditors of the Company.

Post recaiving refuisite asprovals from Regelalory Autharities, the Company has allotted 442,579,161 full p2id ug equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Az Bank on Apedl 17, 2029. The Sharaes have
been isseed at Re. 11306 par share inckuding a share pravium of R, 10305 per share bo Axis Bznk on preferential bag's for 80 ag97egste invesoment of B8, 161,200 by Avis 8ork in tha
Company.

Tae Company has recesced a favourable order from Hen'Bz Bethl Kigh Court tn Avgust 2023 directlng the Inceme Tax Autharity to release the refunds of past assessment years which had been

ad;usied with culstanting demands of Assassment year 2817-1B. The Company has artounled such refunds pertaling to sadiar years during the yoar ended March 31, 2023 Accordingly, the
Proviston for Taxaltion in olt & LB5§ ARG GMprisas (e proviston For cuirent ax of R8s, 4,516 1akis for the year endes #March 34, 2029 294 revorsal of provison £or e of RS, 3,347 Iakhs far

23 pariods,

The amounts for the quanizr ended Mares 31, 2024 a1z balancing emaurds a5 per audt2d accounts for the yaar ended Macch 31, 2024 end nina menths ended December 31, 2023, Sevflarly, the
amaunts far tha Guarter endad Blacch 31, 2023 are balancing smounls a5 per audted sccounts Tar the year exded Merch 31, 2023 2nd wine manths ended Dacembar 31, 2022,
Pravious yearfpuricd figuras have baen regroupad wherkver nacssary, 1 confanm 1 forrent paried's cassifcaton,

For 3nd on Behalf of the Board of Directers

Prashant Tripathy
HManaging Director & CED
DIN: 02260516

mhact?: éuj'l'-:ﬁ"am
By 0%, 2024



S.R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
12th Floor, The Ruby, 706/708, Sharda Chambers,
Senapati Bapat Marg, New Marine Line,

Dadar {West), Mumbai — 400 028 Mumbai - 400 020

Independent Auditors’ Report on Quarterly and Year to Date Consolidated Financizl Results of Max Life
Insurance Company Limited pursuant to Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63¢2) of Securities Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015, as amended,
verd with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of Indin (IRDAI} Circular reference: IRDAY
F&I/REG/CIR/288/10/2016 dated October 23, 2016

To The Board of Directors of
Max Life Insurance Company Limited

A E]

We have audited the accompanying quarterly and year to date consolidated financial results of Max Life
Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Holding Company™ and its subsidiary, Max Life
Pension Fund Management Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as the
~Group™), for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 (the ~Consolidated
Financizl Results™), attached herewith, being submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to tha requirement of
Regulation 32 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended and [RDAIl Circular reference: IRDAVF&I/ REG/CIR/208/10/2016 dated
Octaber 25, 2016, These conselidated financial results have been prepared on the basis of consolidated financial
stitements. which is the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management, and which have been approved
by the Board of Directors on May (7. 2024,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these guarterly and year to date consotidated financial results
based on our avdit of such consolidated financial statements. which have been prepared by the Holding
Company’s Management in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles specified under
Section [33 of the Companies Act. 2013 as amended {the “Act”™) read with Companies {Accounting Standards)
(Amendment) Rules. 2021 issued thereunder, including the relevani provisions of the Insurance Act. (938§ (the
“lnsurance Act’™}. the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act. 1999 (the ~IRDA Act™ and other
accounting prineiples generally accepted in india, to the extent considered relevant and appropriate for the
purpose of quarterly and year to date consolidated financial results and are not inconsistent with the accounting
principles as preseribed in the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial
Statements and Auditors™ Report of Insurance Companies) Regufations, 2002 (the “Regulations™ and
orders/idirections/eireulars issued by the IRDAT to the extent applicable

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(183) of
the Act, Those standards require thet we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial results are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis. evidence supporting the amounts disclosed in these consolidated financial resalts, An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. We believe

that our audit provides a reasonrable basis for our opinion.




S.R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP B. K. KHARE & CO.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
I2th Floor, The Ruby, T06/708, Sharda Chambers,
Senapati Bapat Marg, New Marine Line,

Dadar (West). Mumbai — 400 028 Mumbai — 400 020

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information and accarding 1o the explanations given to us these quarterly
and year to date consolidated fimancial resuls:
i, are presented in acvordance with the requirements of Regulation 32 read with Regulation 63(2) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2013, as amended and [RDAI
Circular referencer IRDA| /F&1/ REG/CIR/ 208 7 10/ 2016 dated 23% October 2016 in this regard;
and

it.  gives a true and fair view of the consolidated net protit and other financial information for the quarter

ended March 31, 2024 and for the vear ended March 31. 2024,

Other Matters

3. The acwarial valuntion of liabilities for life policies in force and for policies in respect of which premium has
been discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2024, is the responsibility of the Holding Company's
Appointed Actuary (the "Appeinted Actuary™). The actuarial valuation of these liabilities for iife policies in
force and for policies in respect of which premium has been discontinued bur liability exists as at March 31,
2024 has been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary and in his opinior, the assumptions for such valuation
are in aecordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the [RDA! and the [nstitute of Actuaries of India in
concurrence with the IRDAL We have relied upon Appointed Actuary’s certificate in this regard for forming
our opinion on the valuation of Habilities for life policies in force and for pelicies in respect of which premium
has been discontinued but Hability exists in conselidated financial statements of the Group.

6. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs 53.08 crores a5 at March 31, 2024, and total revenues of Rs 3.17
crores for the year ended on that date. These financial staternent and other financial information have been
audited by other auditor, which financial statements. other financial information and auditer’s reports have been
furnished o us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it refates
L the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3)
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the atoresaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of such
other auditor.

7. The consolidated financial sesults for the quarters ended March 31, 2024, December 31, 2623, March 31, 2023
have been prepared by the management from the books of account which is neither audited nor reviewed by the
Jjoint auditors of the Group.




S.R.BATLIBGI & CO. LLP B. K. KHARE & CO.,

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
12th Floor. The Ruby, 7066/708, Sharda Chambers,
Senapati Bapat Marg, New Marine Line,

Dadar {West), Mumbai — 400 028 Mumbai — 460 020

8. The comparative financial inthrmation of the Giroup for the corresponding quarter and year ended March 31,
2023, included in these consolidated financial results, were audited by one of the joint auditors i.e, B.K, Khare
& Co. and one of the predecessor auditors ie. Fraser & Ross the predecessor auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial infonmation on May 12. 2023,

For S.R. Bathibioi & Co. LLP For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstration No: 301003E/ E300003 Fimp Registralion No: 103 102W

ey ahalfest
?\"“" ooty Shi isﬁ‘m;%'/_

per Pilkashoe Mutha

Partner Partner

Membership No: 131638 Membership No: 111212

UDIN: 24131638BKGDXU7309 UDIN: 241H1212BKERVQ 1664
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 07, 2024 Date: May 07. 2024




tax Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAT registration nto, 104 dated Novamber 15, 2000
Statemant of Consolidated Financial Resuits far the quarter and Year ended March 31, 2024

{All amount In IR lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

Three months ended/ As at Year gnded/As at
51 Ko, particulars Harch 31, December 31, | March 31, Harch 31, Harch 31,
2024 2523 2023 2024 2023
Unautted {refet note 2 on page B) Audited Audited
POLICYHOLDERS' ACCOURT
1 [Gross Premium Ircoma @
{3) First Year Pramium 260,532 176,351 241,005 £43,940 550,958
6] Renewsl Preaiym 658,276 460,848 583,438 1,850,557 1,638,231
{c} Single Fromium 144,779 62,511 20,980 413,371 106,602
1 et Premim incomet 1,060,678 712,032 503,952 2,855,469 2,485,183
3 iIncoime from rwvastmasts: (Nat)s 413,284 504,283 75681 1,700,712 608,850
4 {Olher Incame 23186 2,636 2,450 8,814 7,386
5 |Transfer of funds from Sharcholders' Aczount? 5,358 4,341 8,888 23,734 21,033
6 |Votal{Zto ) 1,481,636 1,228,292 992,078 4,63%, 735 3,125,452
7 |fommession on
{z) First Year Framium 74,654 45,847 43,532 183,443 118,920
{b) Reneval Promtium 16,387 13,028 15,808 43,994 40,859
{c) Singla Pramium 2,338 1,647 1,4E6 6,381 4,986
Rewards - - 2,126 - 3519
8 [Wet Commussion’ 93,366 61,528 62,845 239,828 151,384
q | Operating Expenses related 12 insurance busingss {a+b+ch
(a) Employess remunesation 2nd velfare exmsenses 72,827 57,214 70,511 235,827 03878
{5} Advertisement and publicity 15,873 13,874 23,7277 45,722 51,873
{c) Other cpersting expansos 43,124 25,459 32,852 127.859 102,584
10 iExpenses of Management (EOM) {8+9) 224,230 152,007 189,383 648,435 515,718
1 Provisions for deubidul detits including bad debts vritten off) 15 76 634 o] BB7
12 |Provisions for iminuticn in value of vestments - (159} - {159} 1023
13 |Gonds and Sarvice tax charge on linked chargas E,Lt3 5,061 5481 21,850 19922
14 |Povigion for mxes - - - - N
15 |Benefis Poul” {net) 437,993 313,804 308,365 1,332,124 997,921
16 [Change in acluarial Szbiity JiCBLS 727.80 476,775 2,574,859 1,306,028
17 {Votal (10+121+32+134+14+15+16) 1,479,167 1,208,780 §51,305 4,576,359 3,045,500
if  |Surplus/(Deficit) {6-17) 2,465 315 513 A0, 775 55.366 29,962
19 |Appropriations
{a) Teansferred b Shareholders’ Account {9,635} 15,4560 7,846 26,1723 45,627
{b) Funcs for Fulvrg Approprations $2,104 4,052 2,827 29,243 34,335
20 |Detaits of Surptus/ (Deficit)
(2) Interim bonus £aid 112 109 58 3% 271
{b) Alecation of bonus to Policyholdars 5,118 6,482 8,473 175,856 154,471
(c} Surpius sitown I 2he Revenue Adcaunt . 2,468 19,517 10,772 58357 79,862
Total Surplus 5,698 26,103 19,303 231,577 234,704
SHAREHOLDERS" ACCOUNY
21 |Transfer frem Policyholders” Account (9,635) 15450 7,846 26,123 45,627
22 |Total income under Sharchoiders’” Acoount .
fa} Invaslinient fngome 10,338 9,337 2,320 360,697 31,564
{h} Othar Income 244 261 295 1,051 1,519
23 ifypanses cthar than thosz related o surance business® 1,72% 3,214 1617 8,034 1347
24 |Transfer of funds ta Fol'cyhelders' A/C 5,358 4,341 8,986 23,730 21,033
25 {Provisions for doubiful debis Jinclsding wrids off) - - - - -
26 {Provicons for diminution £ volug of invastmants - (63) - (63} -
28 {Profit bafore tay (21+22-23-24-25-26-27) [(RELS) 15816 5,76 37,400 50,430
29 {Provision for tax (861} 2,314 773 1.520 6,944
30 |Profit after tax and before extraardinary (temys (5,L£75) 15,202 5,08 A5,880 43,486
31 |Bxtragrdnary Htems {Ner of ax expenses) - - - - -
32 [!Profit after tax and extraordinary itemns 45.175) 15,202 5,98% 35,280 43,484
11 (Dividend per share (INR) {Hominal Value INR 18 par share):
(a} interiny Divideng - - - - -
(b} Final Dhigerd - . - . -
34 |Debenture Redsmption Reserve - - . 552 592
35 |Frofit carned to Balance Shest 181,575 186,751 146,687 181,57% 146,687
36 |Pocd up equity share capilai 191,881 191,881 191,881 191,881 191,881
37 [Resarve & Surplus (exciucing Revalaaticn Reszrve) 201,715 06,113 152,051 204,745 162,051
38  |Faw valuz Changa Account and Revalustion Reserva (Sharehoiders s
Accaunt) 5,115 5,250 755 6,115 755
36 |Total Assets: -
{a} Investments: -
- Sharelwiders' 584,513 526,851 5505 584,513 550,601
-Poloyholders’ Fund excluding Linked Assels 10,060,784 9,522,301 8,216,212 10,630,784 B21032t2
-Assets held to cover Linked Liabfitias 4,457,928 4,212,705 3,525,023 4,417,928 3,525,023
{h) Other Ascets (Net of current liabilites and grovisions) 258,824 204,042 13§ 703 298,824 136,703

Faotnotes ¢
1 Hel &f reinsurance
2 Hetof smortisation and ksses {nduding cepital gains}
3 Incudes contrbution of funds from shareholders zccaunts towards excess EOM
4 Ingiusive of interi bonus
§  incudes Remunsration of Menagng Direder (MD) & Chisf Executive Cfficer (CEQY Whele Time Dregtors (WTD)KMP's over specified Imits and Interest o Non Convertible

Babantures (WD)
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Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAI registration nso. 104 dated November 15, 2690
Consplidated Bzlance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{all smount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Azat

Az at
" March 31, #arch 31,
Farticulars 2024 2023
Audited Auditad

Sources of funds
Sharcholders’ funds ¢

Shata Capital 191,881 191,882

Reasarves and Suplus 201,716 162,052

Credi/[Bemt] fai valuz chiange aTCount 5871 710

Resaluation Reserve - Invesrment propaty a4 s}
Sub - total . 358,712 354,887
Borsnimgs A3,600 49,608
POLICYHOLOERS® FUHDS:

Credit/ [Catst] faw value change ageount 352,631 73,842

oUSUSTOn e - Ry propty 2,558 4,817

Fobey Labsd bos 4,735,455 8,657,542

1asurance Resarve - .

Provieon far Lnked Labilites 3,809,505 3,835,555
Funds for discontinued policles

Discontpuad on acccunl of nen-payiment, af premium 238,023 488,468

{u) Ciha - -
Tota! Dacentinged Poioyheloers Qebtives £38.023 489468
Sub - Total 14,595,066 31,712,824
Fungs for Futue Appaepaations
Linked - -
Fungds for Fubwe Approgriations - Moo linked 382,71 355,028
Sub - Total 387,271 248,028
Total 15,332,049 12,425 536
Appilcation of funds
Investmaats .

Eharergders' Imvatimerts 583,553 558,601

Poloyhsiders' invastments 103,680,784 £,210,212

Arsar neid Ta fover Enkgs Pabihlics 4,112,928 3,525,023
Loans 105,046 92,483
Fued Ascais 41,368 34,518
Current Assats

Cash and Bank balences 151,922 102,152

Azvances 2nd Cther assets 251,059 297,247
Sub-Totai (A) SLE301 399,338
Cument Lizbiites 350,849 3918
Preedsizng 5,820 3,923
Sub-Totai (8) 361,769 386,737
Het Currant Assets (€) = {A-3) 151,212 . 1Z702
shscalianetus expenditare (10 the extent act viriten-off or adiused} N -
Dot Balanca 1n Profil & Loss Acoount {Sharcheiders’ acoount) - -
Total 35,382,049 | 12,425,53%
Corunaent Liati:bes 41,170 53,135

[» DT s
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Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDATL registration no, 104 dated November 15, 2009
Consalidated Receipts and Payments account (Cash Flow Statersent) for Year ended March 33, 2024

{All apount in INR lakhs, unless obherwise stated)

Year ended Year endad
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Audited Audited

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premivm received from policyholders, including advance receinis 2,930,851 2,530,808
Qther recaipts 12,206 7,113
Payments to tha re-inzurers, net of cammissions and daims (4,522} 4,368
Payment tq go-insurers, nat of ¢laims recovery - -
Payments of cfaims {1,377,419) {1,031,860)
PaymEents of commission and brokerags (227,000 {151,281}
Paymants of sther operating expenses (430,581} {335,740)
Beposits, advarces and staff loans {1,73%) 531
Incoma kaxes paid (Naty 1,114} {8,357)
Goeds and Services Tex (GST) paid (26,951} (20,872)
COlher payments - b
Cash flows bafore extraordinary items 873,091 904,736
Cash flows from extraordinary cperations - -
fet cash flows from operating activities (&) B73,691 $94,756
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assats {22,318} (17,375}
Preceads from sale of fixed assets 145 207
Purchase of investmentis (11,026,728} {11,205,436)
Sate of investments 9,575,678 6,458,451
Loans Disbursad (1,272} {12,490}
Laans sganst polices {13,885} (13,885}
Repayment receved 1,531 -
Rent Recaved 7,328 6,913
Irrvestinants in marey risrket instraments and in fguid mutual funds (Net) - -
Interests recewed 660,651 558,523
Dividands receiven 50,542 35,504
Met cash {used in) investing activities (B} {771.318) {3,377.683)
CASH FLOWS FROM PINANCING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from iscuance of shars capital -
Praceeds from borrgwing - -
Repayments of berrowing - -
Interestf¢ividends paid {3.720% (3,720}
Nat cash flows from f (used in) financing activitias (C} {3.720) {3,720}
Eifect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (rat) (O} i -
Het {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A4B4 C+B) 98,655 (186,607)
Cach and cash equivaients at beginning of the year £83,947 1,170,554
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the Year 1,082,602 83,947
Note - Components of Cash and cash eguivelents at end of the yearn
Cash and cheques in hand 11,781 13,394
Bark Balznces {refer note 4) 142,378 19,543
Fixed Deposits (fess than 3 months} 15,003 20,000
Mpney Market Irstruments & ather shert term Hguld investments 5912443 361,010
Tetal Cash and cash equivalents 1,832,602 983,947
Recanciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with Casis and Bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents 1,082,602 233,547
Less; Morey Markst Instruments & other short term liquid investments {912,443} {861,010)
Less: Linked husness bark hakances (2,237} {746}
Lass: Fixed Depoals (less than 3 months) fenming part of Scheduia 8, BA and 83 £16,0003: {20.008)
Total Cash and bank Balances 151,922 102,192

Notes: .

1, The abave Receipls and payments account has been prepared as prascrived by Insuranca Regulatory and Development Authority (Freparation of financiel staterents
and auditer’s report of irsurance companias} Requlations, 2002 under the “Direct method” in accordance with Accounting Standard 3 Cash Flow Statements,

2. Previcus year's fqures have been regroupedfreclzssilied wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification,

3. Includes cash paid towards Corporate Sorial Responsthility expenditure Rs, 1,080 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,000)

4, Includes bank balance for linked business of Rs. 2,237 {March 34, 2023: s, 246)

(oan
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Max Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAT registraticn no. 104 dated Hovember 15, 2000

Consolidateg Statement of disclosures as per Regulation 52{4} of SEBT (Listing Obligattons and Disclosure Requiraments) Requlations, 2015 for the quarter
and year ended March 37, 2024

{All amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Three months ended/fAs at Year endedfAs 2t
Farticulars Harch 3%, Bucumber 31, Harch 31, March 3%, Harch 31,
agz4 2023 2023 2024 2023
Unaudited (refer nota Jonpage 93 Audited Audited

{04l Equay Ralioe [na of tivas) 0.13 913 019 013 0.14
2 | et service coverace rato’ {no of tmas) {5.63) 1373 .30 ied 1551
3 [interast service toseraga ratio® (no of tmas) (5.63) 1373 833 1104 14.53
< |Cutstanging redesmabda preferense shares (quantity and vahie) Hh HA HA HA HA&
4§ [Capisl rademprmon raserve J debenture redemation reseve 8.87 .37 130 0.87 130
6 i worth? 391,776 385,000 350512 isHiv el I 0,52
7 ket profit altar tax® {5,175}, 15,202 5,587 5,880 13,488
§ tEamings par sharg {in INR):

3} Basic EPS bafore and altor exizasrdinary items (net of lax expense) for the -

"lr{):fj vez\é;(sngre:\nualjcifm tres ;senfms) o pensed . 16.27) 0.7 0.3l 137 227

) Difuted ore and after extraordinary fems (net of tax nse) for the

némdf yagr {nat annuakzed for tuee xmn:;‘s! ‘ wipeee) 0.27) a8 a3 187 227
¥ |Current ratio® 142 10 1.03 192 103
HiLeng tarm debt to working capilal® HA A HA HA HA
LLiEad dobts to Atcaunt reczivabie reilo” KA A MNA HA HA
12[current liabilty ratia” 0.97 0.62 &.01 0.02 0.03
13[Totol detts to total assais® 200 6.63 6.60 0.00 .08
14 |pebtars turnover? A NA A HA RA
158 Ipventary wrnover” HA 1A A HA NA
16 [Ciperating margi: (Sa)" HA HA A A HA
17 1t Profit margia (557 NA HA HA NA HA
1B | Asgat cover avianta. in case of non-convertib'e debt sacurites™® Ba8% 8718 Pl B48% 7ER%

Faotnobes ;
1 DebyEquity Ratio is calculztad as Toiz! Borraviings divited By fetworth, Net warth s shareficiders funds incidng Credit / {Debit) Fer Yalue Citange Actcunt and excluting Realised Hedga

Resarvi - Polioyholder,
2 Debt service c:verdqe ratio is caku'ated a5 Profit before nterest and tax divided by interest expense togeyiar vith sringpal repayments of igng-term cabt during the period,
3 Indwrest seivice coverage ralin is Caiculated 35 Profit before intenest and W@x diviced by interest expanse.
4 Net vonh s sherahoidaers funds ingleding Credid [/ (Dakit} Fair Velue Change Account end exduding Realised Hedge Ressive - Pecyhiolder,
5 Hetprofit after B ls the profit eiter tax as per sharebolders’ acccunt for year to date.
§ Current ratio is current asaets (cash and bank Balance and agvances & cther assets) divided by curent tiabdies and erovisions
¢ Current liabity ret:a s computed as current Tabidity divided by tolal Batdity, Total isbifity inchudes borrowings, policyhoider fiabditias, Furd lor Future Appiopsiatinn, current Sability, provisien ansd

reatsed hecge fuctvation resorve.

o

Hel appicatle o Inserace Companios,

Tetal denis to 1wt assals i toml borrowings dvided Oy 1ol ascels as per balance shast,

10 Netassets are exclidng Policyhalders funds including reglized hedae reserve and Funds for Fulure Appropratens, Assets Cover ratio IS computed as nel assels Sivided by 180! berowings.




Max Lire Insuronee Company Limited

IRDAI registration no, 1064 dated November 15, 2040
Consalidated Segrient Reporting for the quartar apd year ended March 31, 2024

{All smount in IHR

fakbs, unlass othenvise stated}

Three months ended/ As 9L Year endedf Asat
N March 31, December 32, March 35; #arch 31, March 31,
Sr Ha. Particulars 2024 2023 2023 2013 2073
Unaudited {rafer nots 2 ¢if page §) Audited Audited

L |Segment Income :

A [Pslleyholders':
Participating MNon Linked - Individual Life
tHel Preimbun 293,358 210468 294,817 851,732 822,217
Trcema from Investmants? 141,459 136,483 39,112 531,682 76,942
Transfer of Funds from sharshokars Accoun - - N ‘ :
Oy incoma 2,142 I,071 3,635 7361 5806
Participating Hon Linked - Pension
fiet Premium 135 29 181 152 136
Income from investmenls 238 235 221 528 864
Transfer of Furds from shareholdars’ agcount - - . . .
Giher income? 0 - ] ] 0
tion Participating Now Linked - Individual & Group Life
Het Framium 418,284 281,892 330,887 1,500,718 870,829
Incemz from invastments 51,177 34,948 20,685 £61,150 108,324
Trarsfer of Funds fom sharehsidar's acoount 15481 {1,701} 5,592 15,481 5552
Cther Income {28) 357 462 g5 832
ton Participating Nen Linked - Annuity® -
kel Pramum 85777 45,737 38,650 227,150 141,918
Income from invastrmants? $523 7,207 4,815 27,953 14,808
Transfer of Fungs from shareholder's account {10,123} 8,042 503 8,249 12,651
Oiher sncoime 13 ek} 7 55 34
Kors Participating Non Linked - Health
Het Premium 534 51 483 1,384 1,310
Inzome from investments 64 70 33 263 144
‘Transfer of Fusds frem sharehotder's actount - . 1,748 - L748
ner poome? ] [ bl 1 1
Non Participating Linked - Individual Life
Tt Premagm 256,383 176,127 E23AGT 697,524 §22,39¢
nCne from vestmenis® 202,000 322,035 {47,217} 937,033 $7,983
Transfer of Funds lrom sharcholfars account - . - . -
Other incame 158 185 163 i3] 1
Hon Participating Linked - Pensicn
Net Pramium 4,693 3,504 2,759 14,577 19,847
Ircome fromt invesimentst 9,033 12,706 {5,315} 39,25¢ 8,022
Transfer of Funds from sharehoiters aceaunt - - 1,043 - 1,043
Cibar incone? ] 0 i H H
Hon Porticipating Linked « Group
et Pramium 153 4,027 1783 5168 4,378
Income from investagnts 782 746 166 2,612 745
Transfer of Funds frem sharencloar's acoount - - - - -
Cher incoee? - 0 a 3

B) |Shareholders:
Tncome frem investients? 10,338 8,287 9,320 39,687 31,664
Cther Incoma 244 61 205 1081 1549

2 |Segment Surplus/(Deficit) {net of transfer frorn shareholders” Af¢) ¢
Partcipating Nan tinked - Individual Lifa 6,510 5002 5,406 18,675 16423
Faticipaling Hey Linked - Pensicn pid] K tL 15 i6
Non Pargrisating Hon Linked - Individua! & Graup Life (21,207} 80627 {12,473} 135480} {5.552)
Hon Particizatiag Hon Linked - Annuity 10,123 (5,042} {603} {3,299) {12,651)
oa Pasicigating Non Lirked - Health 959 651 {2,169} 1,765 {1,748)
Han Particizating Linked - Individual Life {15,562} 3,024 §,151 1,885 26,864
Mon Particisating Linked - Pansion 377 424 536 1,721 1,015
Hen Particizating Linked - Group (3] 3t 2 49 &3
Taotal {14,993) 11,119 (1,139) 2,383 24,594
Sharehalders 2318 4,683 7,129 33487 18,892
Grand Total £5,175) 15,202 5,950 35,880 43,486




HMax Life Insurance Company Eimited

IREAL reglstration no. 104 dated November 15, 2008
Cunsolidated Segment Reparting for the quarter and year ended Marth 31, 2023

{AlL pmount In INR lskdiy, uniess cthenwlse stated)

Threa months endedf As at Year endad/ As at
Marchk 31, December 33, March 31, Farch 32, March 31,
Sr M) Particulars 2074 023 2013 2024 pli=3
Unzudited (refer note 2 on page 93 Audited Audited

3 |Segment Assets:
Partizipating Hon Unked - Individual Life 7,037,859 6,849,783 6,161,902 7,087,859 5,161,502
Participating Mon Limked - Pension 12,697 12,458 11,769 12,697 11,762
tior Paricipating Mon binked ~ Individusl & Sroup Life 2850458 2,503,722 2,020,325 2,866,455 2030335
tion Paricipating tion Linked - Annuity 557,811 462,330 312,659 557,911 312,655
ébicn Particpating Hon Linked - Healin 3,621 3,259 2,177 362 2,177
sHon Participating Linked ~ Individuat Lfe 4,254,494 4,040,262 3,363,127 4,254,494 3,363,1%
Hon Parlizipating Linked - Pension 183,054 191,716 185,948 163,354 185,048
Nen Participating Linked - Group 20,559 20,622 18,215 23,969 18,235
Toksl 14,598,000 14,087,198 12,046,142 14,9%8,000 12,086,142
Shareholdars’ 745,819 677,620 726,134 745,815 726,134
unallecated - - . bt -
Grand Total 15,743,819 14,763,818 12,812,276 15,743,819 12,812,276

4 iSegment Policy Liabiities:
Participating Non Linked ~ Irdividual bife 7,095,037 6,837,597 5,163,824 7,085,037 6,163,834
Fart:ipatng fen Linked - Pension 9,775 9,972 9,657 9,775 9,517
Hon Participating Non Linked + Idividual & Group Life 2,897,558 2,506,115 2,002,082 2,387,568 2022082
Han PacbCipating Hon Livked - Anrdity 537,554 463,962 31,514 527,554 311,914
Hop Partcipating Hlon Uaxad - Heslth 3,118 3555 31913 3110 3,913
Hon Pactpaung Linked - Indivicuat Lifa 4,249,809 4,033,282 3,355,459 4,245,809 3,355,459
Hon Pacticipating Linkeg - Pension 134.675 191,541 135,658 184,075 185,696
Non Fartopating Linkad - Graup 20,588 20,635 18.241 26,530 1§,241
Tatal 14,968,725 14,066,596 12,070,756 14,988,725 12,070,756
Sharchoipars Fung 755,694 657,822 741.520 755,054 741,520
Grand Total 15,743,819 14,764,818 12,812,276 15,743,819 12,812,276
Footnotas

1 Segments include;
&) Hon-bnked:
L, Particizmling Policies: (13 Life {il) Pansien

pating Poricies: [i} Life (i) Arngily {17} Health
2s: (I} Lifa (i} Benston (8} Group
2 dsfons for diminution in valua af lnvestments.
3 The amount of {8}0 denotes that the value is tacs than IHR SO Thousands.




HMax Life Tnsurance Company Limited
IRTAI registration no. 104 dated Novembar 15, 2000
Statement of Analytical Ratles far the quarter and Year endad March 33, 2024

(Al amount in IHR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Three manths endedf A3 at Year endedf As at
1 March 3, Decemibsar 31, March 31, #arch 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023 2023 2024 2023
Unaudited (rafor noate 2 on p3ag 9) Audited Audited
Anaiytical Ratias':
) Scivency Ratio? 1730 175% 199% 172% 1507
{it) Expenses of Managemart Ralio N % 21% 2% 26
(i} Policyholgecs Tabiilizs o shareholders’ und 3814% 54050 24719 4814% 34310
(iv} Earnings per shzra (. (R
2) Basic £P5 before and afler extraordinary it2ms {ret of tax expenss}) for the period/ year
{nat anmustizad for thiee manihs) {830 0.75 031 1.87 27
5} Diluted EPS bafore 3nd after extracrdinary items {nat of iax expence} for the paricd/ year
{not annualized for tires srionths) 10.20 0,79 0.31 187 2,27
v} NPa miios: (for Policyholdars' fund
3} Gross HEAs
- MNon Liked
Par . - - - -
tecn Par - - - . R
« Linked
tion Par 231 2,341 2,560 2,341 2,500
Het HPAs
- fion Linked
Par . - - .
Hona Rae 5 - - - B
- Linked
Non Par - - . - .
0} % of Gross NPAS
- tign Linked
Par 96020 0.50% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Mon Par 2.00% 0.20% QL0% 0.00% 0.00%
- tinkad
Han Par B 05% 0.92% §.033%%] 0.05%; 0.03%
&4 of Mat NPA
~ Kan Linked
Far 0.00%5: C.84%% 0.00% 0.00% 2.00%
[an Par 0.60% 0.00% (.00%% 0.00% 0.00%:
= Linked
Mon Par G007 0.00% 0.06% 3.08%| 0.00%
{vi} Yleld on Irvestments {on Peliovhaidors” fund}
. Withoul unraglised gains
- Hon Lnked
Par 2 8% §% ¥ )
Hon Far % 6% %o % 7%
- Linked
Hop Far 3% 13% 1% 14%h; P
G, With vivealiced natns
- lton Linkad
Par 18% 5% 4% 159 55|
Hon Far 15% 6% 2% 03 5%
- Lnkeg
Hon Par 19% 33%) 7% 6%, 2%
{¥it} HPA ratios: {for sharehs!ders' fund)
{3} Gross NPAs 937 937 1003 927 1500
tiat HPAS - - - - -
{b} S5 of Gross HPAS 0,285 2.18% 0.18% 0.15% 0.18%
%o of Met NPAs Q.00% 0.60%% 0.00%% 040 C.00%
(Vi) Yield on Invastments {on Sharehelders’ Asz)
A Whhout unrealiced gains a5 FE 7% £3% 655!
. With unreslised gams 13% 5% 7% 11% 555,




#ax Life Insurance Company Limited
IRDAT reglistration no. 104 dated November 15, 2000
Statement of Analytical Raties for the qurarter and Year ended Mareh 33, 2024

{Afl amount in IHR lakhs, vniess gtherwise stated)

Three montis ended/ As ab ¥ear ended/ A% &t
s March 31, Dezember 31, Harch 3%, March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023 2023 2024 2023
Unaudited (rafer nate 2 on page 93 RAudited Audited

w42} Persistency Ralia’

Persistency Ratra {Raguiar Framium / Uimited Premiem Payment under individed] catogorny]

by premiLm

L3th mcnlh ¥ct 314 43% B7% BA%%
25t mgalh 335N T 65%%| % £8%
37 waath 60%5 8235 59% 63% 637
<t moath £5% 54% 38% £6% 634
16t month 56% 36% 56% 56% 8%
By ceunt

13t manth 856% 53% 85% 85% %
R4 rnnth 75% 7% 8% 75%) 0%
374 maati 5% $4%% 50% 6650 61%!
4461 manth [t 57%%; S0%h £2% 5%
G1st month 3% 53% 3% 55% 4%
Parsiztency Ratio {Sngle Framium £ Fully paid-up und2r individual Zatenoryd

by premium

13th monit 633, 95% G8% 55% 9%
25t month 10035, 180% 166% [G0%5) 160%
i7th month H5% 100%: 160%5 100%| 108%
49th menth 189% 1 100%% 166% 109%
£15t monti 1003 100%: 1093% 160% 109%
Ly count

13t manth 9% 9% 993, £8% 95%
25th maonth 100% 100% 180% 150% 1%
37th imonth 100% 10656 EH 163% 100%
49th mons 160% 100% 7 100% 10952
615t month - 100%: 1007% placir 103% 109%
(x} Consaivation Ratio

Particpating kon Linked - ladivous! Lile 34% Bb% 87% 85%%| B2
Parricipaling hon Linksd - Fenson TB% T4 845 7% 82%
f:0n Partiaipating HGo Linked - Individual & Geoup Lifa 8%% S1% 0% 503 73
Twon Partivipating Haa tinked « Annuity 5% Ryt NA 86% LY
ton PaMmicpahing Nea tinked - Health 8% 37% 7% B2% £155!
L Partigipating Unked - Individual idfe 5% 4% 73%h 2% 3%
o Pariclpating Linked - Pension 67% £5%i 7% Wl 7%
|l}on Pariicipatng Linked - Group [y 74 k| Mk KA

Foutnotes :
1. Anzlybical ratios hava been caiculated as per 2efnition given in IRDAT Amatylical mllos discinzure,

Z. The soliency ralip are 3s certified by the Appownted Acluary,

3. 3) The persistency ratics are Laiculated in aconiance with IRDAJACT/CIRIGEN/21/02/2010 dated Febryary 11, 2010 ang IRDAT dircular no. IREALFRAICIR/MIEC/Z56/09/2021 goted
Sertember 30, 2021 and hence are vith 3 I2g of one moath. .

b) Tha parsistency ratics for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 have been calculated on 31st March 2024 for tha polices issued in the Decamber t2 Felruary period of the redzvant years,
£y the 13th month parsistency for the currant Guarter 15 caloulated for tha polices issuad from Decembar 2022 to February 2023, Tha persistenty mtias for quartar ended December 31,
2023 and March 31, 2023 huve bzan caloulated in @ smitar manner,

¢ The persistency ratios fo7 yaar to dae a6 at March 31, 2024 have been calculated on 2 1st March 2024 for the policies Issued in the March to Februany penod of the refevant years, E.Q.
e 13th month persistency for the cureant yo3r ts calouiated for the paicies issuad from March 2032 to Fabruary 2023, The persistency ratios for yasr ended March 31, 2023 have been
watculated m @ simuldr manngs

) The “quarter ended’ parsiancy reLes ane Aot comparable to comesponding "year to date’ mtles on accouat of different #ime paricd avoilalie far rengwl for polities. Forexaimgle ~ Tn
cage of quarter ended’ parsistancy 25 3L March 31, 2024, which includes pokicias issued in the Decerbar to February period of relavant years, a policy issued in tie month of December wiil
hava arourd 3 menths avelieli for rengwal of poilcy. ¥hle In case of ‘year ended” persistercy a5 at March 31, 2024, which Includes paficles issucd in the March t Febuary padod of
refevant yaars, a policy rssusd in the month of March will Pave arsund 12 months availabla for renawal of poicy.

#) Fersislency ratios iciutls ndividual business only, Group bushiess polizies have been exchudert fromn the persistency calculation.

4. Ratias {or the previcis yeur's qudrter & previous year have bazn reclassified / regrouped J restated wharevsr necassary.
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The censtidated Arandial rzzulz hava Teen prepared In accordance wih e cew ts of ion 52 of the Security Exchanga Beard of Indla (SEZI) {Listag QRigatsns ard Disclosure
Requirements} Repulatans, 2015, 95 amended, read wih SEBI {Usting Dbigations and Dsciosura Reguiremants) (Sith Amendment) Sepuiations, 2022 welk. Novamber 14, 2022, to the extent
applicable, snd IRDAL Crculor IRDAFAYREG/CIRZDENIDIZ016 dated Octaber 25, 2036 on publeation of findngidd resuls for L Insyrance Comnpanias. Thase consglidated financal rasuls
comprise the finandtat resuits of Max Life Insurance Cempany Limited, the Company and s wholy owned subsidiary Max Lije Peacion Fund Management Liwited, tha Suksidary Company
{together referred to as “tha Graup™).

Tz Consaldated Fingnciadl Resuls ware reviewed by the Audit Comniites and subsaquerty approved by the Board of Cirectars at thay respectve mastess beld on May 05, 2024 and May 07,
2024 2nd ate audited by the 1t auditars of Ue Company, Hawever, the Consakidaled Finzncial Results for the quarters ended Maech 31, 2824, Recember 31, 2023, March 31, 2023 have been
prapsred by tie management from the boaks of aceotnt which 5 nather awtited nor raviewad by the joint 2udaers of the Company,

POST feceving sequisile approvals from Regulatory Authortes, the Holding Tempany has afatted 142,579,161 full paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 pach o Ans Bznk on Aprl 17, 2024, The
Shares nava een fssued st Rs. 111,04 per share Inchuding a share premium of Rs. 103.05 per share to Ais Bank on el basis for an aggrega of Rs. 161,200 fakhs by Axs
Bank in the Holding Company

The Company has received 2 favouratiz ordar from Hon'ble Delal High Cotyt in August 2023 directing tha Ingema Tax Awhonlty 1o releasa the rfunds of past assessmant yaars which had baea
adfusted with outstancing demands of Assassment year 2617-13. The Compepy has aecousted such refunds pereiting to earier years during the year ended March 31, 2083, Accordingly, the
Provesion for Taxauon in Proft & Lods Afc comprises e provision for cuivent tax of Rs. 1,546 Jaxhs for the year enced Marzh 31, 2829 and reversal of provizcn for &2 of RS, 3,397 fakhs for

eaker paniods,

Tha zmoun:s for the quarter enged March 31, 2024 are balancdg amounts 25 per 2udted 2éounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 end nine monis ended Cecember 31, 2023, Similarty, the

amcunts for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 are balzncing amcunts as par audied accourts for the yeyr exded March 31, 2023 and rine manths ended Dacember 31, 2622
Previous yearfperiod figures have been regrouped wheraver ngzessary, o canform 1o CarrRnl yeaf penod's cassification.

For sad on behalf of the Board of Diresiors

Pragshant Tripathy
Managing Nirectnr & CEQ
DIN: 18280516

Flzess & gz Yatd

P May 03, 22y
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As per Regulation 33(1) (f) of SEBI LODR, 2013 - Related party disclosures as specified in Para A of Schedule V

Related Party Disclosure

{Amount in Rs, ‘000}

Sr. In the accounts of Particulars Disclosures of amounts at the year
ne. end and the maximum amount of
foans/ advances/ Investments
outstanding during the year.
[ | Holding Company | -[.oans and advances in the nature of foans to subsidiaries by name and amount.
- Loans and advances in the nature of loans to assoctates by name and amount. Nil
+ Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by rame and amount,
2§ Subsidiary Same disclosures as applicable to the parent company in Nil
the accounts of subsidiary company.
3 | Holding Company | Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary il

company, when the company has made a [oan or advance in the nature of loan.

Note: We have made an investment of INR 350,000 in Max Life Pension Fund Management Limited (Subsidiary company) during the FY 2022-
23, The same amount is outstanding as on 31 March 2024

(2A) Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group which
held{s) 10% or more sharcholding in the listed entity, in the format preseribed in the relevant accounting standards for annual

results
(Amount in Rs. “000)
Amount Balance outstanding
: Nature of Aoy Receivable / (Payable)
Sr. | Name of the . N " e
No. | Related Party Relationship with Description of Transaction As at Asat
- Company 2023-24 2022-23 March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Expense - Functional Support 116.000 160,000 | (116,000) |  (160,000)
Services
Max Financial - Expenses - D& Insurance
U1 Services Limiteg | Folding Company Policy i 161 ) )
Incqme- Deputation cost of Legal (2.373) . 2,606 .
services
Income - Insurance Premium (5,906,799) (4,644.676) {225,609 {219,097)
Income - Income on Investments (340,362} {383.574) 73,901 91,908
Expenses -~ Commission, Bank 13,339,651 10,803,767 (1.804,780) | (1,540,783)
Charges & Others
Axis Bank Shareholder with | Receipt—Sale /Maturity of (550,000) | (350.000) - ;
2 o o . [nvestments
Limited significant influence Pavinent - Pordl T
et - Furchase o 5003171 | 2,184.878 - -
Investmenis
Investmenis - - 8.530.757 8.487.486
Term Deposits - - 3,763 3.336
Bank Balances - - 7,878,593 4,531.563




